SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA



ITEM: 3.12 (ID # 17319)

MEETING DATE:

Tuesday, April 12, 2022

FROM:

HUMAN RESOURCES:

SUBJECT: HUMAN RESOURCES: Ratify and approve the Vision Benefits Administration Agreement between the County of Riverside and Medical Eye Services, Inc., effective January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2024, All Districts. [\$0, 100% Employee and retiree premiums]

RECOMMENDED MOTION: That the Board of Supervisors:

da Riedericka

- 1. Ratify and approve the Vision Benefits Administration Agreement between the County of Riverside and Medical Eye Services, Inc. to provide voluntary vision benefits for eligible employees and retirees, effective January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2024;
- 2. Authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign three (3) copies of the Agreement on behalf of the County; and
- 3. Direct the Clerk of the Board to retain one (1) copy of the Agreement and return two (2) copies of the Agreement to Human Resources for distribution.

ACTION:Policy

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

On motion of Supervisor Perez, seconded by Supervisor Jeffries and duly carried by unanimous vote, IT WAS ORDERED that the above matter is approved as recommended.

Ayes:

Jeffries, Spiegel, Washington, Perez and Hewitt

Navs:

None

Absent:

None

Date:

April 12, 2022

XC:

HR

Muleta

Kecia R. Harper

Clerk of the Boa

Deputy.

SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL DATA	Current Fiscal Year:	Next Fiscal Year:		otal Cost:	Ongoing Cost	
COST	\$ 0	\$ 0		\$ 0	\$ 0	
NET COUNTY COST	\$ 0	\$ 0		\$ 0	\$ 0	
SOURCE OF FUNDS	S. Employee payroll	I deductions and retir	700	Budget Adjustment: No		
pension	Employee payroll	i deductions and retir	CC	For Fiscal Ye	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	

C.E.O. RECOMMENDATION: Approve

BACKGROUND:

Summary

On April 9, 2019, Item 3.11, the Board approved the Medical Eye Services Vision Benefits Administration Agreement, effective January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2020.

Attached is the new Vision Benefits Administration Agreement, effective January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2024, with negotiated terms and benefits. As part of the agreement, Human Resources in partnership with AON (benefits consultant) negotiated a 4-year rate guarantee through December 31, 2024.

There is no direct cost to the County for this recommended action. Fees are paid by employee and retiree premiums.

Prev. Agn. Ref.: 4/9/19, Item 3.11 District: All

Impact on Residents and Businesses

There is no direct impact to residents or private businesses in the County of Riverside.

Contract History and Price Reasonableness

The County's contract with Medical Eye Services to provide vision benefits to our active employees and retirees has been in effect since 2004. MES is a fully insured vision plan offered to the County eligible employees represented by SEIU, LIUNA, and RSA Public Safety. Currently, the County has 11,018 active employees and approximately 2,104 retirees enrolled with MES. MES continues to provide quality vision benefits and provides a broad network of providers for member convenience.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A:

VISION BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE AND MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC.

Page 2 of 3 ID# 17319 3.12

SUBMITTAL TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Synthia ty Gurizel, Chief Deputy County Countsel 3/23/2022

<u>VISION BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT</u> BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE AND MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC.

This Vision Benefits Administration Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into, effective the 1st day of January, 2021, by and between the County of Riverside, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereafter "Policyholder"), and Medical Eye Services, Inc., a California corporation, (hereafter "Company").

WHEREAS, Policyholder has contracted with Gerber Life Insurance Company, a New York corporation, (hereafter "Underwriter") to underwrite a vision benefit policy (hereinafter "Policy") designed to provide vision benefits (hereafter "Benefits") to Policyholder's employees and retirees including their eligible dependents; and

WHEREAS, Company offers a variety of administrative services, as a subcontractor of Underwriter, related to the operation of certain vision benefit plans; and

WHEREAS, Policyholder desires to retain Company to provide certain administrative services in connection with the Policy and Company desires to provide such services; and,

WHEREAS, Policyholder and Company (collectively referred to as the "Parties" and individually referred to as a "Party") are entering into this Agreement for that purpose;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises and covenants, the Parties agree as follows:

- 1.0 <u>DEFINITIONS</u> As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning described below:
- 1.1 Agreement means this Vision Benefits Administration Agreement for the provision of administrative services for the Policy, and all attachments, addendums and amendments hereto.
- 1.2 Director means the Director of Human Resources for County of Riverside, or his or her designee.
- 1.3 State means the State of California.
- 1.4 Policy or Policies refers to the wrap around vision Benefits policies and certificates annually issued by Underwriter and attached hereto as Exhibit A for each of the following plans: Full Service, Eyewear Only, and Retirees.

2.0 RESPONSIBILITIES OF POLICYHOLDER

2.1 <u>Enrollment of Participants; Eligibility Lists; Changes in Status</u>. The Policyholder shall submit to the Company eligibility information in accordance with the applicable Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2.2 <u>Continuation of Coverage</u>. Policyholder shall, as applicable: (a) determine the occurrence of "qualifying events", as that term is defined, for purposes of continuing coverage under "COBRA" or any similar applicable State laws, (b) notify Participants of their continuing coverage rights under such laws, as applicable, and (c) notify Company of all Participants who have elected continuing coverage, the duration of such coverage, and the termination of such coverage.

3.0 COMPANY RESPONSIBILITIES

- 3.1 <u>Account Administration</u>. Company shall provide administrative services in accordance with the applicable Policies attached hereto as Exhibit A.
- 3.2 <u>Payment of Claims</u>. Company shall furnish claims administration services:
- 3.2.1 Company shall accept claims (each, a "Claim") for Benefits under the Policy, which are made pursuant to procedures established in connection therewith, and do an evaluation of each Claim and any other relevant information available to Company to determine the eligibility of the Participant to whom the Services were provided based on the eligibility information provided by Policyholder.
- 3.2.2 Company shall maintain a grievance resolution procedure, which shall be made available to a Participant, in writing, upon request. Company may compromise or adjust any Claim properly submitted under such procedure. If there is a change to a determination of a Claim by virtue of the resolution procedure, Company shall make the necessary changes in its records and comply with the final decision.
- 3.3 <u>Claim Forms</u>. Subject to the requirements of the Policy and this Agreement, Company shall arrange for the printing and publication of, and maintain a supply of, the forms necessary for the administration of the Policy, including without limitation Claim forms, Claim denial forms, and Claim payment forms.
- Records and Information. Company shall maintain and provide records and information necessary to administer the Agreement consistent with all applicable State and federal laws, and continue to comply with all future laws, which may change from time to time, during the term of this Agreement, including any renewal periods. Company shall retain such records for at least ten (10) years from the close of the County's fiscal year in which this Agreement becomes effective. This obligation is not terminated upon a termination of the Agreement, whether by rescission or otherwise. It is agreed that the Policyholder is the owner of all records maintained by Company. At least sixty (60) days prior to destruction of such records, Company shall contact Policyholder in writing and notify Policyholder of the intent to destroy the records in sufficient detail to allow Policyholder to agree to Company's request or to transfer from Company to Policyholder the specified records.

3.5 <u>Licenses.</u> Company shall maintain any and all professional licenses required by the laws of the State of California and applicable Federal laws, if any, at all times while performing services on behalf of Policyholder under this Agreement.

3.6 <u>Insurance Requirements.</u>

- 3.6.1 Without limiting or diminishing the Company's obligation to indemnify or hold Policyholder harmless, Company shall procure and maintain or cause to be maintained, at its sole cost and expense, the following insurance coverages during the term of this Agreement. As respects to the insurance section only, Policyholder herein refers to the County of Riverside, its Agencies, Districts, Special Districts, and Departments, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, employees, elected or appointed officials, agents, or representatives as additional insureds.
 - **3.6.1.1 Workers' Compensation:** If the Company has employees as defined by the State of California, the Company shall maintain statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of The County of Riverside.
 - 3.6.1.2 Commercial General Liability: Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, unmodified contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury, and cross liability coverage, covering claims which may arise from or out of Company's performance of its obligations hereunder. Policy shall name Policyholder as additional insured. Policy's limit of liability shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit.
 - 3.6.1.3 Vehicle Liability: If vehicles or mobile equipment is used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Company shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles so used in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit. If such insurance contains a general aggregate limit, it shall apply separately to this Agreement or be no less than two (2) times the occurrence limit. Policy shall name the Policyholder as additional insureds.
 - **3.6.1.4 Professional Liability:** Company shall maintain Professional Liability Insurance providing coverage for the Company's performance of work included within this Agreement, with a limit of liability of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 annual aggregate. If Company's Professional Liability Insurance is written on a claims made basis rather than an occurrence basis, such insurance shall continue through the term of this

Agreement and Company shall purchase at his sole expense either 1) an Extended Reporting Endorsement (also, known as Tail Coverage); or 2) Prior Dates Coverage from new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Agreement; or 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that Company has Maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items 1), 2), or 3) will continue as long as the law allows.

3.6.1.5 General Insurance Provisions - All lines:

- 3.6.1.5.1 Any insurance carrier providing insurance coverage hereunder shall be admitted to the State of California and have an A M BEST rating of not less than A: VIII (A:8) unless such requirements are waived, in writing, by Policyholder Risk Manager. If the Policyholder's Risk Manager waives a requirement for a particular insurer such waiver is only valid for that specific insurer and only for one policy term.
- 3.6.1.5.2 The Company must declare its insurance self-insured retention for each coverage required herein. If any such self-insured retention exceeds \$500,000 per occurrence each such retention shall have the prior written consent of the Policyholder's Risk Manager before the commencement of operations under this Agreement. Upon notification of self-insured retention unacceptable to the Policyholder, and at the election of the Country's Risk Manager, Company's carriers shall either; 1) reduce or eliminate such self-insured retention as respects this Agreement with the Policyholder, or 2) procure a bond which guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, and defense costs and expenses.
- 3.6.1.5.3 Company shall cause Company's insurance carrier(s) to furnish the County of Riverside with either 1) a properly executed original Certificate(s) of Insurance and, 2) if requested to do so orally or in writing by the Policyholder Risk Manager, provide original certified copies of policies including all Endorsements and all attachments thereto, showing such insurance is in full force and effect. Further, said Certificate(s) shall contain the covenant of the insurance carrier(s) that thirty (30) days written notice shall be given to the County of Riverside prior to any material modification, cancellation, expiration or reduction in coverage of such insurance. In the event of a material modification, cancellation, expiration, or reduction in coverage, this Agreement shall terminate forthwith, unless the County of Riverside receives, prior to such effective date, another properly executed original Certificate of Insurance and original copies of endorsements or certified original policies, including all endorsements and attachments thereto evidencing coverage's set forth herein and the insurance required herein is in full force and effect. Company shall not commence operations until the Policyholder has been

furnished original Certificate(s) of Insurance and certified original copies of endorsements and if requested, certified original policies of insurance including all endorsements and any and all other attachments as required in this Section. An individual authorized by the insurance carrier shall sign the original endorsements for each policy and the Certificate of Insurance.

- 3.6.1.5.4 It is understood and agreed to by the Parties hereto that the Company's insurance shall be construed as primary insurance, and the Policyholder's insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retention's or self-insured programs shall not be construed as contributory.
- 3.6.1.5.5 If, during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof, there is a material change in the scope of services; or, there is a material change in the equipment to be used in the performance of the scope of work; or, the term of this Agreement, including any extensions thereof, exceeds five (5) years; Policyholder reserves the right to adjust the types of insurance and the monetary limits of liability required under this Agreement, if in the Policyholder Risk Manager's reasonable judgment, the amount or type of insurance carried by the Company has become inadequate.
- 3.6.1.5.6 Company shall pass down the insurance obligations contained herein to all tiers of subcontractors working under this Agreement.
- 3.6.1.5.7 The insurance requirements contained in this Agreement may be met with a program(s) of self-insurance acceptable to the Policyholder.
- 3.6.1.5.8 Company agrees to notify Policyholder of any claim by a third party or any incident or event that may give rise to a claim arising from the performance of this Agreement.
- 3.6.1.6 In addition to the above insurance coverage's, the Company shall also provide a policy(s) of insurance for: (A) Fiduciary Liability in an amount not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000) covering any individual who is construed to be a fiduciary within the meaning of the Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and all fiduciaries and all persons that handle plan assets, if any, to be bonded as required under the ERISA Act, and; (B) Directors and Officers Liability in an amount not less than one million dollars (\$1,000,000). The Directors and Officers policy shall have either: 1) an Extended Reporting endorsement (also known as tail coverage); or 2) Prior Dates Coverage for new insurer with a retroactive date back to the date of, or prior to, the inception of this Agreement; or 3) demonstrate through Certificates of Insurance that Company has maintained continuous coverage with the same or original insurer. Coverage provided under items 1), 2), or 3) in this paragraph, will

continue for a period of not less than five (5) years beyond termination of this Agreement.

3.6.1.7 If Company in any manner handles any monies or any form of money, including but not limited to cash, checks, credit cards, debit card, electronic payments and/or transfers, etc., the Company shall provide and maintain at its own cost and expense during the term of this Agreement and any and all extensions thereto, Crime Insurance for: (A) Employee Dishonesty; (B) Forgery or Alteration; (C) Theft, Disappearance and Destruction, (E) Computer Fraud and any other coverage forms necessary to cover any type of loss arising out of/from this Agreement.

4.0 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

4.1 Underwriter shall be entitled to the premiums described in the Applications for Group Coverage for vision (Full Service, Eyewear Only, and Retirees), which are attached hereto as Exhibit B. Company as a third party administrator is compensated by Underwriter and does not retain premiums nor collect compensation from Policyholder.

5.0 PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

- 5.1 <u>Proprietary Nature of Information</u>. Policyholder and Company agree to treat all Member patient information provided by Company or Policyholder as confidential. Policyholder and Company shall maintain the confidentiality of all such information and shall make disclosures to third parties only upon the advance written consent of the Member, or when allowed by applicable law. Company shall safeguard the confidentiality of Member health records and treatment in accordance with all applicable State and federal laws, and regulations.
- 5.2 <u>Use of Trademarks and Copyrights</u>. Policyholder and Company each reserve the right to control the use of its name, symbols, trademarks, or other marks currently existing or later established. However, either Party may use the other Party's symbol, trademarks, or other marks with the prior written approval of the other Party. Policyholder shall be allowed to use the name of Company in its promotional activities and marketing campaign.
- 5.3 <u>Company Advertising</u>. Prior to listing or otherwise referencing Policyholder in any promotional or advertising brochures, media announcements or other advertising or marketing material, Company shall first obtain the prior written consent of the Director.

6.0 TERM AND TERMINATION

6.1 The term of this Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2021 and continue in effect for four years through December 31, 2024, unless terminated earlier as provided herein.

- 6.2 <u>Causes for Immediate Termination of Agreement by Policyholder</u>. The following shall constitute cause for immediate termination of this Agreement by Policyholder:
- i) Breach of Material Term and Failure to Cure Company's breach of any material term, covenant, or condition and subsequent failure to cure such breach within thirty (30) days following written notice of such breach.
- ii) Failure to Provide Services Failure of Company to provide services in accordance with this Agreement.
- iii) Preservation of the Safety, Health and/or Welfare of Members Determination by Policyholder that Company places the safety, health and/or welfare of Members in danger.
- iv) Loss of Licensing Failure by Company to secure and maintain the necessary governmental licenses, accreditation or certification required for the performance of duties hereunder.
- v) Loss of Insurance Coverage Failure by Company to maintain adequate general and professional liability insurance coverage, as provided herein.
- vi) Insolvency of Company Failure of the Company to remain solvent, including the filing of bankruptcy of Company.
- 6.3 <u>Termination Without Cause.</u> After the end of the first year of this Agreement, either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause. In the event either Party desires to terminate this Agreement without cause, the terminating Party shall give the other Party at least sixty (60) days written notice of termination.

7.0 MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 Each Party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, its respective directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives from any liability to a third party based on breach of this Agreement by the indemnifying Party or the indemnifying Party's reckless conduct in the provision of services under this Agreement, but only to the extent such third party claim is not covered by any insurance coverage of the indemnified party.

8.0 MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Relationship of Parties; Expenses. The relationship between Company and Policyholder is an independent contractor relationship. Neither Company nor its employee(s) and/or agent(s) shall be considered to be an employee(s), and/or agent(s) of Policyholder. Policyholder nor any employee(s) and/or agent(s) of Policyholder shall be considered to be an employee(s) and/or agent(s) of Company. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed to create a relationship of agency, representation, joint venture, ownership, control or employment between the Parties other than that of independent Parties contracting for the purposes of effectuating this Agreement. Except

as expressly set forth herein, each Party shall bear all expenses it may occur in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

- 8.2 Legal Requirements. If at any time any federal, State or local law requires agreements of this type to include any provision, which is not already included in this Agreement, the Parties shall amend this Agreement to include such provision promptly following the request of either Party. In addition, if (a) there is (i) any change in any federal, State or local statute, law, regulation, legislation, rule, policy or general instruction or guideline, or (ii) any ruling, judgment, decree or interpretation by any court, agency or other governing body having jurisdiction over either Party (in any such case, for purposes of this section, a "Regulatory Matter"), and (b) such Regulatory Matter materially and adversely affects, or is reasonably likely to affect, the manner in which either Party is to perform or be compensated for its services under this Agreement or which shall make this Agreement unlawful, the Parties shall immediately use their best efforts to enter into a new arrangement that complies with such Regulatory Matter and approximates as closely as possible the position of the Parties under this Agreement, economically and otherwise, prior to such Regulatory Matter. If the Parties are unable to reach a new agreement within a reasonable period of time following the date upon which such Regulatory Matter arises or it becomes reasonably certain that such Regulatory Matter will arise, then either Party may terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 6.3 (Termination Without Cause). If termination is not feasible, either Party may submit the issue to binding arbitration before the American Arbitration Association ("AAA") in accordance with the AAA's then-current commercial arbitration rules for a single arbitrator. All arbitration hearings shall be held in the State of California. Arbitration proceedings shall be initiated with appropriate written notice to the other Party and to AAA. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, and judgment on such decision may be entered in any State or federal court of competent jurisdiction within the State of California. All costs and expenses of arbitration shall be borne by the Parties as determined by the arbitrator.
- 8.3 <u>No Third Party Benefit</u>. This Agreement is intended for the exclusive benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any rights or benefits in or to any third party.
- 8.4 <u>Assignment; Successors</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of all transferees, assigns and successors in interest of any kind of the Parties hereto, but no transfer or assignment of any duties or responsibilities of this Agreement may be made without the prior written permission of the other Party. Any assignment in contravention of this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall be void.
- 8.5 <u>Notices</u>. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and either delivered personally or by United States mail at the addresses set forth below or at such other addresses as the Parties may hereafter designate:

If to Policyholder:

County of Riverside/Human Resources Attn: Stacey M. Beale, Human Resources Division Manager 4080 Lemon Street, 1st Floor Riverside, CA 92502-1569

If to Company:

Medical Eye Services, Inc. Compliance Department P.O. Box 25209 Santa Ana, CA 92799-5209

All notices shall be deemed given on the date of delivery if delivered personally or on the third business day after such notice is deposited in the United States mail, addressed and sent as provided above.

8.6 Entire Agreement; Modification or Amendment. This Agreement and its attached exhibits represent the full and final understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter described herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings, written or oral, express or implied. Policyholder and Company pursuant to mutual written amendments may modify this Agreement. Amendments shall require the formal approval of the Board of Supervisors for County of Riverside to be effective, except as expressly provided herein.

Amendments that shall not require the formal approval of the Board of Supervisors to be effective may include, but shall not be limited to amendments to, the policies and procedures, plan documents, and/or operations as required by new laws and regulations, or by a court of competent jurisdiction. Such amendments shall be effective upon the date of approval by Director.

- 8.7 <u>Attachments and Exhibits</u>. Any Attachments or Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein by reference and made an integral part of this Agreement.
- 8.8 <u>Captions</u>. The captions of the various articles and sections of this Agreement are not part of the context of this Agreement, are only labels to assist in locating and reading those sections, and shall be ignored in construing this Agreement.
- 8.9 Severability. The intention of the Parties is to comply fully with all applicable laws and public policies, and this Agreement shall be construed consistently with all laws and public policies to the extent possible. If and to the extent that any court of competent jurisdiction determines that it is impossible to construe any provision of this Agreement consistently with any law or public policy and consequently holds that provision to be invalid, such holding shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect. With respect to any provision in this Agreement finally determined by such a court to be invalid or unenforceable, such

- court shall have jurisdiction to reform this Agreement (consistent with the intent of the Parties) to the extent necessary to make such provision valid and enforceable, and, as reformed, such provision shall be binding on the Parties.
- 8.10 <u>Limitations of Severability</u>. In the event the removal of a provision rendered invalid or unenforceable or declared null and void had the effect of materially altering the obligations of either Party in such manner as to cause serious financial hardship to such Party, the Party so affected shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party.
- 8.11 <u>Waiver of Breach</u>. Failure of either Party hereto to require the performance by the other Party hereto of any obligation under this Agreement shall not affect its right subsequently to require performance of that or any other obligation. Any waiver by any Party hereto of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a continuing waiver of any such provision or a waiver of any succeeding breach or modification of any other right under this Agreement.
- 8.12 Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and construed by the laws of the State of California without regard to its conflict of laws principles. All actions and proceedings arising in connection with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated exclusively in the State and federal (if permitted by law and a Party elects to file an action in federal court) courts located in the County of Riverside, State of California.
- 8.13 <u>Disputes.</u> Policyholder and Company agree to meet and confer in good faith to resolve any problems or disputes that may arise under this Agreement, prior to the filing of a claim under the Government Claims Act (Government Code section 900 et. seq.) and prior to the initiation of any litigation by either Party.
- 8.14 <u>Time is of the Essence.</u> Time shall be of the essence of each and every term, obligation, and condition of this Agreement.
- 8.15 <u>Conflict of Interest.</u> The Parties hereto and their respective employees or agents shall have no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which shall conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement.
- 8.16 Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). The Company in this Agreement is subject to all relevant requirements contained in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), Public Law 104-191, enacted August 21, 1996, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (HITECH), Public Law 111-5, enacted February 17, 2009, and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent thereto. The Company hereto agrees to cooperate in accordance with the terms and intent of this Agreement for implementation of relevant law(s) and/or regulation(s) promulgated under HIPAA and HITECH. The Company further agrees that it shall be in compliance, and shall remain in compliance with the requirement of HIPAA,

HITECH and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent hereto, as may be amended from time to time. The Parties shall adhere to all terms and conditions as outlined and specified in Exhibit C, HIPAA Business Associate Addendum, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

- 8.17 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party or be deemed to have breached this Agreement for any failure or delay in the performance of all or any part of its obligations under this Agreement if such failure or delay is due to any contingency beyond its reasonable control (a "Force Majeure"). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such contingency includes, but is not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods, pandemics, storms, earthquakes, riots, boycotts, strikes, lock-outs, acts of terror, wars and war operations, restraints of government, power or communication line failure or other circumstance beyond such Party's reasonable control, or by reason of a judgment, ruling or order of any court or agency of competent jurisdiction or change of law or regulation subsequent to the execution of this Agreement. Both Parties are obligated to provide reasonable back-up capability to avoid the potential interruptions described above. If a Force Majeure occurs, the Party delayed or unable to perform shall give immediate notice to the other Party. Policyholder acknowledges that the foregoing provision does not apply to Policyholder's obligation to make timely payment of any fees due Company, and that Company shall be entitled to all remedies set forth in this Agreement and those allowed by law for Policyholder's failure to timely pay such fees.
- 8.18 <u>Government Claims Act</u>. The provisions of the Government Claims Act (Government Code section 900 et seq.) must be followed first for any disputes arising under this Agreement.
- 8.19 <u>Certification of Authority to Execute This Agreement.</u> Company certifies that the individual signing herein has authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of Company, and may legally bind Company to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and any attachments hereto.

[Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement as of the date first written above.

COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, a political subdivision of the State of California	MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC., a California corporation
By: Jewitt Chair, Board of Supervisors	By: Jason Rome President
Date:APR 1 2 2022	Date: 1/28/22
ATTEST: Clerk of the Board Kecia Harper By: Deputy	
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Gregory P. Priamos County Counsel	
By: Dynthia M. Gowoll Lisa Sanchez Deputy County Counsel	

Date: 3-23-22

EXHIBIT A

GROUP VISION INSURANCE POLICY & CERTIFICATES

- Full Service
- Eyewear Only
- Retirees

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE POLICY

POLICYHOLDER: COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE (FULL SERVICE)

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: JANUARY 1, 2021

POLICY NUMBER: 383-088

STATE OF DELIVERY: CALIFORNIA

Read Your Policy Carefully

This Policy is a legal contract between the Policyholder and Gerber Life Insurance Company. The consideration for this contract is the application and the payment of premiums as provided hereinafter.

Agreement

This Policy and the attached application is the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us. Oral statements made by the Policyholder, by an Insured, by Our Agent, or by any other person are not part of this Policy. Only Our Executive Officer may make changes for Us. Such changes must be in writing and attached to this Policy. We reserve the right to amend the Policy from time to time. We will pay, with respect to each Insured, the insurance benefits provided in this Policy. Payment is subject to the conditions, limitations, and exceptions of this Policy. Persons eligible to be insured include dependents as defined in the Definitions section of the Insurance Certificate. This Policy is governed by the laws of the state shown above. The sections set forth on the following pages are a part of this Policy and take effect on the Policy Effective Date.

Certificates

Gerber Life Insurance Company will furnish to the Policyholder a Certificate for each Insured which will set forth the essential features of the insurance coverage.

Additional Insureds

From time to time, all new employees, members or pupils of the Policyholder eligible to and applying for insurance in such group or class may be added to the group if they meet the eligibility requirements stated in the Insurance Certificate, complete an enrollment form and pay the required premium.

Important Notice

No change in this Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 120 days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless approval be endorsed hereon or attached hereto. No agent has the right to change the Policy or to waive any part of its provisions.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

This Policy is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

VIS-P-2015 i

Enrollment and Premium for Internet-Only Groups

A. Initial Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible for the initial installation of all eligible employees under the Policy online through the MESVision website (www.MESVision.com).

B. Subsequent Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible to manage the group's eligibility online through the MESVision website. In order to properly maintain benefit eligibility and for accurate information to be reflected on the monthly billing statement, eligibility information must be entered before the 1st of each month.

C. Premium Payment

1. The Policyholder is responsible to pay the group's premium online through the MESVision website. The Policyholder may elect automatic premium payment deductions from their checking account or credit card each month.

Incorporation Provision

The provisions of the attached Certificate and all Rider(s) issued to amend this Policy after its effective date are made a part of this Policy. This Policy was signed by the Policyholder on the application. We sign here on behalf of Gerber Life Insurance Company at White Plains, NY.

GROUP INSURANCE POLICY PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE NON-PARTICIPATING

KMOREILLY PRESIDENT & CEO

COUNTERSIGNATURE OF LICENSED RESIDENT AGENT

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company
Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

VIS-P-2015 ii

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

This Certificate will take the place of any and all certificates and riders which may have been issued to You at a prior time under the Policy.

GENERAL INFORMATION

About Your Insurance

This Certificate explains the plan of insurance which is underwritten by Gerber Life Insurance Company. Read it closely to become familiar with Your plan.

Important Notice

Benefits are payable only for expenses incurred while this insurance is in force.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued may, at any time, be amended or canceled as stated in its provisions. Such an action may be taken without the consent of, or notice to, any person who claims rights or benefits under the Policy.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

The benefits for Dependents which are described in this Certificate will be applicable to Your Dependents only if You make application to have Your Dependents insured.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued provides vision care insurance only unless a Hearing Benefit Rider to the Vision Policy is selected: it does not provide emergency or other health care services. Services by Participating Providers are rendered at a negotiated discount as shown on this Certificate's Schedule of Benefits.

THIRTY-DAY RIGHT TO EXAMINE CERTIFICATE

If, for any reason, You are not completely satisfied, You may cancel this coverage by returning this Certificate to Us or to Our Administrator within thirty (30) days of receipt. The coverage shall be void from the beginning and We will promptly refund Your entire premium payment, less any benefits paid.

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

PRESIDENT & CEO

SECRETARY

Ayana Yordor

Countersignature of Licensed Resident Agent (Where Required)

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

KMOReilly

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROVISION	<u>PAGE</u>
GENERAL INFORMATION	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	
DEFINITIONS	3
EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE	4
VISION BENEFITS	4
PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE	4
LIMITATIONS	
EXCLUSIONS	
PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS	8
EXPENSES INCURRED	8
VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE	8
DEPENDENT COVERAGE	
NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE	8
ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE	
COORDINATION OF BENEFITS	
GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES	
TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES	12
LEGAL ACTIONS	
CONFORMITY TO LAW	
NON-PARTICIPATION	
CLAIMS PROVISIONS	
DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS	12
NOTICE OF CLAIM	
CLAIM FORM	
PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)	13
TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS	
PREMIUMS	13
DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT	13
GRACE PERIOD	
PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS	
REINSTATEMENT	
CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS	
PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION	
INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE	
TERMINATION OF INSURANCE	
MILITARY REINSTATEMENT	17
INDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS	17
SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES	
NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES	23

DEFINITIONS

The following terms have specific meaning as used in the Policy

Administrator means: Medical Eye Services, Inc. (MESVision) who is Our administrator for this vision insurance policy.

Covered Services – vision care services and eyewear which are specified as benefits in the Policy, this Certificate of Coverage, and the Schedule of Benefits herein.

Dependent means any of the following persons:

- 1. An Insured's legally married spouse;
- 2. Registered Domestic Partner means any two adults, of the same or different sex, who meet the definition of California Family Code 297.
- 3. Each unmarried or married child, including children, step-children, foster children, or adopted children of registered domestic partners from birth up to age 26 who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance;
- 4. Each unmarried or married child age 26 or older:
 - a. who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance because the child is incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of mental disability or physical handicap;
 - b. who was so incapacitated and is an Insured under this Policy on his or her 26th birthday; and
 - c. who has been continuously so incapacitated since his or her 26th birthday.

Dependent child coverage may continue beyond the dependent maximum age limit of 26 if the child is and remains both:

- (a) incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of a physically or mentally disabling injury, illness, or condition and
- (b) chiefly dependent upon You for support and maintenance.

We will send a notification to You at least ninety (90) days prior to the date the child attains the limiting age. For continuation of benefits for this Dependent, You must submit to the Administrator and to Us documentation that the child meets the criteria for continuation of a disabled Dependent no later than thirty (30) days prior to reaching the maximum age limit (60 days after receiving the 90-day notification). Upon receiving a request by the Insured for continued coverage of a disabled Dependent and proof of the criteria in (a) and (b) above, We will make a determination as to whether the Dependent child is entitled to continue coverage before the child reaches the limiting age. If We fail to make the necessary determination by the time the child reaches the limiting age, coverage will continue pending the determination of continued eligibility due to physical or mental disability, injury, illness or condition.

5. Those individuals in Your immediate family who meet the criteria of the definition of a Dependent as used in the current United States Internal Revenue Code and Regulations of the United States, and who have been enrolled and accepted by Us.

Eligible Vision Expense means expenses for Covered Services shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Experimental or Investigational means any treatment, therapy, procedure, drug or drug usage, biological product, facility or facility usage, equipment or equipment usage, device or device usage, or supplies which is not demonstrated to be, in accordance with generally accepted professional medical standards, to be safe and effective for use in the treatment of illness, injury or condition at issue. Services which require approval by the federal government or any agency thereof, or by any state government agency, prior to use and where such approval has not been granted at the time the services or supplies were rendered, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. Services or supplies which themselves are not approved or recognized in accordance with accepted professional medical standards, but nevertheless are authorized by law or by a government agency for use in testing, trials or other studies on human patients, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. "Experimental or Investigational" also includes services, supplies, drugs and procedures that are determined to be educational or the subject of a clinical trial. The fact that a Participating Provider, or medical professional may prescribe, order, recommend, recognize or approve any procedure.

VIS-C-2019 - 3 =

treatment, therapy, drug, biological product, facility, equipment, device or materials does not in itself make the service or materials non-Experimental or non-Investigational within this definition.

Insured means a person meeting the eligibility requirements of the Policy who is covered for benefits.

Non-Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has not contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Ophthalmologist means a person who is licensed by the state in which he or she practices as a Doctor of Medicine or Osteopathy and is qualified to practice within the medical specialty of Ophthalmology.

Optician means a person or business licensed by the state in which services are rendered to manufacture, grind and/or dispense lenses and frames prescribed by either an **Optometrist** or an **Ophthalmologist**.

Optometrist means a person licensed to practice optometry as defined by the laws of the state in which his or her services are rendered.

Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Policy means the Policy issued to the Policyholder.

Policyholder means the entity, named on the Policy's face page, to which We issue the Policy.

Prescription Change means a change of 0.50 diopter or more in one eye, or total in both eyes; or a difference in prism correction greater than 1 degree.

Prior Plan means a group insurance Vision Policy issued to the Policyholder in force immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date and which provided similar benefits of this Policy.

Standard Lenses means any plastic lenses that fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm; standard multifocal lenses include segments through flat top 35 for plastic bifocal and lenticular lenses, and plastic trifocals through flat top 35.

We, Our, Us means the Gerber Life Insurance Company.

You, Your, Yours means the Insured.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE

Benefits of this vision Policy become effective at 12:01 A.M. Pacific Time on the eligibility date established by the Policyholder. When the Policyholder pays the full amount of the premiums for You, Your coverage becomes effective automatically. If You contribute toward the cost of Your premiums, You are required to submit a completed enrollment form to the group prior to or within thirty-one (31) calendar days of the date You become eligible in order to have coverage commence on Your eligibility date. If You are a member of an internet-only group, Your coverage automatically becomes effective on the first day of the month following the date You are enrolled.

VISION BENEFITS

We will pay for Covered Services stated in the Schedule of Benefits when We receive proof that Eligible Vision Expenses have been incurred by or on behalf of You or an eligible Dependent. Expenses must be incurred while the Policy is in force and You are covered by the Policy.

For you to be eligible for reimbursement under the Policy, the vision service, device or equipment, must be:

- performed by a licensed Optometrist or Ophthalmologist who is acting within the scope of his or her license;
- 2. supplied by a retail, warehouse, or wholesale optical goods supplier meeting all applicable licensing requirements, if any.

PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE

VIS-C-2019 - 4 -

We will pay the allowed amount in the Participating Provider Schedule of Benefits for the Covered Services rendered by the Participating Providers less any copayments/Deductibles. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of the Non-Participating Schedule of Benefits less any copayments/Deductibles.

Deductibles

The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expense You incur for which no benefits will be paid. The Deductible amount will apply within any 12 consecutive months to You. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

Examination

1. One comprehensive eye examination in a 12 consecutive month period. A comprehensive examination is a general evaluation of the complete visual system. The comprehensive eye examination constitutes a single service but need not be performed at one session and includes history, general medical observation, external and ophthalmoscopic examination, gross visual fields and basic sensorimotor examination. It includes if clinically indicated: biomicroscopy, examination for cycloplegia or mydriasis, tonometry, and usually determination of the refractive state unless known, or unless the condition of the media precludes this or it is otherwise contraindicated, as in presence of trauma or severe inflammation.

Lenses

- 2. One pair of Standard Lenses in a 12 consecutive month period. "Standard Lenses" (plastic) fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm; or
- 3. One pair of contact lenses for cosmetic reasons or for convenience when provided in lieu of other eyewear once in a 12 consecutive month period.

The contact lenses are in lieu of other eyewear benefits. We will pay up to the amount shown in the Schedule of Benefits toward the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs and materials, except when You have a separate fitting benefit; or

4. One pair of non-elective (medically necessary) contact lenses every 12 consecutive month period, following cataract surgery; or for clinically indicated conditions of Myopia, Hyperopia, or Astigmatism; or when contact lenses are the only means to correct visual acuity to 20/40 for certain conditions of Keratoconus, or 20/60 for certain conditions of Anisometropia. A completed "Non-Elective (Medically Necessary) Contact Lenses Approval Request Form" along with the patient's history from the provider and approval from Us is required. This form can be obtained from the MESVision website at www.MESVision.com. If prior approval is requested, a determination will be made within five (5) business days. If the services have already been rendered, a determination will be made within thirty (30) calendar days.

Frame

5. One standard frame in a 12 consecutive month period.

The cost difference between the allowed amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be Your responsibility. Participating Providers allow a selection from frames that retail up to \$75.00 with an eye size less than 61 millimeters. If a more expensive frame is selected, You are responsible for the additional cost above the \$75.00. If the lenses are 61 millimeters or over, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is Your responsibility.

When a Participating Provider uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, the maximum allowable frame allowance will be as follows: wholesale allowance: \$47.17, warehouse allowance: \$49.35. Note that this pricing replaces the retail frame allowance shown in the Schedule of Benefits. If a more expensive frame is selected at a provider

VIS-C-2019 - 5 -

location that uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, You are responsible for the additional cost above the wholesale or warehouse pricing. Participating Providers using wholesale or warehouse pricing are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

LIMITATIONS

(Covered Services paid up to the Schedule of Benefits)

Benefit limitations are shown in the Schedule of Benefits and are described below:

- 1. Contact Lenses. The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility.
- 2. Rigid gas permeable scleral and hybrid contact lenses for advanced keratoconus may be partially covered for patients who meet the Non-Elective Contact Lens Criteria and when other contact lens approaches have been demonstrated to be unsuccessful. The patient will be responsible for the amount of the provider's charge exceeding the benefit allowance. Ocular surface diseases and treatment of underlying ocular pathologies are generally covered under the patient's medical plan.
- 3. Charges for non-Standard Lenses or lens options including, but not limited to, polycarbonate, premium progressive, photochromic, polarized, hi-index, occupational, beveled, faceted, coated (i.e., anti-reflective, scratch, mirrored, and UV), oversized exceeding the allowance for covered lenses, or other custom lens options will only be covered to the extent there is a dollar value on the schedule and We will only pay up to the amount listed. Any amount for these items above that limit shall be the responsibility of Insured person;
- 4. Tints, other than pink or rose #1 or #2. Tints are paid according to the patient's benefit allowance. The balance of the charge for standard tints (any solid tint) exceeding the allowance is a provider fee adjustment. The balance of non-standard tints or coatings (such as gradient or double gradient and mirrored) is a patient responsibility.
- 5. Any promotions and/or discounts that are combined with Covered Services under the Policy.

EXCLUSIONS

(Non-Covered Services)

We will not pay benefits for:

- 1. Any eye examination required by an employer as a condition of employment:
- 2. Care or treatment of a condition for which benefits are paid to You under any Worker's Compensation Act or similar law;
- 3. Replacement contact lens insurance offered by providers, care kits, or frame cases;
- 4. Covered Services which began prior to Your effective date or after benefits have been terminated;
- 5. Charges for which You are not legally obligated to pay;
- 6. Covered Services required by any government agency or program, (federal, state, or subdivision thereof);
- 7. Orthoptics or, vision training or subnormal vision aids;
- 8. Services that are Experimental or Investigational in nature;
- Any services provided in connection with war or any act of war, whether declared or undeclared, or condition contracted or accident occurring while on full-time active duty in the armed forces of any country or combination of countries;

10. Procedures or expenses that are not included in the Schedule of Benefits;

VIS-C-2019 - 6 =

- 11. Any charge for services that the appropriate regulatory board determines were provided as a result of a referral prohibited by State Law;
- 12. Medical or surgical treatment of the eyes, including treatment of any suspected pathology or injury that may be uncovered during the course of a covered vision examination and that may be payable under the medical benefits of the Insured's health plan. In the event that the provider determines that additional diagnostic procedures or treatment plans are indicated to confirm the suspected pathology or injury, the Insured will need to obtain care under her/his medical plan. Insureds who are covered under their medical plan should be referred back to their Primary Care Physician or Participating Medical Group;
- 13. Any Covered Services provided by another vision Policy, except benefits payable under Coordination of Benefits; and
- 14. Replacement of lenses or frames which are lost, stolen, or broken, except when benefits are otherwise available.
- 15. Plan Maximum and Frequency the Maximum benefits shown in the Schedule of Benefits for which the Insured Person was eligible and received benefits from the Prior Plan, provided that such Prior Plan would have covered substantially the same benefit Deductible and frequency as the initial Prior Plan Policy, had the Prior Plan not been cancelled.

VIS-C-2019 - 7 -

PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS

Certain Ophthalmologists, Opticians and Optometrists have agreed to be Participating Providers. A list of Participating Providers is available from Our Administrator or Us. The most current list of Participating Providers may be downloaded or delivered from the Administrator's website at www.mesvision.com or it can be delivered upon request to an Insured by contacting the Administrator's Customer Service Department at (800) 877-6372. This list may change from time to time, and is updated daily on the website. The Schedule of Benefits states separately the benefits for Participating Providers and all other providers or Non-Participating Providers.

EXPENSES INCURRED

An Eligible Vision Expense is considered incurred on the date the service is performed, or the order date of the delivered eyewear. Late claim submission for eyewear claims is determined by the eyewear delivery date.

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE

The parties agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the "Voluntary Termination of Coverage" provision in the Certificate, and Gerber Life shall delete in its entirety said provision from the Certificate.

DEPENDENT COVERAGE

Dependents are covered on the later of:

- 1. the date Dependent Coverage is first included in Your coverage; or
- 2. the date the person first qualified as Your Dependent.

NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE

With respect to the "Newborn Infant Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of birth of the dependent child in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium.

ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE

With respect to the "Adopted Children Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of placement of adoption in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Lift shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium.

VIS-C-2019 - 8 -

COORDINATION OF BENEFITS

If You or any of Your Dependents are also covered under one or more other Policies, the benefits payable under this Policy will be coordinated with the benefits payable under all other Policies.

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply only to this Coordination of Benefits section.

- 1. The term "Policy" means coverage providing hospital, medical or vision benefits or services by:
 - a) group or blanket insurance coverage, except school accident coverage;
 - b) group practice or other prepayment coverage on a group basis; or
 - c) any coverage under a labor-management trust Policy, union welfare Policies, employer organization, or employee benefit Policies.

The term "Policy" will be construed separately for a policy, contract or other arrangement for benefits or services that reserves the right to take the benefits or services of other Policies into consideration in determining its benefits, or separately for that portion which does not reserve the right.

2. The term "Covered Expense" means any necessary, reasonable, and customary item of expense, all or part of which is covered under one of the Policies.

When a Policy provides benefits in the forms of services rather than cash payments, the reasonable cash value of each service rendered will be considered to be both a Covered Expense and a benefit paid.

3. The term "Claim Period" means a calendar year or a portion of a calendar year for a claim on anyone covered under this Policy.

ORDER OF BENEFITS DETERMINATION

The order of benefit determination rules governs the order in which each Policy will pay a claim for benefits. The Policy that pays first is called the Primary policy. The Primary policy must pay benefits in accordance with its policy terms without regard to the possibility that another Policy may cover some expenses. The Policy that pays after the Primary policy is the Secondary policy. The Secondary policy may reduce the benefits it pays so that payments from all Policies do not exceed 100% of the total Covered Expense.

The rules establishing the order of benefit determination are:

- 1. The Primary policy pays or provides its benefits according to its terms of coverage and without regard to the benefits of under any other policy.
- 2. a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) below, a Policy that does not contain a coordination of benefits (COB) provision that is consistent with this provision is always primary unless the provisions of both Policies state that the complying policy is primary.
 - b) Coverage obtained by virtue of membership in a group that is designed to supplement a part of a basic package of benefits may provide that the supplementary coverage shall be excess to any other parts of the Policy provided by the Policy holder. An example of this type of situation is coverage written in connection with a closed panel policy to provide out-of-network benefits.
- 3. A Policy may consider the benefits paid or provided by another Policy in calculating payment of its benefits only when it is secondary to this Policy.
- 4. Each Policy determines its order of benefits using the first of the following rules that apply:
 - a) Non-Dependent or Dependent. The Policy that covers the Insured other than as a Dependent, for example as an employee, is the Primary policy and the Policy that covers the Insured as a Dependent is the Secondary policy. However, if the Insured is a Medicare beneficiary and, as a result of federal law, Medicare is secondary to the Policy covering the Insured as a Dependent, and primary to the Policy

VIS-C-2019 - 9 -

covering the Insured as other than a Dependent (e.g. a retired employee), then the order of benefits between the two Policies is reversed so that the Policy covering the Insured as an employee is the Secondary policy and the other Policy is the Primary policy.

- b) Dependent covered under more than one Policy. Unless there is a court decree stating otherwise, when a Dependent is covered by more than one Policy the order of benefits is determined as follows:
 - 1) For a Dependent whose parents are married or are living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. The Policy of the parent whose birthday falls earlier in the calendar year is the Primary policy; or
 - b. If both parents have the same birthday, the Policy that has covered the parent the longest is the Primary policy.
 - 2) For a Dependent whose parents are divorced or separated or not living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. If a court decree states that one of the parents is responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage and the Policy of that parent has actual knowledge of those terms, that Policy is primary. This rule applies to policy years commencing after the Policy is given notice of the court decree;
 - b. If a court decree states that both parents are responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits;
 - c. If a court decree states that the parents have joint custody without specifying that one parent has responsibility for the health care expenses or health care coverage of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits; or
 - d. If there is no court decree allocating responsibility for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the order of benefits for the child are as follows:
 - A. The Policy covering the custodial parent;
 - B. The Policy covering the spouse of the custodial parent;
 - C. The Policy covering the noncustodial parent; and then
 - D. The Policy covering the spouse of the noncustodial parent.
 - 3) For a Dependent covered under more than one Policy of individuals who are not the parents of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) or (b) above shall determine the order of benefits as if those individuals were the Dependent's parent.
- c) The Policy that covers an Insured as an employee, who is neither laid off nor retired (or as that employee's Dependent), is the Primary policy. The Policy covering the same Insured as a laid-off or retired employee (or as that employee's Dependent) is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and if, as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (c) is ignored. This rule does not apply if rule 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- d) If an Insured whose coverage is provided pursuant to COBRA or under a right of continuation provided by state or other federal law is covered under another Policy, the Policy covering the person as an employee, member, subscriber, or retiree or covering the insured as a Dependent of an employee, member, subscriber or retiree is the Primary policy and the COBRA or state or other federal continuation coverage is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (d) is ignored. This rule does not apply if the rule labeled 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- e) Longer or shorter length of coverage. The Policy that covered the Insured as an employee, member, policyholder, subscriber, or retiree longer is the Primary policy and the Policy that covered the Insured the shorter period of time is the Secondary policy.
- f) If the preceding rules do not determine the order of benefits, the Covered Expenses shall be shared equally between the Policies meeting the definition of Policy. In addition, this Policy will not pay more than it would have paid had it been the Primary policy.

VIS-C-2019 - 10 -

EFFECTS ON THE BENEFITS OF THIS POLICY

- 1. When this Policy is secondary, it may reduce its benefits so that the total benefits paid or provided by all policies during a policy year are not more than the total Covered Expenses. In determining the claims payment, the Secondary policy will calculate the benefits it would have paid in the absence of other health care coverage and apply that calculated amount to any Covered Expense under its Policy that is unpaid by the Primary policy. The Secondary policy may then reduce its payment by the amount so that, when combined with the amount paid by the Primary policy, the total benefits paid or provided by all policies for the claim do not exceed the total Covered Expense for that claim. In addition, the Secondary policy shall credit to its policy deductible any amounts it would have credited to its deductible in the absence of other health care coverage.
- 2. If an Insured is enrolled in two or more closed panel policies and if, for any reason, including the provision of service by a Non-Participating Provider, benefits are not payable by one closed panel policy, COB shall not apply between this Policy and other closed panel policies.

RIGHT TO RECEIVE AND RELEASE NEEDED INFORMATION

Certain facts about health care coverage and services are needed to apply these COB rules and to determine benefits payable under this Policy and other polices. We may get the facts We need from or give them to other organizations or persons for the purpose of applying these rules and determining benefits payable under this Policy and other policies covering the Insured claiming benefits. We need not tell, or get the consent of, any person to do this. Each Insured claiming benefits under this Policy must give Us any facts We need to apply those rules and determine benefits payable.

FACILITY OF PAYMENT

A payment made under another policy may include an amount that should have been paid under this Policy. If it does, We may pay that amount to the organization that made that payment. That amount will then be treated as though it were a benefit paid under this Policy. We will not have to pay that amount again. The term "payment made" includes providing benefits in the form of services, in which case "payment made" means the reasonable cash value of the benefits provided in the form of services.

RIGHT OF RECOVERY

If Our payment is more than We should have paid under this COB provision, We may recover the excess from one or more of the Insureds paid, or any other person or organization that may be responsible for the benefits or services provided for the Insured.

BENEFITS SUBJECT TO COORDINATION

All benefits provided under the Policy are subject to coordination.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

ENTIRE CONTRACT: CHANGES

This Certificate, the Policy, the application of the Policyholder and any applicable state rider or endorsement, constitute(s) the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us, and any statement made by the Policyholder or by any Insured person shall, in the absence of fraud, be deemed a representation and not a warranty. No such statement shall be used in defense to a claim hereunder unless it is contained in a written application.

No change in the Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 30- days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless such approval be endorsed herein or attached hereto. No agent has authority to change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

VIS-C-2019 - 11 -

TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES

After two (2) years from the date of issue of the Policy, no misstatement of the Policyholder, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in this application shall be used to void the Policy; and after two (2) years from the effective date of the coverage with respect to which any claim is made no misstatement of any employee eligible for coverage under the Policy, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in an application under the Policy shall be used to deny a claim for loss incurred or disability (as defined in the Policy) commencing after expiration of such two (2) years.

LEGAL ACTIONS

No action at law or in equity shall be brought to recover on the Policy prior to the expiration of sixty (60) days after written proof of loss has been furnished in accordance with the requirements of the Policy. No such action shall be brought after the expiration of three (3) years after the time written proof of loss is required to be furnished.

CONFORMITY TO LAW

With respect to the "Conformity to Law" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that any provision of the Policy, which on its Effective Date is in conflict with the statutes of the State of California, is changed to conform to the minimum standards of these statutes. As such, the Parties agree that Gerber Life shall delete the phrase "jurisdiction in which it was issued" and replace it with "State of California."

NON-PARTICIPATION

The Policy will not share in Our surplus or earnings.

CLAIMS PROVISIONS

DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS

Participating Providers have agreed to bill Our Administrator directly. It is Your responsibility to identify yourself as having vision coverage at the time of service. If You do not, You may be required to pay for services and/or materials at the time of the visit, and any submitted claim will be paid to the Participating Provider. The Participating Provider is required to refund the amount paid by You, less any Deductibles or payments for non-covered services. If You do not inform the Participating Provider or, if You obtain services from a Non-Participating Provider the "Notice of Claim" provision shall be applicable.

NOTICE OF CLAIM

Written notice of claim must be given to Our Administrator within twenty (20) days after the occurrence or commencement of any loss covered by the Policy, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably possible. The notice should include sufficient information to identify the Insured. Claim forms may be obtained from a Participating Provider, Our Administrator, Policyholder, or Us. When the Administrator receives the notice of the claim, the Administrator will send the forms for filing a vision claim. The forms will be sent within fifteen (15) days of the request from the claimant.

CLAIM FORM

Upon receipt of a written notice of claim, We will furnish to the claimant such forms as are usually furnished for filing proofs of loss. If such forms are not furnished within fifteen (15) days after the giving of such notice the claimant shall be deemed to have complied with the requirements of the Policy as to proof of loss upon submitting, within the time fixed in the Policy for filing proofs of loss, written proof covering the occurrence, the character and the extent of the loss for which claim is made.

VIS-C-2019 - 12 -

PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)

Written proof of loss must be furnished to Our Administrator, in case of claim for loss for which the Policy provides any periodic payment contingent upon continuing loss, within ninety (90) days after the termination of the period for which We are liable, and in case of claim for any other loss, within ninety (90) days after the date of such loss. Failure to furnish such proof within the time required shall not invalidate nor reduce any claim if it was not reasonably possible to give proof within such time, provided such proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible and in no event, except in the absence of legal capacity of the employee, proof must be sent no later than one (1) year from the date of service (date of service means the calendar date on which Covered Services were provided).

TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

Subject to due written proof of loss, all benefits due under the Policy will be paid to or on behalf of the Insured as they accrue and any balance remaining unpaid at termination of the period of liability will be paid to the Insured immediately upon receipt of due written proof.

PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

If the Policy provides coverage of a claimant as a Dependent of a parent who has legal responsibility for the Dependent's medical care and such parent does not have custody of the Dependent, We may, upon request of the custodial parent, make the payments directly to the provider of care or the non-covered custodial parent. Any payments so made will release Us from all further liability to the Insured to the extent of the payments made.

Benefits for other losses are paid to the Participating Provider or, if services are rendered by a Non-Participating Provider, the payment will be made to the Insured. Any accrued benefits unpaid at the Insured's death will be paid to the Insured's estate.

Requests for payment adjustments should be made within 180 days of payment or denial. Payment may require approval prior to additional payment and may be subject to the claim submission deadline.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

PREMIUMS

DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

Premiums are payable on a monthly basis, unless We agree to some other mode of payment. Premiums are due on the first day of each month. If We agree to change the method of paying premiums, any pro rata adjusted premium required will be payable.

GRACE PERIOD

A grace period of thirty-one (31) days will be granted for the payment of premiums accruing after the first premium, during which grace period the Policy shall continue in force, but the Policyholder shall be liable to Us for the payment of the premium accruing for the period the Policy continues in force. If a premium is not paid by the end of the grace period, Your coverage will terminate at the end of the grace period.

PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS

Premiums are payable at Our office in White Plains, New York, or to Our Administrator. The first premium for each Insured is due on the Certificate Effective Date. Each monthly payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for a period of one month. If the method of paying premiums is changed by agreement as indicated above, each premium payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for the agreed upon period.

VIS-C-2019 - 13 -

REINSTATEMENT

There shall be no provision in a group disability policy relative to reinstatement of the Policy after lapse because of default in the payment of premium.

CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS

With respect to the "Change in Premium Rates and Benefits" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life has the right to change the premiums upon renewal only if Gerber Life has provided at least 180 days advance written notice to the Policyholder.

VIS-C-2019 - 14 -

PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

We maintain physical, electronic, and administrative safeguards that meet federal and state requirements. The Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) is limited to persons who need the information for authorized business purposes. We will not use PHI for marketing purposes. If you would like to obtain a copy of our "Notice of Privacy Practices", which explains your rights in relation to PHI, please submit your written request to:

Privacy Compliance Office / Legal Department Gerber Life Insurance Company 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, NY 10605

INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The Insured, or the Insured's representative, has the right to appeal any denial of a claim for benefits by submitting a written request for reconsideration with Us. If an Insured's claim is denied in whole or in part, he/she will receive written notification of the denial. If the Insured is not satisfied with a determination made by Us, the Insured is entitled to an appeal process or "Grievance" as described. A Grievance must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after the occurrence.

You (the Insured) or Insured's authorized representative can file a Grievance on the website (www.MESVision.com), by fax, by telephone, or by mail. To file a Grievance please contact Our Administrator:

Medical Eye Services, Inc. Attn: Benefit Resolutions Department P.O. Box 25209 Santa Ana, CA 92799 Website: www.MESVision.com Telephone #: 800-877-6372

Fax #: 714-619-4662

If you need the help of the California Department of Insurance (CDI) with a complaint involving a grievance that has not been satisfactorily resolved by the Administrator and/or Gerber Life Insurance Company, you may file a complaint online (https://cdiapps.insurance.ca.gov/CP/login/), call the CDI's toll-free number at 1-800-927-4357, or write to:

California Department of Insurance Consumer Services Division 300 South Spring Street Los Angeles, CA 90013

VIS-C-2019 - 15 -

CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE

With respect to the "Cancellation of Insurance" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life may cancel the Policy at any time by advance written notice delivered to the employer, or mailed to the employer's last address, as shown on Gerber Life's records, stating when, not less than 60 days thereafter, such cancellation shall be effective.

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

We may terminate the Policy on any premium due date. We will give the Policyholder, the insurance producer, and any administrator at least 60 days advance written notice of such termination, except for non-payment of premiums when the grace period will apply. The Policyholder may terminate the Policy at any time by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Administrator. The Policy will then terminate on the requested termination date or some later date on which the Policyholder and the Administrator have agreed. The Policyholder remains responsible for the payment of premiums to the date of termination. If thirty (30) days written notice of termination is not provided to the Administrator, the termination date shall be effective on the last day of the month after any date(s) of the service rendered to any Insured person or the Policyholder's requested termination effective date, whichever is later, subject to the Insured notification requirements.

If nonemployee certificate holders or employees of more than one employer are covered under the Policy, written notice shall also be delivered by mail to the last known address of each nonemployee certificate holder or affected employer or, if the action does not affect all employees and Dependents of one or more employers, to the last known address of each affected employee certificate holder, at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the action.

The coverage on any Insured will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Insured ceases to be eligible for coverage;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

The coverage of any Dependent will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Dependent ceases to be an eligible Dependent;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

Termination of coverage will not prejudice any existing claim.

VIS-C-2019 - 16 -

MILITARY REINSTATEMENT

Members of the United States Military Reserve and The National Guard who are called to active duty on or after January 1, 2007 will be reinstated upon payment of premium as a covered Insured without a waiting period or exclusions of coverage for pre-existing conditions.

INDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS

Applicable to Insureds when the group is subject to either Title X of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) (groups of 20 or more eligible employees) as amended or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA) (groups of 2 to 19 eligible employees). The group should be contacted for more information.

In accordance with the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) as amended and the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA), an Insured will be entitled to elect to continue group coverage under this Policy if the Insured would otherwise lose coverage because of a Qualifying Event that occurs while the group is subject to the continuation of group coverage provisions of COBRA or Cal-COBRA.

The benefits under the group continuation of coverage will be identical to the benefits that would be provided to the Insured if the Qualifying Event had not occurred (including any changes in such coverage).

Note: The Insured will not be entitled to benefits under Cal-COBRA if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare") or is covered under another group health group that provides coverage without exclusions or limitations with respect to any Pre-existing condition. Under COBRA, the Insured will not be entitled to benefits if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to Medicare.

A. Qualifying Event

A Qualifying Event is defined as a loss of coverage as a result of any one of the following occurrences.

- 1. With respect to the subscriber:
 - a) the termination of employment (other than by reason of gross misconduct); or
 - b) the reduction of hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility.
- 2. With respect to the Dependent spouse or Dependent Domestic Partner* and Dependent children (children born to or placed for adoption with the subscriber, or subscriber's Dependent spouse or Domestic Partner, during a COBRA or Cal-COBRA continuation period may be immediately added as Dependents, provided the group is properly notified of the birth or placement for adoption, and such children are enrolled within thirty (30) days of the birth or placement for adoption):

*Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.

- a) the death of the subscriber; or
- b) the termination of the subscriber's employment (other than by reason of such subscriber's gross misconduct); or
- c) the reduction of the subscriber's hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility; or
- d) the divorce or legal separation of the subscriber from the Dependent spouse or termination of the domestic partnership; or
- e) the subscriber's entitlement to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare"); or
- f) a Dependent child's loss of Dependent status under the Policy.

VIS-C-2019 - 17 -

- 3. For COBRA only, with respect to a subscriber who is covered as a retiree, that retiree's Dependent spouse and Dependent children, the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code, commencing on or after July 1, 1986.
- 4. With respect to any of the above, such other Qualifying Event as may be added to Title X of COBRA or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA).

B. Notification of a Qualifying Event

1. With respect to COBRA Insureds:

The Insured must notify the group, in writing, of all qualifying events (divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partner or a child's loss of Dependent status) within sixty (60) days of the date of the qualifying event. If the Insured fails to make the notification to the group within the required sixty (60) days, the Insured will be disqualified from receiving continuation coverage. The Insured must elect continuation coverage within the sixty (60) days of either (1) the date that the Insured's coverage under the Contract terminated or will terminate by reason of a qualifying event, or (2) the date the Insured was sent the notice of the required benefit information, premium information, enrollment forms, and disclosures to allow the qualified beneficiary to formally elect continuation coverage, whichever is later.

The group is responsible for notifying its COBRA administrator (or group administrator if the group does not have a COBRA administrator) of the Insured's death, termination, or reduction of hours of employment, the subscriber's Medicare entitlement or the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code.

When the COBRA administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the COBRA administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage or (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event.

If the Insured does not notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

2. With respect to Cal-COBRA Insureds:

The Insured is responsible for notifying the group in writing of the Employee's/subscribers death or Medicare entitlement, of divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partnership, or a child's loss of Dependent status under this Policy. Such notice must be given within sixty (60) days of the date of the later of the Qualifying Event or the date on which coverage would otherwise terminate under this Policy because of a Qualifying Event. Failure to provide such notice within sixty (60) days will disqualify the Insured from receiving continuation coverage under Cal-COBRA.

The group is responsible for notifying the vision plan Administrator in writing of termination or reduction of hours of employment within thirty (30) days of the Qualifying Event.

When the vision plan Administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the vision plan Administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then give the group notice in writing of the Insured's election of continuation coverage within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage, and (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event. The written election notice must be delivered to the vision plan Administrator by first-class mail or other reliable means.

If the Insured does not notify the vision plan Administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

VIS-C-2019 - 18 -

If this Policy replaces a previous Policy that was in effect with the group's, and the Insured had elected Cal-COBRA continuation coverage under the previous group, the Insured may choose to continue to be covered by this Policy for the balance of the period that the Insured could have continued to be covered under the previous group, provided that the Insured notify the vision plan Administrator within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the termination of the previous group.

C. Duration and Extension of Continuation of Group Coverage

Cal-COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for up to a maximum of 36 months regardless of the type of Qualifying Event.

COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for 18, 29, or 36 months depending on the type of Qualifying Event. Contact your group for more information.

COBRA Insureds who reach the 18-month or 29-month maximum available under COBRA, may elect to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA for a maximum period of 36 months from the date the Insured's continuation coverage began under COBRA. If elected, the Cal-COBRA coverage will begin after the COBRA coverage ends.

Note: COBRA Insureds must exhaust all the COBRA coverage to which they are entitled before they can become eligible to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA.

In no event will continuation of group coverage under COBRA, Cal-COBRA or a combination of COBRA and Cal-COBRA be extended for more than 3 years from the date the Qualifying Event has occurred which originally entitled the Insured to continue group coverage under this Policy.

Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.

D. Notification Requirements of Cal-COBRA Extension

The group or its COBRA administrator is responsible for notifying COBRA Insureds of their right to possibly continue coverage under Cal-COBRA at least ninety (90) calendar days before their COBRA coverage will end. The COBRA Insured should contact the group for more information about continuing coverage. If the Insured elects to apply for continuation of coverage under Cal-COBRA, the Insured must notify the group at least thirty (30) days before COBRA termination.

E. Payment of Premiums

Premiums for the Insured continuing coverage shall be 102 percent of the applicable group premium rate if the Insured is a COBRA Insured, or 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate if the Insured is a Cal-COBRA Insured, except for the Insured who is eligible to continue group coverage to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, in which case, the premiums for months 19 through 29 shall be 150 percent of the applicable group premium rate.

Note: For COBRA Insureds who are eligible to extend group coverage under COBRA to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, premiums for Cal-COBRA coverage shall be 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate for months 30 through 36.

If the Insured is enrolled in COBRA and is contributing to the cost of coverage, the group shall be responsible for collecting and submitting all premium contributions in the manner and for the period established under this Policy.

Cal-COBRA Insureds must submit premiums directly to the Vision Plan Administrator. The initial premiums must be paid within forty-five (45) days of the date the Insured provided written notification to the Vision Plan Administrator of the election to continue coverage and be sent to the Vision Plan Administrator through the

VIS-C-2019 -- 19 --

MESVision website at (www.MESVision.com) or by first-class mail or other reliable means. The premiums payment must equal an amount sufficient to pay any required amounts that are due. Failure to submit the correct amount within the 45-day period will disqualify the Insured from continuation coverage.

F. Effective Date of the Continuation of Coverage

The continuation of coverage will begin on the date the Insured's coverage under this Policy would otherwise terminate due to the occurrence of a Qualifying Event and it will continue for up to the applicable period, provided that coverage is timely elected and so long as premiums are timely paid.

G. Termination of Continuation of Group Coverage

The continuation of group coverage will cease if any one of the following events occurs prior to the expiration of the applicable period of continuation of group coverage:

- 1. discontinuance of this group vision insurance Policy (if the group continues to provide any group benefit for subscribers, the Insured may be able to continue coverage);
- 2. failure to timely and fully pay the amount of required premiums as applicable. Coverage will end as of the end of the period for which premiums were paid;
- 3. the Insured becomes entitled to Medicare;
- 4. the Insured no longer resides in California;
- 5. the Insured commits fraud or deception in the use of the benefits of this Policy.

Continuation of group coverage in accordance with COBRA or Cal-COBRA will not be terminated except as described in this provision. In no event will coverage extend beyond 36 months.

H. Notification Requirements

The group must notify a qualified beneficiary during the 180 days prior to the expiration of continuation coverage of (1) the date continuation coverage will terminate and (2) the availability of any conversion coverage that is available.

VIS-C-2019 - 20 -

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES

If Covered Services are provided by a participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of prevailing fees¹, but not to exceed the "Participating Provider" allowances. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is the patient's responsibility.

Deductible Amounts²:

Exam \$0 Materials \$0

Covered Services & Benefits Allowances

	Participating Provider	Non-Participating Provider
Exam:		
Ophthalmologic Examination	Covered in Full	\$60
Optometric Examination	Covered in Full	\$50
Lenses:		
Single Vision	Covered in Full	\$43
Bifocal	Covered in Full	\$60
Trifocal	Covered in Full	\$75
Standard Progressive⁵	Covered in Full	\$75
Premium Progressive ⁶	\$89.50	\$ 75
Aphakic/Lenticular Monofocal	Covered in Full	\$120
Aphakic/Lenticular Multifocal	Covered in Full	\$200
High Power of 7.25 Diopters or more additional (per	Covered in Full	\$0
lens)		
Prism 1 ½ to 4 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Prism 4 ½ to 10 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Slab-off prism (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$ 0
Polycarbonate for children up to age 19:		
Single Vision	\$85	\$55
Bifocal	\$85	\$0
Contact Lenses ³ :		
Non-Elective/Medically Necessary (one pair)	Covered in Full	\$250
Elective/Cosmetic without UV Protection	\$100	\$100
Frame⁴:		
Selection up to a retail amount of	\$75	\$40

Prevailing Fees means a fee which falls within a range of charges, as submitted to Medical Eye Services, Inc. by providers within a geographical area.

VIS-C-2019 - 21 =

The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expenses: (a) that You incur and (b) for which no benefits will be paid. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. To determine the appropriate benefit allowance, all contact lens claims must include the contact lens manufacturer and brand. Some retail and wholesale providers do not participate in this program. Please check with your provider

- before placing your order. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility. Please refer to the Limitations section of this Certificate.
- The difference between the benefit amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be a patient responsibility. The retail frame allowance is reduced 30%-35% at provider locations employing wholesale or warehouse pricing. These provider locations are identified in the Participating Provider directory at www.mesvision.com. Some designer frames may be restricted by the manufacturer.
- Standard progressive lenses (also referred to as no-line bifocals) allow you to see distance, mid-range and near clearly; however, there may be some peripheral distortion. Standard progressive lenses also need to be a minimum height in order to transition properly between distance and near vision. Standard progressive lenses are a covered-in-full benefit.
- Premium progressive lenses are digitally surfaced so they provide a wider reading area, less peripheral distortion and less height restrictions, than standard progressive lenses. Premium progressive lenses with higher levels of customization, including high definition lenses, are not a covered-in-full benefit; the patient is responsible for the balance between the maximum plan benefit and the provider's usual, customary, and reasonable charge.

You may also refer to the website at www.MESVision.com for benefit eligibility and claim history information or call 1-800-877-6372 to speak to a representative. Written inquiries may be forwarded to: Medical Eye Services, Inc., P.O. Box 25209, Santa Ana, CA 92799.

VIS-C-2019 - 22 -

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES

We are pleased to help you obtain vision care services in the language you understand at no charge to you.

Interpreter Services

If you or a family member have limited English speaking skills and need verbal interpreter services or assistance arranging vision care services, the vision Policy administrator can assist you:

Call 1-800-877-6372 for assistance with interpreter services; or Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired. Hours of Operation: Monday – Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm Pacific Time

Translation of Written Information to Insureds

The language most frequently requested to be translated among our membership is referred to as the "threshold language", which is currently Spanish. Upon your request, the administrator will translate written information that impacts your vision care coverage into the threshold language(s). To request translation of vision benefit documents:

Call 1-800-877-6372, Customer Service; or Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired. Hours of Operation: Monday – Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm Pacific Time

If unable to reach us, please contact the Department of Insurance Consumer Communications Bureau toll-free number at 1-800-927-HELP (4357) or TDD 1-800-482-4833. Telephone lines are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time, Monday through Friday, except state holidays.

VIS-C-2019 - 23 =

Gerber Life Insurance Company

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

NOTICE

This notice is added to and made part of the Policy or Certificate to which it is attached in compliance with Federal law.

THE POLICY AND THE CERTIFICATES ISSUED UNDER IT PROVIDE VISION-ONLY INSURANCE. THE COVERAGE PROVIDED UNDER THE POLICY IS A SUPPLEMENT TO HEALTH INSURANCE AND IS NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE. LACK OF MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE OR OTHER MINIMUM ESSENTIAL COVERAGE MAY RESULT IN AN ADDITIONAL PAYMENT WITH YOUR TAXES.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to alter or affect any of the provisions of the Policy.

Signed by the Company:

President & CEO

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company
Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

Administrator
Medical Eye Services, Inc.
P.O. Box 25209
Santa Ana, CA 92799-5209
(800) 877-6372/TDD Line (877) 735-2929/www.mesvision.com

VIS-C-2019 - 25 -

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE POLICY

POLICYHOLDER: RIVERSIDE COUNTY OF (EYEWEAR ONLY)

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: JANUARY 1, 2021

POLICY NUMBER: 383-088

STATE OF DELIVERY: CALIFORNIA

Read Your Policy Carefully

This Policy is a legal contract between the Policyholder and Gerber Life Insurance Company. The consideration for this contract is the application and the payment of premiums as provided hereinafter.

Agreement

This Policy and the attached application is the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us. Oral statements made by the Policyholder, by an Insured, by Our Agent, or by any other person are not part of this Policy. Only Our Executive Officer may make changes for Us. Such changes must be in writing and attached to this Policy. We reserve the right to amend the Policy from time to time. We will pay, with respect to each Insured, the insurance benefits provided in this Policy. Payment is subject to the conditions, limitations, and exceptions of this Policy. Persons eligible to be insured include dependents as defined in the Definitions section of the Insurance Certificate. This Policy is governed by the laws of the state shown above. The sections set forth on the following pages are a part of this Policy and take effect on the Policy Effective Date.

Certificates

Gerber Life Insurance Company will furnish to the Policyholder a Certificate for each Insured which will set forth the essential features of the insurance coverage.

Additional Insureds

From time to time, all new employees, members or pupils of the Policyholder eligible to and applying for insurance in such group or class may be added to the group if they meet the eligibility requirements stated in the Insurance Certificate, complete an enrollment form and pay the required premium.

Important Notice

No change in this Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 120 days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless approval be endorsed hereon or attached hereto. No agent has the right to change the Policy or to waive any part of its provisions.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

This Policy is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

VIS-P-2015 i

Enrollment and Premium for Internet-Only Groups

A. Initial Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible for the initial installation of all eligible employees under the Policy online through the MESVision website (www.MESVision.com).

B. Subsequent Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible to manage the group's eligibility online through the MESVision website. In order to properly maintain benefit eligibility and for accurate information to be reflected on the monthly billing statement, eligibility information must be entered before the 1st of each month.

C. Premium Payment

The Policyholder is responsible to pay the group's premium online through the MESVision website.
The Policyholder may elect automatic premium payment deductions from their checking account or
credit card each month.

Incorporation Provision

The provisions of the attached Certificate and all Rider(s) issued to amend this Policy after its effective date are made a part of this Policy. This Policy was signed by the Policyholder on the application. We sign here on behalf of Gerber Life Insurance Company at White Plains, NY.

GROUP INSURANCE POLICY PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE NON-PARTICIPATING

KMOREILLY PRESIDENT & CEO

COUNTERSIGNATURE OF LICENSED RESIDENT AGENT

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company
Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

VIS-P-2015 ii

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

This Certificate will take the place of any and all certificates and riders which may have been issued to You at a prior time under the Policy.

GENERAL INFORMATION

About Your Insurance

This Certificate explains the plan of insurance which is underwritten by Gerber Life Insurance Company. Read it closely to become familiar with Your plan.

Important Notice

Benefits are payable only for expenses incurred while this insurance is in force.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued may, at any time, be amended or canceled as stated in its provisions. Such an action may be taken without the consent of, or notice to, any person who claims rights or benefits under the Policy.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

The benefits for Dependents which are described in this Certificate will be applicable to Your Dependents only if You make application to have Your Dependents insured.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued provides vision care insurance only unless a Hearing Benefit Rider to the Vision Policy is selected: it does not provide emergency or other health care services. Services by Participating Providers are rendered at a negotiated discount as shown on this Certificate's Schedule of Benefits.

THIRTY-DAY RIGHT TO EXAMINE CERTIFICATE

If, for any reason, You are not completely satisfied, You may cancel this coverage by returning this Certificate to Us or to Our Administrator within thirty (30) days of receipt. The coverage shall be void from the beginning and We will promptly refund Your entire premium payment, less any benefits paid.

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

PRESIDENT & CEO

SECRETARY

Syana Yordor

Countersignature of Licensed Resident Agent (Where Required)

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

KMOReilly

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROVISION	<u>PAGE</u>
GENERAL INFORMATION	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
DEFINITIONS	3
EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE	4
VISION BENEFITS	4
PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE	4
LIMITATIONS	5
EXCLUSIONS	
PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS	
EXPENSES INCURRED	8
VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE	8
DEPENDENT COVERAGE	
NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE	8
ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE	
COORDINATION OF BENEFITS	8
GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES	11
TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES	
LEGAL ACTIONS	
CONFORMITY TO LAW	
NON-PARTICIPATION	
CLAIMS PROVISIONS	
DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS	
NOTICE OF CLAIM	12
CLAIM FORM	12
PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)	13
TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	13
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS	
PREMIUMS	13
DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT	
GRACE PERIOD	
PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS	
REINSTATEMENT	
CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS	
PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION	15
INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	15
CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE	16
TERMINATION OF INSURANCE	
MILITARY REINSTATEMENT	17
INDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS	17
SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES	21
NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES	23

DEFINITIONS

The following terms have specific meaning as used in the Policy

Administrator means: Medical Eye Services, Inc. (MESVision) who is Our administrator for this vision insurance policy.

Covered Services – vision care services and eyewear which are specified as benefits in the Policy, this Certificate of Coverage, and the Schedule of Benefits herein.

Dependent means any of the following persons:

- 1. An Insured's legally married spouse;
- 2. Registered Domestic Partner means any two adults, of the same or different sex, who meet the definition of California Family Code 297.
- Each unmarried or married child, including children, step-children, foster children, or adopted children of registered domestic partners from birth up to age 26 who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance;
- 4. Each unmarried or married child age 26 or older:
 - a. who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance because the child is incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of mental disability or physical handicap;
 - b. who was so incapacitated and is an Insured under this Policy on his or her 26th birthday; and
 - c. who has been continuously so incapacitated since his or her 26th birthday.

Dependent child coverage may continue beyond the dependent maximum age limit of 26 if the child is and remains both:

- (a) incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of a physically or mentally disabling injury, illness, or condition and
- (b) chiefly dependent upon You for support and maintenance.

We will send a notification to You at least ninety (90) days prior to the date the child attains the limiting age. For continuation of benefits for this Dependent, You must submit to the Administrator and to Us documentation that the child meets the criteria for continuation of a disabled Dependent no later than thirty (30) days prior to reaching the maximum age limit (60 days after receiving the 90-day notification). Upon receiving a request by the Insured for continued coverage of a disabled Dependent and proof of the criteria in (a) and (b) above, We will make a determination as to whether the Dependent child is entitled to continue coverage before the child reaches the limiting age. If We fail to make the necessary determination by the time the child reaches the limiting age, coverage will continue pending the determination of continued eligibility due to physical or mental disability, injury, illness or condition.

5. Those individuals in Your immediate family who meet the criteria of the definition of a Dependent as used in the current United States Internal Revenue Code and Regulations of the United States, and who have been enrolled and accepted by Us.

Eligible Vision Expense means expenses for Covered Services shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Experimental or Investigational means any treatment, therapy, procedure, drug or drug usage, biological product, facility or facility usage, equipment or equipment usage, device or device usage, or supplies which is not demonstrated to be, in accordance with generally accepted professional medical standards, to be safe and effective for use in the treatment of illness, injury or condition at issue. Services which require approval by the federal government or any agency thereof, or by any state government agency, prior to use and where such approval has not been granted at the time the services or supplies were rendered, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. Services or supplies which themselves are not approved or recognized in accordance with accepted professional medical standards, but nevertheless are authorized by law or by a government agency for use in testing, trials or other studies on human patients, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. "Experimental or Investigational" also includes services, supplies, drugs and procedures that are determined to be educational or the subject of a clinical trial. The fact that a Participating Provider, or medical professional may prescribe, order, recommend, recognize or approve any procedure.

VIS-C-2019 - 3 -

treatment, therapy, drug, biological product, facility, equipment, device or materials does not in itself make the service or materials non-Experimental or non-Investigational within this definition.

Insured means a person meeting the eligibility requirements of the Policy who is covered for benefits.

Non-Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has not contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Ophthalmologist means a person who is licensed by the state in which he or she practices as a Doctor of Medicine or Osteopathy and is qualified to practice within the medical specialty of Ophthalmology.

Optician means a person or business licensed by the state in which services are rendered to manufacture, grind and/or dispense lenses and frames prescribed by either an **Optometrist** or an **Ophthalmologist**.

Optometrist means a person licensed to practice optometry as defined by the laws of the state in which his or her services are rendered.

Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Policy means the Policy issued to the Policyholder.

Policyholder means the entity, named on the Policy's face page, to which We issue the Policy.

Prescription Change means a change of 0.50 diopter or more in one eye, or total in both eyes; or a difference in prism correction greater than 1 degree.

Prior Plan means a group insurance Vision Policy issued to the Policyholder in force immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date and which provided similar benefits of this Policy.

Standard Lenses means any plastic lenses that fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm; standard multifocal lenses include segments through flat top 35 for plastic bifocal and lenticular lenses, and plastic trifocals through flat top 35.

We, Our, Us means the Gerber Life Insurance Company.

You, Your, Yours means the Insured.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE

Benefits of this vision Policy become effective at 12:01 A.M. Pacific Time on the eligibility date established by the Policyholder. When the Policyholder pays the full amount of the premiums for You, Your coverage becomes effective automatically. If You contribute toward the cost of Your premiums, You are required to submit a completed enrollment form to the group prior to or within thirty-one (31) calendar days of the date You become eligible in order to have coverage commence on Your eligibility date. If You are a member of an internet-only group, Your coverage automatically becomes effective on the first day of the month following the date You are enrolled.

VISION BENEFITS

We will pay for Covered Services stated in the Schedule of Benefits when We receive proof that Eligible Vision Expenses have been incurred by or on behalf of You or an eligible Dependent. Expenses must be incurred while the Policy is in force and You are covered by the Policy.

For you to be eligible for reimbursement under the Policy, the vision service, device or equipment, must be:

- performed by a licensed Optometrist or Ophthalmologist who is acting within the scope of his or her license;
 or
- 2. supplied by a retail, warehouse, or wholesale optical goods supplier meeting all applicable licensing requirements, if any.

PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE

VIS-C-2019 - 4 -

We will pay the allowed amount in the Participating Provider Schedule of Benefits for the Covered Services rendered by the Participating Providers less any copayments/Deductibles. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of the Non-Participating Schedule of Benefits less any copayments/Deductibles.

Deductibles

The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expense You incur for which no benefits will be paid. The Deductible amount will apply within any 12 consecutive months to You. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

Lenses

- 1. One pair of Standard Lenses in a 12 consecutive month period.
- 2. One pair of contact lenses for cosmetic reasons or for convenience when provided in lieu of other eyewear once in a 12 consecutive month period.

The contact lenses are in lieu of other eyewear benefits. We will pay up to the amount shown in the Schedule of Benefits toward the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs and materials, except when You have a separate fitting benefit; or

3. One pair of non-elective (medically necessary) contact lenses every 12 consecutive month period, when required following cataract surgery; or for clinically indicated conditions of Myopia, Hyperopia, or Astigmatism; or when contact lenses are the only means to correct visual acuity to 20/40 for certain conditions of Keratoconus, or 20/60 for certain conditions of Anisometropia. A completed "Non-Elective (Medically Necessary) Contact Lenses Approval Request Form" along with the patient's history from the provider and approval from Us is required. This form can be obtained from the MESVision website at www.MESVision.com. If prior approval is requested, a determination will be made within five (5) business days. If the services have already been rendered, a determination will be made within thirty (30) calendar days.

Frame

4. One standard frame in a 12 consecutive month period up to the allowed amount shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

The cost difference between the allowed amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be Your responsibility. Participating Providers allow a selection from frames that retail up to \$75.00 with an eye size less than 61 millimeters. If a more expensive frame is selected, You are responsible for the additional cost above the \$75.00. If the lenses are 61 millimeters or over, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is Your responsibility.

When a Participating Provider uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, the maximum allowable frame allowance will be as follows: wholesale allowance: \$47.17, warehouse allowance: \$49.35. Note that this pricing replaces the retail frame allowance shown in the Schedule of Benefits. If a more expensive frame is selected at a provider location that uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, You are responsible for the additional cost above the wholesale or warehouse pricing. Participating Providers using wholesale or warehouse pricing are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

LIMITATIONS

(Covered Services paid up to the Schedule of Benefits)

Benefit limitations are shown in the Schedule of Benefits and are described below:

VIS-C-2019 - 5 -

- 1. Contact Lenses. The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility.
- 2. Contact Lens Fittings. Standard contact lens fitting is for existing contact lens users who wear disposable, daily wear, or extended wear contact lenses. It includes two follow-up visits within three months. The standard contact lens fitting is covered in full following any applicable copayments or Deductibles. Complex contact lens fitting is for a member who has never worn contact lenses or who requires a more complex fitting for toric, gas permeable, or multi-focal contact lenses. Both standard and premium fittings may include two fitting/evaluation follow-ups within three months. The complex contact lens fitting is covered up to a \$20-\$240 retail allowance, following any applicable copayments or Deductibles. Any amount over the allowance is patient's responsibility.
- 3. Rigid gas permeable scleral and hybrid contact lenses for advanced keratoconus may be partially covered for patients who meet the Non-Elective Contact Lens Criteria and when other contact lens approaches have been demonstrated to be unsuccessful. The patient will be responsible for the amount of the provider's charge exceeding the benefit allowance. Ocular surface diseases and treatment of underlying ocular pathologies are generally covered under the patient's medical plan.
- 4. Charges for non-Standard Lenses or lens options including, but not limited to, polycarbonate, premium progressive, photochromic, polarized, hi-index, occupational, beveled, faceted, coated (i.e., anti-reflective, scratch, mirrored, and UV), oversized exceeding the allowance for covered lenses, or other custom lens options will only be covered to the extent there is a dollar value on the schedule and We will only pay up to the amount listed. Any amount for these items above that limit shall be the responsibility of Insured person;
- 5. Tints, other than pink or rose #1 or #2. Tints are paid according to the patient's benefit allowance. The balance of the charge for standard tints (any solid tint) exceeding the allowance is a provider fee adjustment. The balance of non-standard tints or coatings (such as gradient or double gradient and mirrored) is a patient responsibility.
- 6. New-patient intermediate (follow-up) examinations: You should see the same doctor for both the comprehensive and intermediate (follow-up) examinations in order to receive the maximum benefit and to optimize continuity of care. When You elect to have a comprehensive examination and You are eligible for an intermediate (follow-up) examination or select a different provider to perform the intermediate (follow-up) examination, You will be responsible for the difference between the intermediate (follow-up) examination allowance and the comprehensive examination allowance.
- 7. Non-prescription (plano) eyewear. An eye exam or proof of prior laser surgery may be required. The non-prescription sunglasses benefit is equal to the frame allowance. Any difference between the benefit allowance and the Participating Provider's charge (including sales tax) is the responsibility of the patient. Some designer sunglasses may be restricted by the manufacturer.
- 8. Any promotions and/or discounts that are combined with Covered Services under the Policy.

EXCLUSIONS

(Non-Covered Services)

We will not pay benefits for:

- 1. Any eye examination required by an employer as a condition of employment;
- 2. Care or treatment of a condition for which benefits are paid to You under any Worker's Compensation Act or similar law;
- 3. Replacement contact lens insurance offered by providers, care kits, or frame cases;
- 4. Covered Services which began prior to Your effective date or after benefits have been terminated;
- 5. Charges for which You are not legally obligated to pay;
- 6. Covered Services required by any government agency or program, (federal, state, or subdivision thereof);

VIS-C-2019 - 6 -

- 7. Orthoptics or, vision training or subnormal vision aids;
- 8. Services that are Experimental or Investigational in nature;
- 9. Any services provided in connection with war or any act of war, whether declared or undeclared, or condition contracted or accident occurring while on full-time active duty in the armed forces of any country or combination of countries:
- 10. Procedures or expenses that are not included in the Schedule of Benefits;
- 11. Any charge for services that the appropriate regulatory board determines were provided as a result of a referral prohibited by State Law;
- 12. Medical or surgical treatment of the eyes, including treatment of any suspected pathology or injury that may be uncovered during the course of a covered vision examination and that may be payable under the medical benefits of the Insured's health plan. In the event that the provider determines that additional diagnostic procedures or treatment plans are indicated to confirm the suspected pathology or injury, the Insured will need to obtain care under her/his medical plan. Insureds who are covered under their medical plan should be referred back to their Primary Care Physician or Participating Medical Group;
- 13. Any Covered Services provided by another vision Policy, except benefits payable under Coordination of Benefits; and
- 14. Replacement of lenses or frames which are lost, stolen, or broken, except when benefits are otherwise available.
- 15. Plan Maximum and Frequency the Maximum benefits shown in the Schedule of Benefits for which the Insured Person was eligible and received benefits from the Prior Plan, provided that such Prior Plan would have covered substantially the same benefit Deductible and frequency as the initial Prior Plan Policy, had the Prior Plan not been cancelled.

VIS-C-2019 - 7 -

PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS

Certain Ophthalmologists, Opticians and Optometrists have agreed to be Participating Providers. A list of Participating Providers is available from Our Administrator or Us. The most current list of Participating Providers may be downloaded or delivered from the Administrator's website at www.mesvision.com or it can be delivered upon request to an Insured by contacting the Administrator's Customer Service Department at (800) 877-6372. This list may change from time to time, and is updated daily on the website. The Schedule of Benefits states separately the benefits for Participating Providers and all other providers or Non-Participating Providers.

EXPENSES INCURRED

An Eligible Vision Expense is considered incurred on the date the service is performed, or the order date of the delivered eyewear. Late claim submission for eyewear claims is determined by the eyewear delivery date.

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE

The parties agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the "Voluntary Termination of Coverage" provision in the Certificate, and Gerber Life shall delete in its entirety said provision from the Certificate.

DEPENDENT COVERAGE

Dependents are covered on the later of:

- 1. the date Dependent Coverage is first included in Your coverage; or
- 2. the date the person first qualified as Your Dependent.

NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE

With respect to the "Newborn Infant Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of birth of the dependent child in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium.

ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE

With respect to the "Adopted Children Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of placement of adoption in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Lift shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium.

VIS-C-2019 - 8 -

COORDINATION OF BENEFITS

If You or any of Your Dependents are also covered under one or more other Policies, the benefits payable under this Policy will be coordinated with the benefits payable under all other Policies.

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply only to this Coordination of Benefits section.

- 1. The term "Policy" means coverage providing hospital, medical or vision benefits or services by:
 - a) group or blanket insurance coverage, except school accident coverage:
 - b) group practice or other prepayment coverage on a group basis; or
 - c) any coverage under a labor-management trust Policy, union welfare Policies, employer organization, or employee benefit Policies.

The term "Policy" will be construed separately for a policy, contract or other arrangement for benefits or services that reserves the right to take the benefits or services of other Policies into consideration in determining its benefits, or separately for that portion which does not reserve the right.

2. The term "Covered Expense" means any necessary, reasonable, and customary item of expense, all or part of which is covered under one of the Policies.

When a Policy provides benefits in the forms of services rather than cash payments, the reasonable cash value of each service rendered will be considered to be both a Covered Expense and a benefit paid.

3. The term "Claim Period" means a calendar year or a portion of a calendar year for a claim on anyone covered under this Policy.

ORDER OF BENEFITS DETERMINATION

The order of benefit determination rules governs the order in which each Policy will pay a claim for benefits. The Policy that pays first is called the Primary policy. The Primary policy must pay benefits in accordance with its policy terms without regard to the possibility that another Policy may cover some expenses. The Policy that pays after the Primary policy is the Secondary policy. The Secondary policy may reduce the benefits it pays so that payments from all Policies do not exceed 100% of the total Covered Expense.

The rules establishing the order of benefit determination are:

- 1. The Primary policy pays or provides its benefits according to its terms of coverage and without regard to the benefits of under any other policy.
- 2. a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) below, a Policy that does not contain a coordination of benefits (COB) provision that is consistent with this provision is always primary unless the provisions of both Policies state that the complying policy is primary.
 - b) Coverage obtained by virtue of membership in a group that is designed to supplement a part of a basic package of benefits may provide that the supplementary coverage shall be excess to any other parts of the Policy provided by the Policy holder. An example of this type of situation is coverage written in connection with a closed panel policy to provide out-of-network benefits.
- 3. A Policy may consider the benefits paid or provided by another Policy in calculating payment of its benefits only when it is secondary to this Policy.
- 4. Each Policy determines its order of benefits using the first of the following rules that apply:
 - a) Non-Dependent or Dependent. The Policy that covers the Insured other than as a Dependent, for example as an employee, is the Primary policy and the Policy that covers the Insured as a Dependent is the Secondary policy. However, if the Insured is a Medicare beneficiary and, as a result of federal law, Medicare is secondary to the Policy covering the Insured as a Dependent, and primary to the Policy

VIS-C-2019 - 9 -

covering the Insured as other than a Dependent (e.g. a retired employee), then the order of benefits between the two Policies is reversed so that the Policy covering the Insured as an employee is the Secondary policy and the other Policy is the Primary policy.

- b) Dependent covered under more than one Policy. Unless there is a court decree stating otherwise, when a Dependent is covered by more than one Policy the order of benefits is determined as follows:
 - 1) For a Dependent whose parents are married or are living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. The Policy of the parent whose birthday falls earlier in the calendar year is the Primary policy; or
 - b. If both parents have the same birthday, the Policy that has covered the parent the longest is the Primary policy.
 - 2) For a Dependent whose parents are divorced or separated or not living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. If a court decree states that one of the parents is responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage and the Policy of that parent has actual knowledge of those terms, that Policy is primary. This rule applies to policy years commencing after the Policy is given notice of the court decree;
 - b. If a court decree states that both parents are responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits:
 - c. If a court decree states that the parents have joint custody without specifying that one parent has responsibility for the health care expenses or health care coverage of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits; or
 - d. If there is no court decree allocating responsibility for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the order of benefits for the child are as follows:
 - A. The Policy covering the custodial parent;
 - B. The Policy covering the spouse of the custodial parent;
 - C. The Policy covering the noncustodial parent; and then
 - D. The Policy covering the spouse of the noncustodial parent.
 - 3) For a Dependent covered under more than one Policy of individuals who are not the parents of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) or (b) above shall determine the order of benefits as if those individuals were the Dependent's parent.
- c) The Policy that covers an Insured as an employee, who is neither laid off nor retired (or as that employee's Dependent), is the Primary policy. The Policy covering the same Insured as a laid-off or retired employee (or as that employee's Dependent) is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and if, as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (c) is ignored. This rule does not apply if rule 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- d) If an Insured whose coverage is provided pursuant to COBRA or under a right of continuation provided by state or other federal law is covered under another Policy, the Policy covering the person as an employee, member, subscriber, or retiree or covering the insured as a Dependent of an employee, member, subscriber or retiree is the Primary policy and the COBRA or state or other federal continuation coverage is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (d) is ignored. This rule does not apply if the rule labeled 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- e) Longer or shorter length of coverage. The Policy that covered the Insured as an employee, member, policyholder, subscriber, or retiree longer is the Primary policy and the Policy that covered the Insured the shorter period of time is the Secondary policy.
- f) If the preceding rules do not determine the order of benefits, the Covered Expenses shall be shared equally between the Policies meeting the definition of Policy. In addition, this Policy will not pay more than it would have paid had it been the Primary policy.

VIS-C-2019 - 10 -

EFFECTS ON THE BENEFITS OF THIS POLICY

- 1. When this Policy is secondary, it may reduce its benefits so that the total benefits paid or provided by all policies during a policy year are not more than the total Covered Expenses. In determining the claims payment, the Secondary policy will calculate the benefits it would have paid in the absence of other health care coverage and apply that calculated amount to any Covered Expense under its Policy that is unpaid by the Primary policy. The Secondary policy may then reduce its payment by the amount so that, when combined with the amount paid by the Primary policy, the total benefits paid or provided by all policies for the claim do not exceed the total Covered Expense for that claim. In addition, the Secondary policy shall credit to its policy deductible any amounts it would have credited to its deductible in the absence of other health care coverage.
- If an Insured is enrolled in two or more closed panel policies and if, for any reason, including the provision of service by a Non-Participating Provider, benefits are not payable by one closed panel policy, COB shall not apply between this Policy and other closed panel policies.

RIGHT TO RECEIVE AND RELEASE NEEDED INFORMATION

Certain facts about health care coverage and services are needed to apply these COB rules and to determine benefits payable under this Policy and other polices. We may get the facts We need from or give them to other organizations or persons for the purpose of applying these rules and determining benefits payable under this Policy and other policies covering the Insured claiming benefits. We need not tell, or get the consent of, any person to do this. Each Insured claiming benefits under this Policy must give Us any facts We need to apply those rules and determine benefits payable.

FACILITY OF PAYMENT

A payment made under another policy may include an amount that should have been paid under this Policy. If it does, We may pay that amount to the organization that made that payment. That amount will then be treated as though it were a benefit paid under this Policy. We will not have to pay that amount again. The term "payment made" includes providing benefits in the form of services, in which case "payment made" means the reasonable cash value of the benefits provided in the form of services.

RIGHT OF RECOVERY

If Our payment is more than We should have paid under this COB provision, We may recover the excess from one or more of the Insureds paid, or any other person or organization that may be responsible for the benefits or services provided for the Insured.

BENEFITS SUBJECT TO COORDINATION

All benefits provided under the Policy are subject to coordination.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES

This Certificate, the Policy, the application of the Policyholder and any applicable state rider or endorsement, constitute(s) the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us, and any statement made by the Policyholder or by any Insured person shall, in the absence of fraud, be deemed a representation and not a warranty. No such statement shall be used in defense to a claim hereunder unless it is contained in a written application.

No change in the Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 30- days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless such approval be endorsed herein or attached hereto. No agent has authority to change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

VIS-C-2019 - 11 -

TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES

After two (2) years from the date of issue of the Policy, no misstatement of the Policyholder, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in this application shall be used to void the Policy; and after two (2) years from the effective date of the coverage with respect to which any claim is made no misstatement of any employee eligible for coverage under the Policy, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in an application under the Policy shall be used to deny a claim for loss incurred or disability (as defined in the Policy) commencing after expiration of such two (2) years.

LEGAL ACTIONS

No action at law or in equity shall be brought to recover on the Policy prior to the expiration of sixty (60) days after written proof of loss has been furnished in accordance with the requirements of the Policy. No such action shall be brought after the expiration of three (3) years after the time written proof of loss is required to be furnished.

CONFORMITY TO LAW

With respect to the "Conformity to Law" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that any provision of the Policy, which on its Effective Date is in conflict with the statutes of the State of California, is changed to conform to the minimum standards of these statutes. As such, the Parties agree that Gerber Life shall delete the phrase "jurisdiction in which it was issued" and replace it with "State of California."

NON-PARTICIPATION

The Policy will not share in Our surplus or earnings.

CLAIMS PROVISIONS

DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS

Participating Providers have agreed to bill Our Administrator directly. It is Your responsibility to identify yourself as having vision coverage at the time of service. If You do not, You may be required to pay for services and/or materials at the time of the visit, and any submitted claim will be paid to the Participating Provider. The Participating Provider is required to refund the amount paid by You, less any Deductibles or payments for non-covered services. If You do not inform the Participating Provider or, if You obtain services from a Non-Participating Provider the "Notice of Claim" provision shall be applicable.

NOTICE OF CLAIM

Written notice of claim must be given to Our Administrator within twenty (20) days after the occurrence or commencement of any loss covered by the Policy, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably possible. The notice should include sufficient information to identify the Insured. Claim forms may be obtained from a Participating Provider, Our Administrator, Policyholder, or Us. When the Administrator receives the notice of the claim, the Administrator will send the forms for filing a vision claim. The forms will be sent within fifteen (15) days of the request from the claimant.

CLAIM FORM

Upon receipt of a written notice of claim, We will furnish to the claimant such forms as are usually furnished for filing proofs of loss. If such forms are not furnished within fifteen (15) days after the giving of such notice the claimant shall be deemed to have complied with the requirements of the Policy as to proof of loss upon submitting, within the time fixed in the Policy for filing proofs of loss, written proof covering the occurrence, the character and the extent of the loss for which claim is made.

VIS-C-2019 - 12 -

PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)

Written proof of loss must be furnished to Our Administrator, in case of claim for loss for which the Policy provides any periodic payment contingent upon continuing loss, within ninety (90) days after the termination of the period for which We are liable, and in case of claim for any other loss, within ninety (90) days after the date of such loss. Failure to furnish such proof within the time required shall not invalidate nor reduce any claim if it was not reasonably possible to give proof within such time, provided such proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible and in no event, except in the absence of legal capacity of the employee, proof must be sent no later than one (1) year from the date of service(date of service means the calendar date on which Covered Services were provided).

TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

Subject to due written proof of loss, all benefits due under the Policy will be paid to or on behalf of the Insured as they accrue and any balance remaining unpaid at termination of the period of liability will be paid to the Insured immediately upon receipt of due written proof.

PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

If the Policy provides coverage of a claimant as a Dependent of a parent who has legal responsibility for the Dependent's medical care and such parent does not have custody of the Dependent, We may, upon request of the custodial parent, make the payments directly to the provider of care or the non-covered custodial parent. Any payments so made will release Us from all further liability to the Insured to the extent of the payments made.

Benefits for other losses are paid to the Participating Provider or, if services are rendered by a Non-Participating Provider, the payment will be made to the Insured. Any accrued benefits unpaid at the Insured's death will be paid to the Insured's estate.

Requests for payment adjustments should be made within 180 days of payment or denial. Payment may require approval prior to additional payment and may be subject to the claim submission deadline.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

PREMIUMS

DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

Premiums are payable on a monthly basis, unless We agree to some other mode of payment. Premiums are due on the first day of each month. If We agree to change the method of paying premiums, any pro rata adjusted premium required will be payable.

GRACE PERIOD

A grace period of thirty-one (31) days will be granted for the payment of premiums accruing after the first premium, during which grace period the Policy shall continue in force, but the Policyholder shall be liable to Us for the payment of the premium accruing for the period the Policy continues in force. If a premium is not paid by the end of the grace period, Your coverage will terminate at the end of the grace period.

PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS

Premiums are payable at Our office in White Plains, New York, or to Our Administrator. The first premium for each Insured is due on the Certificate Effective Date. Each monthly payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for a period of one month. If the method of paying premiums is changed by agreement as indicated above, each premium payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for the agreed upon period.

VIS-C-2019 - 13 -

REINSTATEMENT

There shall be no provision in a group disability policy relative to reinstatement of the Policy after lapse because of default in the payment of premium.

CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS

With respect to the "Change in Premium Rates and Benefits" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life has the right to change the premiums upon renewal only if Gerber Life has provided at least 180 days advance written notice to the Policyholder.

VIS-C-2019 - 14 -

PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

We maintain physical, electronic, and administrative safeguards that meet federal and state requirements. The Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) is limited to persons who need the information for authorized business purposes. We will not use PHI for marketing purposes. If you would like to obtain a copy of our "Notice of Privacy Practices", which explains your rights in relation to PHI, please submit your written request to:

Privacy Compliance Office / Legal Department Gerber Life Insurance Company 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, NY 10605

INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The Insured, or the Insured's representative, has the right to appeal any denial of a claim for benefits by submitting a written request for reconsideration with Us. If an Insured's claim is denied in whole or in part, he/she will receive written notification of the denial. If the Insured is not satisfied with a determination made by Us, the Insured is entitled to an appeal process or "Grievance" as described. A Grievance must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after the occurrence.

You (the Insured) or Insured's authorized representative can file a Grievance on the website (www.MESVision.com), by fax, by telephone, or by mail. To file a Grievance please contact Our Administrator:

Medical Eye Services, Inc. Attn: Benefit Resolutions Department P.O. Box 25209 Santa Ana, CA 92799 Website: www.MESV*ision*.com Telephone #: 800-877-6372 Fax #: 714-619-4662

If you need the help of the California Department of Insurance (CDI) with a complaint involving a grievance that has not been satisfactorily resolved by the Administrator and/or Gerber Life Insurance Company, you may file a complaint online (https://cdiapps.insurance.ca.gov/CP/login/), call the CDI's toll-free number at 1-800-927-4357, or write to:

California Department of Insurance Consumer Services Division 300 South Spring Street Los Angeles, CA 90013

VIS-C-2019 - 15 -

CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE

With respect to the "Cancellation of Insurance" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life may cancel the Policy at any time by advance written notice delivered to the employer, or mailed to the employer's last address, as shown on Gerber Life's records, stating when, not less than 60 days thereafter, such cancellation shall be effective.

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

We may terminate the Policy on any premium due date. We will give the Policyholder, the insurance producer, and any administrator at least 60 days advance written notice of such termination, except for non-payment of premiums when the grace period will apply. The Policyholder may terminate the Policy at any time by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Administrator. The Policy will then terminate on the requested termination date or some later date on which the Policyholder and the Administrator have agreed. The Policyholder remains responsible for the payment of premiums to the date of termination. If thirty (30) days written notice of termination is not provided to the Administrator, the termination date shall be effective on the last day of the month after any date(s) of the service rendered to any Insured person or the Policyholder's requested termination effective date, whichever is later, subject to the Insured notification requirements.

If nonemployee certificate holders or employees of more than one employer are covered under the Policy, written notice shall also be delivered by mail to the last known address of each nonemployee certificate holder or affected employer or, if the action does not affect all employees and Dependents of one or more employers, to the last known address of each affected employee certificate holder, at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the action.

The coverage on any Insured will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Insured ceases to be eligible for coverage;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

The coverage of any Dependent will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Dependent ceases to be an eligible Dependent;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

Termination of coverage will not prejudice any existing claim.

VIS-C-2019 - 16 -

MILITARY REINSTATEMENT

Members of the United States Military Reserve and The National Guard who are called to active duty on or after January 1, 2007 will be reinstated upon payment of premium as a covered Insured without a waiting period or exclusions of coverage for pre-existing conditions.

INDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS

Applicable to Insureds when the group is subject to either Title X of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) (groups of 20 or more eligible employees) as amended or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA) (groups of 2 to 19 eligible employees). The group should be contacted for more information.

In accordance with the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) as amended and the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA), an Insured will be entitled to elect to continue group coverage under this Policy if the Insured would otherwise lose coverage because of a Qualifying Event that occurs while the group is subject to the continuation of group coverage provisions of COBRA or Cal-COBRA.

The benefits under the group continuation of coverage will be identical to the benefits that would be provided to the Insured if the Qualifying Event had not occurred (including any changes in such coverage).

Note: The Insured will not be entitled to benefits under Cal-COBRA if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare") or is covered under another group health group that provides coverage without exclusions or limitations with respect to any Pre-existing condition. Under COBRA, the Insured will not be entitled to benefits if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to Medicare.

A. Qualifying Event

A Qualifying Event is defined as a loss of coverage as a result of any one of the following occurrences.

- 1. With respect to the subscriber:
 - a) the termination of employment (other than by reason of gross misconduct); or
 - b) the reduction of hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility.
- 2. With respect to the Dependent spouse or Dependent Domestic Partner* and Dependent children (children born to or placed for adoption with the subscriber, or subscriber's Dependent spouse or Domestic Partner, during a COBRA or Cal-COBRA continuation period may be immediately added as Dependents, provided the group is properly notified of the birth or placement for adoption, and such children are enrolled within thirty (30) days of the birth or placement for adoption):

*Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.

- a) the death of the subscriber; or
- b) the termination of the subscriber's employment (other than by reason of such subscriber's gross misconduct); or
- c) the reduction of the subscriber's hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility; or
- d) the divorce or legal separation of the subscriber from the Dependent spouse or termination of the domestic partnership; or
- e) the subscriber's entitlement to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare"); or
- f) a Dependent child's loss of Dependent status under the Policy.

- 3. For COBRA only, with respect to a subscriber who is covered as a retiree, that retiree's Dependent spouse and Dependent children, the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code, commencing on or after July 1, 1986.
- 4. With respect to any of the above, such other Qualifying Event as may be added to Title X of COBRA or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA).

B. Notification of a Qualifying Event

1. With respect to COBRA Insureds:

The Insured must notify the group, in writing, of all qualifying events (divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partner or a child's loss of Dependent status) within sixty (60) days of the date of the qualifying event. If the Insured fails to make the notification to the group within the required sixty (60) days, the Insured will be disqualified from receiving continuation coverage. The Insured must elect continuation coverage within the sixty (60) days of either (1) the date that the Insured's coverage under the Contract terminated or will terminate by reason of a qualifying event, or (2) the date the Insured was sent the notice of the required benefit information, premium information, enrollment forms, and disclosures to allow the qualified beneficiary to formally elect continuation coverage, whichever is later.

The group is responsible for notifying its COBRA administrator (or group administrator if the group does not have a COBRA administrator) of the Insured's death, termination, or reduction of hours of employment, the subscriber's Medicare entitlement or the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code.

When the COBRA administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the COBRA administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage or (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event.

If the Insured does not notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

2. With respect to Cal-COBRA Insureds:

The Insured is responsible for notifying the group in writing of the Employee's/subscribers death or Medicare entitlement, of divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partnership, or a child's loss of Dependent status under this Policy. Such notice must be given within sixty (60) days of the date of the later of the Qualifying Event or the date on which coverage would otherwise terminate under this Policy because of a Qualifying Event. Failure to provide such notice within sixty (60) days will disqualify the Insured from receiving continuation coverage under Cal-COBRA.

The group is responsible for notifying the vision plan Administrator in writing of termination or reduction of hours of employment within thirty (30) days of the Qualifying Event.

When the vision plan Administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the vision plan Administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then give the group notice in writing of the Insured's election of continuation coverage within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage, and (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event. The written election notice must be delivered to the vision plan Administrator by first-class mail or other reliable means.

If the Insured does not notify the vision plan Administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

VIS-C-2019 - 18 -

If this Policy replaces a previous Policy that was in effect with the group's, and the Insured had elected Cal-COBRA continuation coverage under the previous group, the Insured may choose to continue to be covered by this Policy for the balance of the period that the Insured could have continued to be covered under the previous group, provided that the Insured notify the vision plan Administrator within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the termination of the previous group.

C. Duration and Extension of Continuation of Group Coverage

Cal-COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for up to a maximum of 36 months regardless of the type of Qualifying Event.

COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for 18, 29, or 36 months depending on the type of Qualifying Event. Contact your group for more information.

COBRA Insureds who reach the 18-month or 29-month maximum available under COBRA, may elect to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA for a maximum period of 36 months from the date the Insured's continuation coverage began under COBRA. If elected, the Cal-COBRA coverage will begin after the COBRA coverage ends.

Note: COBRA Insureds must exhaust all the COBRA coverage to which they are entitled before they can become eligible to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA.

In no event will continuation of group coverage under COBRA, Cal-COBRA or a combination of COBRA and Cal-COBRA be extended for more than 3 years from the date the Qualifying Event has occurred which originally entitled the Insured to continue group coverage under this Policy.

Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.

D. Notification Requirements of Cal-COBRA Extension

The group or its COBRA administrator is responsible for notifying COBRA Insureds of their right to possibly continue coverage under Cal-COBRA at least ninety (90) calendar days before their COBRA coverage will end. The COBRA Insured should contact the group for more information about continuing coverage. If the Insured elects to apply for continuation of coverage under Cal-COBRA, the Insured must notify the group at least thirty (30) days before COBRA termination.

E. Payment of Premiums

Premiums for the Insured continuing coverage shall be 102 percent of the applicable group premium rate if the Insured is a COBRA Insured, or 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate if the Insured is a Cal-COBRA Insured, except for the Insured who is eligible to continue group coverage to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, in which case, the premiums for months 19 through 29 shall be 150 percent of the applicable group premium rate.

Note: For COBRA Insureds who are eligible to extend group coverage under COBRA to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, premiums for Cal-COBRA coverage shall be 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate for months 30 through 36.

If the Insured is enrolled in COBRA and is contributing to the cost of coverage, the group shall be responsible for collecting and submitting all premium contributions in the manner and for the period established under this Policy.

Cal-COBRA Insureds must submit premiums directly to the Vision Plan Administrator. The initial premiums must be paid within forty-five (45) days of the date the Insured provided written notification to the Vision Plan Administrator of the election to continue coverage and be sent to the Vision Plan Administrator through the

VIS-C-2019 - 19 -

MESVision website at (www.MESVision.com) or by first-class mail or other reliable means. The premiums payment must equal an amount sufficient to pay any required amounts that are due. Failure to submit the correct amount within the 45-day period will disqualify the Insured from continuation coverage.

F. Effective Date of the Continuation of Coverage

The continuation of coverage will begin on the date the Insured's coverage under this Policy would otherwise terminate due to the occurrence of a Qualifying Event and it will continue for up to the applicable period, provided that coverage is timely elected and so long as premiums are timely paid.

G. Termination of Continuation of Group Coverage

The continuation of group coverage will cease if any one of the following events occurs prior to the expiration of the applicable period of continuation of group coverage:

- 1. discontinuance of this group vision insurance Policy (if the group continues to provide any group benefit for subscribers, the Insured may be able to continue coverage);
- 2. failure to timely and fully pay the amount of required premiums as applicable. Coverage will end as of the end of the period for which premiums were paid;
- 3. the Insured becomes entitled to Medicare;
- 4. the Insured no longer resides in California;
- 5. the Insured commits fraud or deception in the use of the benefits of this Policy.

Continuation of group coverage in accordance with COBRA or Cal-COBRA will not be terminated except as described in this provision. In no event will coverage extend beyond 36 months.

H. Notification Requirements

The group must notify a qualified beneficiary during the 180 days prior to the expiration of continuation coverage of (1) the date continuation coverage will terminate and (2) the availability of any conversion coverage that is available.

VIS-C-2019 - 20 -

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES

If Covered Services are provided by a participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of prevailing fees¹, but not to exceed the "Participating Provider" allowances. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is the patient's responsibility.

Deductible Amounts²:

Material

\$0

Covered Services & Benefits

Allowances

	Participating Provider	Non-Participating Provider
Lenses:		
Single Vision	Covered in Full	\$43
Bifocal	Covered in Full	\$60
Trifocal	Covered in Full	\$75
Standard Progressive⁵	Covered in Full	\$ 75
Premium Progressive ⁶	\$89.50	\$75
Aphakic/Lenticular Monofocal	Covered in Full	\$120
Aphakic/Lenticular Multifocal	Covered in Full	\$200
High Power of 7.25 Diopters or more additional (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Prism 1 ½ to 4 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Prism 4 ½ to 10 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Slab-off prism (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Polycarbonate for children up to age 19:		
Single Vision	\$85	\$55
Bifocal	\$85	\$0
Contact Lenses ³ :		
Non-Elective/Medically Necessary (one pair)	Covered in Full	\$250
Elective/Cosmetic without UV Protection	\$100	\$100
Frame ⁴ :		
Selection up to a retail amount of	\$75	\$40

- Prevailing Fees means a fee which falls within a range of charges, as submitted to Medical Eye Services, Inc. by providers within a geographical area.
- The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expenses: (a) that You incur and (b) for which no benefits will be paid. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.
- The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. To determine the appropriate benefit allowance, all contact lens claims must include the contact lens manufacturer and brand. Some retail and wholesale providers do not participate in this program. Please check with your provider before placing your order. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility. Please refer to the Limitations section of this Certificate.
- The difference between the benefit amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be a patient responsibility. The retail frame allowance is reduced 30%-35% at provider locations employing wholesale or warehouse pricing. These provider locations are identified in the

Participating Provider directory at www.mesvision.com. Some designer frames may be restricted by the manufacturer.

- Standard progressive lenses (also referred to as no-line bifocals) allow you to see distance, mid-range and near clearly; however, there may be some peripheral distortion. Standard progressive lenses also need to be a minimum height in order to transition properly between distance and near vision. Standard progressive lenses are a covered-in-full benefit.
- ⁶ Premium progressive lenses are digitally surfaced so they provide a wider reading area, less peripheral distortion and less height restrictions, than standard progressive lenses. Premium progressive lenses with higher levels of customization, including high definition lenses, are not a covered-in-full benefit; the patient is responsible for the balance between the maximum plan benefit and the provider's usual, customary, and reasonable charge.

You may also refer to the website at www.MESVision.com for benefit eligibility and claim history information or call 1-800-877-6372 to speak to a representative. Written inquiries may be forwarded to: Medical Eye Services, Inc., P.O. Box 25209, Santa Ana, CA 92799.

VIS-C-2019 - 22 -

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES

We are pleased to help you obtain vision care services in the language you understand at no charge to you.

Interpreter Services

If you or a family member have limited English speaking skills and need verbal interpreter services or assistance arranging vision care services, the vision Policy administrator can assist you:

Call 1-800-877-6372 for assistance with interpreter services; or Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired. Hours of Operation: Monday – Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm Pacific Time

Translation of Written Information to Insureds

The language most frequently requested to be translated among our membership is referred to as the "threshold language", which is currently Spanish. Upon your request, the administrator will translate written information that impacts your vision care coverage into the threshold language(s). To request translation of vision benefit documents:

Call 1-800-877-6372, Customer Service; or Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired. Hours of Operation: Monday – Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm Pacific Time

If unable to reach us, please contact the Department of Insurance Consumer Communications Bureau toll-free number at 1-800-927-HELP (4357) or TDD 1-800-482-4833. Telephone lines are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time, Monday through Friday, except state holidays.

VIS-C-2019 - 23 -

Gerber Life Insurance Company

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

NOTICE

This notice is added to and made part of the Policy or Certificate to which it is attached in compliance with Federal law.

THE POLICY AND THE CERTIFICATES ISSUED UNDER IT PROVIDE VISION-ONLY INSURANCE. THE COVERAGE PROVIDED UNDER THE POLICY IS A SUPPLEMENT TO HEALTH INSURANCE AND IS NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE. LACK OF MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE OR OTHER MINIMUM ESSENTIAL COVERAGE MAY RESULT IN AN ADDITIONAL PAYMENT WITH YOUR TAXES.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to alter or affect any of the provisions of the Policy.

Signed by the Company:

President & CEO

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company
Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

Administrator
Medical Eye Services, Inc.
P.O. Box 25209
Santa Ana, CA 92799-5209
(800) 877-6372/TDD Line (877) 735-2929/www.mesvision.com

VIS-C-2019 - 25 -

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE POLICY

POLICYHOLDER: RIVERSIDE COUNTY OF (RETIREES)

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: JANUARY 1, 2021

POLICY NUMBER: 383-088

STATE OF DELIVERY: CALIFORNIA

Read Your Policy Carefully

This Policy is a legal contract between the Policyholder and Gerber Life Insurance Company. The consideration for this contract is the application and the payment of premiums as provided hereinafter.

Agreement

This Policy and the attached application is the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us. Oral statements made by the Policyholder, by an Insured, by Our Agent, or by any other person are not part of this Policy. Only Our Executive Officer may make changes for Us. Such changes must be in writing and attached to this Policy. We reserve the right to amend the Policy from time to time. We will pay, with respect to each Insured, the insurance benefits provided in this Policy. Payment is subject to the conditions, limitations, and exceptions of this Policy. Persons eligible to be insured include dependents as defined in the Definitions section of the Insurance Certificate. This Policy is governed by the laws of the state shown above. The sections set forth on the following pages are a part of this Policy and take effect on the Policy Effective Date.

Certificates

Gerber Life Insurance Company will furnish to the Policyholder a Certificate for each Insured which will set forth the essential features of the insurance coverage.

Additional Insureds

From time to time, all new employees, members or pupils of the Policyholder eligible to and applying for insurance in such group or class may be added to the group if they meet the eligibility requirements stated in the Insurance Certificate, complete an enrollment form and pay the required premium.

Important Notice

No change in this Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 120 days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless approval be endorsed hereon or attached hereto. No agent has the right to change the Policy or to waive any part of its provisions.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

This Policy is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

VIS-P-2015 i

Enrollment and Premium for Internet-Only Groups

A. Initial Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible for the initial installation of all eligible employees under the Policy online through the MESVision website (www.MESVision.com).

B. Subsequent Enrollment

1. The Policyholder is responsible to manage the group's eligibility online through the MESVision website. In order to properly maintain benefit eligibility and for accurate information to be reflected on the monthly billing statement, eligibility information must be entered before the 1st of each month.

C. Premium Payment

1. The Policyholder is responsible to pay the group's premium online through the MESVision website. The Policyholder may elect automatic premium payment deductions from their checking account or credit card each month.

Incorporation Provision

The provisions of the attached Certificate and all Rider(s) issued to amend this Policy after its effective date are made a part of this Policy. This Policy was signed by the Policyholder on the application. We sign here on behalf of Gerber Life Insurance Company at White Plains, NY.

GROUP INSURANCE POLICY PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE NON-PARTICIPATING

KMOREILLY PRESIDENT & CEO COUNTERSIGNATURE OF LICENSED RESIDENT AGENT

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

CALIFORNIA VISION INSURANCE CERTIFICATE

This Certificate will take the place of any and all certificates and riders which may have been issued to You at a prior time under the Policy.

GENERAL INFORMATION

About Your Insurance

This Certificate explains the plan of insurance which is underwritten by Gerber Life Insurance Company. Read it closely to become familiar with Your plan.

Important Notice

Benefits are payable only for expenses incurred while this insurance is in force.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued may, at any time, be amended or canceled as stated in its provisions. Such an action may be taken without the consent of, or notice to, any person who claims rights or benefits under the Policy.

The insurance under the Policy does not take the place of, nor does it affect, any requirements for coverage by Workers' Compensation or a similar type of insurance.

The benefits for Dependents which are described in this Certificate will be applicable to Your Dependents only if You make application to have Your Dependents insured.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued is not intended to offer "essential pediatric health (vision) benefits" under the Affordable Care Act and the applicable State Exchanges.

The Policy under which this Certificate is issued provides vision care insurance only unless a Hearing Benefit Rider to the Vision Policy is selected: it does not provide emergency or other health care services. Services by Participating Providers are rendered at a negotiated discount as shown on this Certificate's Schedule of Benefits.

THIRTY-DAY RIGHT TO EXAMINE CERTIFICATE

If, for any reason, You are not completely satisfied, You may cancel this coverage by returning this Certificate to Us or to Our Administrator within thirty (30) days of receipt. The coverage shall be void from the beginning and We will promptly refund Your entire premium payment, less any benefits paid.

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

DDECIDENT 8 OF O

KMORelly

SECRETARY

Syana Gordon

Countersignature of Licensed Resident Agent (Where Required)

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company

Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROVISION	<u>PAGE</u>
GENERAL INFORMATION	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
DEFINITIONS	
EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE	4
VISION BENEFITS	4
PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE	4
LIMITATIONS	
EXCLUSIONS	6
PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS	8
EXPENSES INCURRED	
VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE	8
DEPENDENT COVERAGE	
NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE	
ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE	
COORDINATION OF BENEFITS	8
GENERAL PROVISIONS	
ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES	
TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES	
LEGAL ACTIONS	
CONFORMITY TO LAW	
NON-PARTICIPATION	
CLAIMS PROVISIONS	
DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS	
NOTICE OF CLAIM	
CLAIM FORM	
PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)	
TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS	13
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS	
PREMIUMS	13
DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT	
GRACE PERIOD	
PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS	
REINSTATEMENT	
CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS	
PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION	
INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	15
CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE	
TERMINATION OF INSURANCE	
MILITARY REINSTATEMENTINDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS	1/
SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES	
NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES	
INCLIGE OF AVAILABILIT CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES	7.3

DEFINITIONS

The following terms have specific meaning as used in the Policy

Administrator means: Medical Eye Services, Inc. (MESVision) who is Our administrator for this vision insurance policy.

Covered Services – vision care services and eyewear which are specified as benefits in the Policy, this Certificate of Coverage, and the Schedule of Benefits herein.

Dependent means any of the following persons:

- 1. An Insured's legally married spouse,
- 2. Registered Domestic Partner means any two adults, of the same or different sex, who meet the definition of California Family Code 297.
- 3. Each unmarried or married child, including children, step-children, foster children, or adopted children of registered domestic partners from birth up to age 26 who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance;
- 4. Each unmarried or married child age 26 or older:
 - a. who is primarily dependent upon You for support and maintenance because the child is incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of mental disability or physical handicap;
 - b. who was so incapacitated and is an Insured under this Policy on his or her 26th birthday; and
 - c. who has been continuously so incapacitated since his or her 26th birthday.

Dependent child coverage may continue beyond the dependent maximum age limit of 26 if the child is and remains both:

- (a) incapable of self-sustaining employment by reason of a physically or mentally disabling injury, illness, or condition and
- (b) chiefly dependent upon You for support and maintenance.

We will send a notification to You at least ninety (90) days prior to the date the child attains the limiting age. For continuation of benefits for this Dependent, You must submit to the Administrator and to Us documentation that the child meets the criteria for continuation of a disabled Dependent no later than thirty (30) days prior to reaching the maximum age limit (60 days after receiving the 90-day notification). Upon receiving a request by the Insured for continued coverage of a disabled Dependent and proof of the criteria in (a) and (b) above, We will make a determination as to whether the Dependent child is entitled to continue coverage before the child reaches the limiting age. If We fail to make the necessary determination by the time the child reaches the limiting age, coverage will continue pending the determination of continued eligibility due to physical or mental disability, injury, illness or condition.

 Those individuals in Your immediate family who meet the criteria of the definition of a Dependent as used in the current United States Internal Revenue Code and Regulations of the United States, and who have been enrolled and accepted by Us.

Eligible Vision Expense means expenses for Covered Services shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Experimental or Investigational means any treatment, therapy, procedure, drug or drug usage, biological product, facility or facility usage, equipment or equipment usage, device or device usage, or supplies which is not demonstrated to be, in accordance with generally accepted professional medical standards, to be safe and effective for use in the treatment of illness, injury or condition at issue. Services which require approval by the federal government or any agency thereof, or by any state government agency, prior to use and where such approval has not been granted at the time the services or supplies were rendered, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. Services or supplies which themselves are not approved or recognized in accordance with accepted professional medical standards, but nevertheless are authorized by law or by a government agency for use in testing, trials or other studies on human patients, shall be considered Experimental or Investigational in nature. "Experimental or Investigational" also includes services, supplies, drugs and procedures that are determined to be educational or the subject of a clinical trial. The fact that a Participating Provider, or medical professional may prescribe, order, recommend, recognize or approve any procedure,

VIS-C-2019 - 3 -

treatment, therapy, drug, biological product, facility, equipment, device or materials does not in itself make the service or materials non-Experimental or non-Investigational within this definition.

Insured means a person meeting the eligibility requirements of the Policy who is covered for benefits.

Non-Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has not contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Ophthalmologist means a person who is licensed by the state in which he or she practices as a Doctor of Medicine or Osteopathy and is qualified to practice within the medical specialty of Ophthalmology.

Optician means a person or business licensed by the state in which services are rendered to manufacture, grind and/or dispense lenses and frames prescribed by either an **Optometrist** or an **Ophthalmologist**.

Optometrist means a person licensed to practice optometry as defined by the laws of the state in which his or her services are rendered.

Participating Provider means an Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist who has contracted with MESVision to accept the terms, conditions, and compensation as set forth by the Schedule of Benefits.

Policy means the Policy issued to the Policyholder.

Policyholder means the entity, named on the Policy's face page, to which We issue the Policy.

Prescription Change means a change of 0.50 diopter or more in one eye, or total in both eyes; or a difference in prism correction greater than 1 degree.

Prior Plan means a group insurance Vision Policy issued to the Policyholder in force immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date and which provided similar benefits of this Policy.

Standard Lenses means any plastic lenses that fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm; standard multifocal lenses include segments through flat top 35 for plastic bifocal and lenticular lenses, and plastic trifocals through flat top 35.

We, Our, Us means the Gerber Life Insurance Company.

You, Your, Yours means the Insured.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE

Benefits of this vision Policy become effective at 12:01 A.M. Pacific Time on the eligibility date established by the Policyholder. When the Policyholder pays the full amount of the premiums for You, Your coverage becomes effective automatically. If You contribute toward the cost of Your premiums, You are required to submit a completed enrollment form to the group prior to or within thirty-one (31) calendar days of the date You become eligible in order to have coverage commence on Your eligibility date. If You are a member of an internet-only group, Your coverage automatically becomes effective on the first day of the month following the date You are enrolled.

VISION BENEFITS

We will pay for Covered Services stated in the Schedule of Benefits when We receive proof that Eligible Vision Expenses have been incurred by or on behalf of You or an eligible Dependent, Expenses must be incurred while the Policy is in force and You are covered by the Policy.

For you to be eligible for reimbursement under the Policy, the vision service, device or equipment, must be:

- performed by a licensed Optometrist or Ophthalmologist who is acting within the scope of his or her license;
 or
- 2. supplied by a retail, warehouse, or wholesale optical goods supplier meeting all applicable licensing requirements, if any.

PRINCIPAL BENEFITS AND COVERAGE

We will pay the allowed amount in the Participating Provider Schedule of Benefits for the Covered Services rendered by the Participating Providers less any copayments/Deductibles. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of the Non-Participating Schedule of Benefits less any copayments/Deductibles.

Deductibles

The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expense You incur for which no benefits will be paid. The Deductible amount will apply within any 12 consecutive months to You. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

Examination

1. One comprehensive eye examination in a 12 consecutive month period. A comprehensive examination is a general evaluation of the complete visual system. The comprehensive eye examination constitutes a single service but need not be performed at one session and includes history, general medical observation, external and ophthalmoscopic examination, gross visual fields and basic sensorimotor examination. It includes if clinically indicated: biomicroscopy, examination for cycloplegia or mydriasis, tonometry, and usually determination of the refractive state unless known, or unless the condition of the media precludes this or it is otherwise contraindicated, as in presence of trauma or severe inflammation.

Lenses

- 2. One pair of Standard Lenses in a 12 consecutive month period. "Standard Lenses" (plastic) fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm; or
- 3. One pair of contact lenses for cosmetic reasons or for convenience when provided in lieu of other eyewear once in a 12 consecutive month period.

The contact lenses are in lieu of other eyewear benefits. We will pay up to the amount shown in the Schedule of Benefits toward the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs and materials, except when You have a separate fitting benefit; or

4. One pair of non-elective (medically necessary) contact lenses every 12 consecutive month period, following cataract surgery; or for clinically indicated conditions of Myopia, Hyperopia, or Astigmatism; or when contact lenses are the only means to correct visual acuity to 20/40 for certain conditions of Keratoconus, or 20/60 for certain conditions of Anisometropia. A completed "Non-Elective (Medically Necessary) Contact Lenses Approval Request Form" along with the patient's history from the provider and approval from Us is required. This form can be obtained from the MESVision website at www.MESVision.com. If prior approval is requested, a determination will be made within five (5) business days. If the services have already been rendered, a determination will be made within thirty (30) calendar days.

Frame

5. One standard frame in a 12 consecutive month period.

The cost difference between the allowed amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be Your responsibility. Participating Providers allow a selection from frames that retail up to \$120.00 with an eye size less than 61 millimeters. If a more expensive frame is selected, You are responsible for the additional cost above the \$120.00. If the lenses are 61 millimeters or over, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is Your responsibility.

When a Participating Provider uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, the maximum allowable frame allowance will be as follows: wholesale allowance: \$75.47, warehouse allowance: \$78.96. Note that this pricing replaces the retail frame allowance shown in the Schedule of Benefits. If a more expensive frame is selected at a provider

VIS-C-2019 - 5 -

location that uses wholesale or warehouse pricing, You are responsible for the additional cost above the wholesale or warehouse pricing. Participating Providers using wholesale or warehouse pricing are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

LIMITATIONS

(Covered Services paid up to the Schedule of Benefits)

Benefit limitations are shown in the Schedule of Benefits and are described below:

- Contact Lenses. The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility.
- 2. Rigid gas permeable scleral and hybrid contact lenses for advanced keratoconus may be partially covered for patients who meet the Non-Elective Contact Lens Criteria and when other contact lens approaches have been demonstrated to be unsuccessful. The patient will be responsible for the amount of the provider's charge exceeding the benefit allowance. Ocular surface diseases and treatment of underlying ocular pathologies are generally covered under the patient's medical plan.
- 3. Charges for non-Standard Lenses or lens options including, but not limited to, polycarbonate, premium progressive, photochromic, polarized, hi-index, occupational, beveled, faceted, coated (i.e., anti-reflective, scratch, mirrored, and UV), oversized exceeding the allowance for covered lenses, or other custom lens options will only be covered to the extent there is a dollar value on the schedule and We will only pay up to the amount listed. Any amount for these items above that limit shall be the responsibility of Insured person;
- 4. Tints, other than pink or rose #1 or #2. Tints are paid according to the patient's benefit allowance. The balance of the charge for standard tints (any solid tint) exceeding the allowance is a provider fee adjustment. The balance of non-standard tints or coatings (such as gradient or double gradient and mirrored) is a patient responsibility.
- 5. Any promotions and/or discounts that are combined with Covered Services under the Policy.

EXCLUSIONS

(Non-Covered Services)

We will not pay benefits for:

- 1. Any eye examination required by an employer as a condition of employment;
- 2. Care or treatment of a condition for which benefits are paid to You under any Worker's Compensation Act or similar law:
- 3. Replacement contact lens insurance offered by providers, care kits, or frame cases;
- 4. Covered Services which began prior to Your effective date or after benefits have been terminated:
- 5. Charges for which You are not legally obligated to pay;
- 6. Covered Services required by any government agency or program, (federal, state, or subdivision thereof);
- 7. Orthoptics or, vision training or subnormal vision aids;
- 8. Services that are Experimental or Investigational in nature;
- Any services provided in connection with war or any act of war, whether declared or undeclared, or condition contracted or accident occurring while on full-time active duty in the armed forces of any country or combination of countries;
- 10. Procedures or expenses that are not included in the Schedule of Benefits;

- 11. Any charge for services that the appropriate regulatory board determines were provided as a result of a referral prohibited by State Law;
- 12. Medical or surgical treatment of the eyes, including treatment of any suspected pathology or injury that may be uncovered during the course of a covered vision examination and that may be payable under the medical benefits of the Insured's health plan. In the event that the provider determines that additional diagnostic procedures or treatment plans are indicated to confirm the suspected pathology or injury, the Insured will need to obtain care under her/his medical plan. Insureds who are covered under their medical plan should be referred back to their Primary Care Physician or Participating Medical Group;
- 13. Any Covered Services provided by another vision Policy, except benefits payable under Coordination of Benefits; and
- 14. Replacement of lenses or frames which are lost, stolen, or broken, except when benefits are otherwise available.
- 15. Plan Maximum and Frequency the Maximum benefits shown in the Schedule of Benefits for which the Insured Person was eligible and received benefits from the Prior Plan, provided that such Prior Plan would have covered substantially the same benefit Deductible and frequency as the initial Prior Plan Policy, had the Prior Plan not been cancelled.

VIS-C-2019 -7 -

PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS

Certain Ophthalmologists, Opticians and Optometrists have agreed to be Participating Providers. A list of Participating Providers is available from Our Administrator or Us. The most current list of Participating Providers may be downloaded or delivered from the Administrator's website at www.mesvision.com or it can be delivered upon request to an Insured by contacting the Administrator's Customer Service Department at (800) 877-6372. This list may change from time to time, and is updated daily on the website. The Schedule of Benefits states separately the benefits for Participating Providers and all other providers or Non-Participating Providers.

EXPENSES INCURRED

An Eligible Vision Expense is considered incurred on the date the service is performed, or the order date of the delivered eyewear. Late claim submission for eyewear claims is determined by the eyewear delivery date.

VOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF COVERAGE

The parties agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the "Voluntary Termination of Coverage" provision in the Certificate, and Gerber Life shall delete in its entirety said provision from the Certificate.

DEPENDENT COVERAGE

Dependents are covered on the later of:

- 1. the date Dependent Coverage is first included in Your coverage; or
- 2. the date the person first qualified as Your Dependent.

NEWBORN INFANT COVERAGE

With respect to the "Newborn Infant Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of birth of the dependent child in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Life shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child notice of birth and additional premium.

ADOPTED CHILDREN COVERAGE

With respect to the "Adopted Children Coverage" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium must be submitted to Gerber Life within 60 days after the date of placement of adoption in order to continue coverage beyond the 60-day period. The Parties further agree that Gerber Lift shall not enforce the 31 day time period for submitting the dependent child adoption notice and additional premium.

VIS-C-2019 - 8 -

COORDINATION OF BENEFITS

If You or any of Your Dependents are also covered under one or more other Policies, the benefits payable under this Policy will be coordinated with the benefits payable under all other Policies.

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply only to this Coordination of Benefits section.

- 1. The term "Policy" means coverage providing hospital, medical or vision benefits or services by:
 - a) group or blanket insurance coverage, except school accident coverage;
 - b) group practice or other prepayment coverage on a group basis; or
 - c) any coverage under a labor-management trust Policy, union welfare Policies, employer organization, or employee benefit Policies.

The term "Policy" will be construed separately for a policy, contract or other arrangement for benefits or services that reserves the right to take the benefits or services of other Policies into consideration in determining its benefits, or separately for that portion which does not reserve the right.

2. The term "Covered Expense" means any necessary, reasonable, and customary item of expense, all or part of which is covered under one of the Policies.

When a Policy provides benefits in the forms of services rather than cash payments, the reasonable cash value of each service rendered will be considered to be both a Covered Expense and a benefit paid.

3. The term "Claim Period" means a calendar year or a portion of a calendar year for a claim on anyone covered under this Policy.

ORDER OF BENEFITS DETERMINATION

The order of benefit determination rules governs the order in which each Policy will pay a claim for benefits. The Policy that pays first is called the Primary policy. The Primary policy must pay benefits in accordance with its policy terms without regard to the possibility that another Policy may cover some expenses. The Policy that pays after the Primary policy is the Secondary policy. The Secondary policy may reduce the benefits it pays so that payments from all Policies do not exceed 100% of the total Covered Expense.

The rules establishing the order of benefit determination are:

- 1. The Primary policy pays or provides its benefits according to its terms of coverage and without regard to the benefits of under any other policy.
- a) Except as provided in paragraph (b) below, a Policy that does not contain a coordination of benefits (COB) provision that is consistent with this provision is always primary unless the provisions of both Policies state that the complying policy is primary.
 - b) Coverage obtained by virtue of membership in a group that is designed to supplement a part of a basic package of benefits may provide that the supplementary coverage shall be excess to any other parts of the Policy provided by the Policy holder. An example of this type of situation is coverage written in connection with a closed panel policy to provide out-of-network benefits.
- 3. A Policy may consider the benefits paid or provided by another Policy in calculating payment of its benefits only when it is secondary to this Policy.
- 4. Each Policy determines its order of benefits using the first of the following rules that apply:
 - a) Non-Dependent or Dependent. The Policy that covers the Insured other than as a Dependent, for example as an employee, is the Primary policy and the Policy that covers the Insured as a Dependent is the Secondary policy. However, if the Insured is a Medicare beneficiary and, as a result of federal law, Medicare is secondary to the Policy covering the Insured as a Dependent, and primary to the Policy

VIS-C-2019 - 9 -

covering the Insured as other than a Dependent (e.g. a retired employee), then the order of benefits between the two Policies is reversed so that the Policy covering the Insured as an employee is the Secondary policy and the other Policy is the Primary policy.

- b) Dependent covered under more than one Policy. Unless there is a court decree stating otherwise, when a Dependent is covered by more than one Policy the order of benefits is determined as follows:
 - 1) For a Dependent whose parents are married or are living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. The Policy of the parent whose birthday falls earlier in the calendar year is the Primary policy; or
 - b. If both parents have the same birthday, the Policy that has covered the parent the longest is the Primary policy.
 - 2) For a Dependent whose parents are divorced or separated or not living together, whether or not they have ever been married:
 - a. If a court decree states that one of the parents is responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage and the Policy of that parent has actual knowledge of those terms, that Policy is primary. This rule applies to policy years commencing after the Policy is given notice of the court decree;
 - b. If a court decree states that both parents are responsible for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits:
 - c. If a court decree states that the parents have joint custody without specifying that one parent has responsibility for the health care expenses or health care coverage of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) above shall determine the order of benefits; or
 - d. If there is no court decree allocating responsibility for the Dependent's health care expenses or health care coverage, the order of benefits for the child are as follows:
 - A. The Policy covering the custodial parent,
 - B. The Policy covering the spouse of the custodial parent;
 - C. The Policy covering the noncustodial parent; and then
 - D. The Policy covering the spouse of the noncustodial parent.
 - 3) For a Dependent covered under more than one Policy of individuals who are not the parents of the Dependent, the provisions of subparagraph (a) or (b) above shall determine the order of benefits as if those individuals were the Dependent's parent.
- c) The Policy that covers an Insured as an employee, who is neither laid off nor retired (or as that employee's Dependent), is the Primary policy. The Policy covering the same Insured as a laid-off or retired employee (or as that employee's Dependent) is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and if, as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (c) is ignored. This rule does not apply if rule 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- d) If an Insured whose coverage is provided pursuant to COBRA or under a right of continuation provided by state or other federal law is covered under another Policy, the Policy covering the person as an employee, member, subscriber, or retiree or covering the insured as a Dependent of an employee, member, subscriber or retiree is the Primary policy and the COBRA or state or other federal continuation coverage is the Secondary policy. If the other Policy does not have this rule, and as a result, the Policies do not agree on the order of benefits, this rule (d) is ignored. This rule does not apply if the rule labeled 4(a) can determine the order of benefits.
- e) Longer or shorter length of coverage. The Policy that covered the Insured as an employee, member, policyholder, subscriber, or retiree longer is the Primary policy and the Policy that covered the Insured the shorter period of time is the Secondary policy.
- f) If the preceding rules do not determine the order of benefits, the Covered Expenses shall be shared equally between the Policies meeting the definition of Policy. In addition, this Policy will not pay more than it would have paid had it been the Primary policy.

VIS-C-2019 - 10 --

EFFECTS ON THE BENEFITS OF THIS POLICY

- 1. When this Policy is secondary, it may reduce its benefits so that the total benefits paid or provided by all policies during a policy year are not more than the total Covered Expenses. In determining the claims payment, the Secondary policy will calculate the benefits it would have paid in the absence of other health care coverage and apply that calculated amount to any Covered Expense under its Policy that is unpaid by the Primary policy. The Secondary policy may then reduce its payment by the amount so that, when combined with the amount paid by the Primary policy, the total benefits paid or provided by all policies for the claim do not exceed the total Covered Expense for that claim. In addition, the Secondary policy shall credit to its policy deductible any amounts it would have credited to its deductible in the absence of other health care coverage.
- 2. If an Insured is enrolled in two or more closed panel policies and if, for any reason, including the provision of service by a Non-Participating Provider, benefits are not payable by one closed panel policy, COB shall not apply between this Policy and other closed panel policies.

RIGHT TO RECEIVE AND RELEASE NEEDED INFORMATION

Certain facts about health care coverage and services are needed to apply these COB rules and to determine benefits payable under this Policy and other polices. We may get the facts We need from or give them to other organizations or persons for the purpose of applying these rules and determining benefits payable under this Policy and other policies covering the Insured claiming benefits. We need not tell, or get the consent of, any person to do this. Each Insured claiming benefits under this Policy must give Us any facts We need to apply those rules and determine benefits payable.

FACILITY OF PAYMENT

A payment made under another policy may include an amount that should have been paid under this Policy. If it does, We may pay that amount to the organization that made that payment. That amount will then be treated as though it were a benefit paid under this Policy. We will not have to pay that amount again. The term "payment made" includes providing benefits in the form of services, in which case "payment made" means the reasonable cash value of the benefits provided in the form of services.

RIGHT OF RECOVERY

If Our payment is more than We should have paid under this COB provision, We may recover the excess from one or more of the Insureds paid, or any other person or organization that may be responsible for the benefits or services provided for the Insured.

BENEFITS SUBJECT TO COORDINATION

All benefits provided under the Policy are subject to coordination.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

ENTIRE CONTRACT; CHANGES

This Certificate, the Policy, the application of the Policyholder and any applicable state rider or endorsement, constitute(s) the entire contract between the Policyholder and Us, and any statement made by the Policyholder or by any Insured person shall, in the absence of fraud, be deemed a representation and not a warranty. No such statement shall be used in defense to a claim hereunder unless it is contained in a written application.

No change in the Policy shall be valid unless: (1) approved in writing by the Policyholder within 30- days advance written notice; and (2) approved by Our Executive Officer and unless such approval be endorsed herein or attached hereto. No agent has authority to change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

VIS-C-2019 - 11 -

TIME LIMIT ON CERTAIN DEFENSES

After two (2) years from the date of issue of the Policy, no misstatement of the Policyholder, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in this application shall be used to void the Policy; and after two (2) years from the effective date of the coverage with respect to which any claim is made no misstatement of any employee eligible for coverage under the Policy, except a fraudulent misstatement, made in an application under the Policy shall be used to deny a claim for loss incurred or disability (as defined in the Policy) commencing after expiration of such two (2) years.

LEGAL ACTIONS

No action at law or in equity shall be brought to recover on the Policy prior to the expiration of sixty (60) days after written proof of loss has been furnished in accordance with the requirements of the Policy. No such action shall be brought after the expiration of three (3) years after the time written proof of loss is required to be furnished.

CONFORMITY TO LAW

With respect to the "Conformity to Law" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that any provision of the Policy, which on its Effective Date is in conflict with the statutes of the State of California, is changed to conform to the minimum standards of these statutes. As such, the Parties agree that Gerber Life shall delete the phrase "jurisdiction in which it was issued" and replace it with "State of California."

NON-PARTICIPATION

The Policy will not share in Our surplus or earnings.

CLAIMS PROVISIONS

DISCLOSURE OF COVERAGE; CLAIMS

Participating Providers have agreed to bill Our Administrator directly. It is Your responsibility to identify yourself as having vision coverage at the time of service. If You do not, You may be required to pay for services and/or materials at the time of the visit, and any submitted claim will be paid to the Participating Provider. The Participating Provider is required to refund the amount paid by You, less any Deductibles or payments for non-covered services. If You do not inform the Participating Provider or, if You obtain services from a Non-Participating Provider the "Notice of Claim" provision shall be applicable.

NOTICE OF CLAIM

Written notice of claim must be given to Our Administrator within twenty (20) days after the occurrence or commencement of any loss covered by the Policy, or as soon thereafter as is reasonably possible. The notice should include sufficient information to identify the Insured. Claim forms may be obtained from a Participating Provider, Our Administrator, Policyholder, or Us. When the Administrator receives the notice of the claim, the Administrator will send the forms for filing a vision claim. The forms will be sent within fifteen (15) days of the request from the claimant.

CLAIM FORM

Upon receipt of a written notice of claim, We will furnish to the claimant such forms as are usually furnished for filing proofs of loss. If such forms are not furnished within fifteen (15) days after the giving of such notice the claimant shall be deemed to have complied with the requirements of the Policy as to proof of loss upon submitting, within the time fixed in the Policy for filing proofs of loss, written proof covering the occurrence, the character and the extent of the loss for which claim is made.

VIS-C-2019 - 12 -

PROOF OF LOSS (CLAIM SUBMISSION)

Written proof of loss must be furnished to Our Administrator, in case of claim for loss for which the Policy provides any periodic payment contingent upon continuing loss, within ninety (90) days after the termination of the period for which We are liable, and in case of claim for any other loss, within ninety (90) days after the date of such loss. Failure to furnish such proof within the time required shall not invalidate nor reduce any claim if it was not reasonably possible to give proof within such time, provided such proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible and in no event, except in the absence of legal capacity of the employee, proof must be sent no later than one (1) year from the date of service (date of service means the calendar date on which Covered Services were provided).

TIME OF PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

Subject to due written proof of loss, all benefits due under the Policy will be paid to or on behalf of the Insured as they accrue and any balance remaining unpaid at termination of the period of liability will be paid to the Insured immediately upon receipt of due written proof.

PAYMENT OF CLAIMS

If the Policy provides coverage of a claimant as a Dependent of a parent who has legal responsibility for the Dependent's medical care and such parent does not have custody of the Dependent, We may, upon request of the custodial parent, make the payments directly to the provider of care or the non-covered custodial parent. Any payments so made will release Us from all further liability to the Insured to the extent of the payments made.

Benefits for other losses are paid to the Participating Provider or, if services are rendered by a Non-Participating Provider, the payment will be made to the Insured. Any accrued benefits unpaid at the Insured's death will be paid to the Insured's estate.

Requests for payment adjustments should be made within 180 days of payment or denial. Payment may require approval prior to additional payment and may be subject to the claim submission deadline.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

PREMIUMS

DUE DATE AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

Premiums are payable on a monthly basis, unless We agree to some other mode of payment. Premiums are due on the first day of each month. If We agree to change the method of paying premiums, any pro rata adjusted premium required will be payable.

GRACE PERIOD

A grace period of thirty-one (31) days will be granted for the payment of premiums accruing after the first premium, during which grace period the Policy shall continue in force, but the Policyholder shall be liable to Us for the payment of the premium accruing for the period the Policy continues in force. If a premium is not paid by the end of the grace period. Your coverage will terminate at the end of the grace period.

PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS

Premiums are payable at Our office in White Plains, New York, or to Our Administrator. The first premium for each Insured is due on the Certificate Effective Date. Each monthly payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for a period of one month. If the method of paying premiums is changed by agreement as indicated above, each premium payment will pay for the insurance then in force under the Policy for the agreed upon period.

VIS-C-2019 - 13 -

REINSTATEMENT

There shall be no provision in a group disability policy relative to reinstatement of the Policy after lapse because of default in the payment of premium.

CHANGE IN PREMIUM RATES AND BENEFITS

With respect to the "Change in Premium Rates and Benefits" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life has the right to change the premiums upon renewal only if Gerber Life has provided at least 180 days advance written notice to the Policyholder.

VIS-C-2019 - 14 -

PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

We maintain physical, electronic, and administrative safeguards that meet federal and state requirements. The Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information (PHI) is limited to persons who need the information for authorized business purposes. We will not use PHI for marketing purposes. If you would like to obtain a copy of our "Notice of Privacy Practices", which explains your rights in relation to PHI, please submit your written request to:

Privacy Compliance Office / Legal Department Gerber Life Insurance Company 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, NY 10605

INTERNAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The Insured, or the Insured's representative, has the right to appeal any denial of a claim for benefits by submitting a written request for reconsideration with Us. If an Insured's claim is denied in whole or in part, he/she will receive written notification of the denial. If the Insured is not satisfied with a determination made by Us, the Insured is entitled to an appeal process or "Grievance" as described. A Grievance must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after the occurrence.

You (the Insured) or Insured's authorized representative can file a Grievance on the website (www.MESVision.com), by fax, by telephone, or by mail. To file a Grievance please contact Our Administrator:

Medical Eye Services, Inc.
Attn: Benefit Resolutions Department
P.O. Box 25209
Santa Ana. CA 92799

Website: www.MESV*ision*.com Telephone #: 800-877-6372

Fax #: 714-619-4662

If you need the help of the California Department of Insurance (CDI) with a complaint involving a grievance that has not been satisfactorily resolved by the Administrator and/or Gerber Life Insurance Company, you may file a complaint online (https://cdiapps.insurance.ca.gov/CP/login/), call the CDI's toll-free number at 1-800-927-4357, or write to:

California Department of Insurance Consumer Services Division 300 South Spring Street Los Angeles, CA 90013

VIS-C-2019 - 15 -

CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE

With respect to the "Cancellation of Insurance" provision in the Certificate, the Parties agree that Gerber Life may cancel the Policy at any time by advance written notice delivered to the employer, or mailed to the employer's last address, as shown on Gerber Life's records, stating when, not less than 60 days thereafter, such cancellation shall be effective.

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

We may terminate the Policy on any premium due date. We will give the Policyholder, the insurance producer, and any administrator at least 60 days advance written notice of such termination, except for non-payment of premiums when the grace period will apply. The Policyholder may terminate the Policy at any time by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Administrator. The Policy will then terminate on the requested termination date or some later date on which the Policyholder and the Administrator have agreed. The Policyholder remains responsible for the payment of premiums to the date of termination. If thirty (30) days written notice of termination is not provided to the Administrator, the termination date shall be effective on the last day of the month after any date(s) of the service rendered to any Insured person or the Policyholder's requested termination effective date, whichever is later, subject to the Insured notification requirements.

If nonemployee certificate holders or employees of more than one employer are covered under the Policy, written notice shall also be delivered by mail to the last known address of each nonemployee certificate holder or affected employer or, if the action does not affect all employees and Dependents of one or more employers, to the last known address of each affected employee certificate holder, at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the action.

The coverage on any Insured will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Insured ceases to be eligible for coverage;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

The coverage of any Dependent will end automatically on the earliest of the following dates:

- 1. The last day of the month in which the Dependent ceases to be an eligible Dependent;
- 2. Subject to the "Grace Period" provision, the last day of the month for which the required premium has been paid; and
- 3. The date the Policy is terminated or discontinued.

Termination of coverage will not prejudice any existing claim.

MILITARY REINSTATEMENT

Members of the United States Military Reserve and The National Guard who are called to active duty on or after January 1, 2007 will be reinstated upon payment of premium as a covered Insured without a waiting period or exclusions of coverage for pre-existing conditions.

INDIVIDUAL CONTINUATION OF BENEFITS

Applicable to Insureds when the group is subject to either Title X of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) (groups of 20 or more eligible employees) as amended or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA) (groups of 2 to 19 eligible employees). The group should be contacted for more information.

In accordance with the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) as amended and the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA), an Insured will be entitled to elect to continue group coverage under this Policy if the Insured would otherwise lose coverage because of a Qualifying Event that occurs while the group is subject to the continuation of group coverage provisions of COBRA or Cal-COBRA.

The benefits under the group continuation of coverage will be identical to the benefits that would be provided to the Insured if the Qualifying Event had not occurred (including any changes in such coverage).

Note: The Insured will not be entitled to benefits under Cal-COBRA if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare") or is covered under another group health group that provides coverage without exclusions or limitations with respect to any Pre-existing condition. Under COBRA, the Insured will not be entitled to benefits if at the time of the qualifying event such Insured is entitled to Medicare.

A. Qualifying Event

A Qualifying Event is defined as a loss of coverage as a result of any one of the following occurrences.

- 1. With respect to the subscriber:
 - a) the termination of employment (other than by reason of gross misconduct); or
 - b) the reduction of hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility.
- 2. With respect to the Dependent spouse or Dependent Domestic Partner* and Dependent children (children born to or placed for adoption with the subscriber, or subscriber's Dependent spouse or Domestic Partner, during a COBRA or Cal-COBRA continuation period may be immediately added as Dependents, provided the group is properly notified of the birth or placement for adoption, and such children are enrolled within thirty (30) days of the birth or placement for adoption):
 - *Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.
 - a) the death of the subscriber: or
 - b) the termination of the subscriber's employment (other than by reason of such subscriber's gross misconduct); or
 - c) the reduction of the subscriber's hours of employment to less than the number of hours required for eligibility; or
 - d) the divorce or legal separation of the subscriber from the Dependent spouse or termination of the domestic partnership; or
 - e) the subscriber's entitlement to benefits under Title XVIII of the Social Security Act ("Medicare"); or
 - f) a Dependent child's loss of Dependent status under the Policy.

- 3. For COBRA only, with respect to a subscriber who is covered as a retiree, that retiree's Dependent spouse and Dependent children, the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code, commencing on or after July 1, 1986.
- 4. With respect to any of the above, such other Qualifying Event as may be added to Title X of COBRA or the California Continuation Benefits Replacement Act (Cal-COBRA).

B. Notification of a Qualifying Event

1. With respect to COBRA Insureds:

The Insured must notify the group, in writing, of all qualifying events (divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partner or a child's loss of Dependent status) within sixty (60) days of the date of the qualifying event. If the Insured fails to make the notification to the group within the required sixty (60) days, the Insured will be disqualified from receiving continuation coverage. The Insured must elect continuation coverage within the sixty (60) days of either (1) the date that the Insured's coverage under the Contract terminated or will terminate by reason of a qualifying event, or (2) the date the Insured was sent the notice of the required benefit information, premium information, enrollment forms, and disclosures to allow the qualified beneficiary to formally elect continuation coverage, whichever is later.

The group is responsible for notifying its COBRA administrator (or group administrator if the group does not have a COBRA administrator) of the Insured's death, termination, or reduction of hours of employment, the subscriber's Medicare entitlement or the group's filing for reorganization under Title XI, United States Code.

When the COBRA administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the COBRA administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage or (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event.

If the Insured does not notify the COBRA administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

2. With respect to Cal-COBRA Insureds:

The Insured is responsible for notifying the group in writing of the Employee's/subscribers death or Medicare entitlement, of divorce, legal separation, termination of a domestic partnership, or a child's loss of Dependent status under this Policy. Such notice must be given within sixty (60) days of the date of the later of the Qualifying Event or the date on which coverage would otherwise terminate under this Policy because of a Qualifying Event. Failure to provide such notice within sixty (60) days will disqualify the Insured from receiving continuation coverage under Cal-COBRA.

The group is responsible for notifying the vision plan Administrator in writing of termination or reduction of hours of employment within thirty (30) days of the Qualifying Event.

When the vision plan Administrator is notified that a Qualifying Event has occurred, the vision plan Administrator will, within fourteen (14) days, provide written notice to the Insured by first class mail of his or her right to continue group coverage under this Policy. The Insured must then give the group notice in writing of the Insured's election of continuation coverage within sixty (60) days of the later of: (1) the date of the notice of the Insured's right to continue group coverage, and (2) the date coverage terminates due to the Qualifying Event. The written election notice must be delivered to the vision plan Administrator by first-class mail or other reliable means.

If the Insured does not notify the vision plan Administrator within sixty (60) days, the Insured's coverage will terminate on the date the Insured would have lost coverage because of the Qualifying Event.

VIS-C-2019 - 18 -

If this Policy replaces a previous Policy that was in effect with the group's, and the Insured had elected Cal-COBRA continuation coverage under the previous group, the Insured may choose to continue to be covered by this Policy for the balance of the period that the Insured could have continued to be covered under the previous group, provided that the Insured notify the vision plan Administrator within thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the termination of the previous group.

C. Duration and Extension of Continuation of Group Coverage

Cal-COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for up to a maximum of 36 months regardless of the type of Qualifying Event.

COBRA Insureds will be eligible to continue coverage under this Policy for 18, 29, or 36 months depending on the type of Qualifying Event. Contact your group for more information.

COBRA Insureds who reach the 18-month or 29-month maximum available under COBRA, may elect to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA for a maximum period of 36 months from the date the Insured's continuation coverage began under COBRA. If elected, the Cal-COBRA coverage will begin after the COBRA coverage ends.

Note: COBRA Insureds must exhaust all the COBRA coverage to which they are entitled before they can become eligible to continue coverage under Cal-COBRA.

In no event will continuation of group coverage under COBRA, Cal-COBRA or a combination of COBRA and Cal-COBRA be extended for more than 3 years from the date the Qualifying Event has occurred which originally entitled the Insured to continue group coverage under this Policy.

Note: Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners cannot elect COBRA on their own, and are only eligible for COBRA if the subscriber elects to enroll. Domestic Partners and Dependent children of Domestic Partners may elect to enroll in Cal-COBRA on their own.

D. Notification Requirements of Cal-COBRA Extension

The group or its COBRA administrator is responsible for notifying COBRA Insureds of their right to possibly continue coverage under Cal-COBRA at least ninety (90) calendar days before their COBRA coverage will end. The COBRA Insured should contact the group for more information about continuing coverage. If the Insured elects to apply for continuation of coverage under Cal-COBRA, the Insured must notify the group at least thirty (30) days before COBRA termination.

E. Payment of Premiums

Premiums for the Insured continuing coverage shall be 102 percent of the applicable group premium rate if the Insured is a COBRA Insured, or 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate if the Insured is a Cal-COBRA Insured, except for the Insured who is eligible to continue group coverage to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, in which case, the premiums for months 19 through 29 shall be 150 percent of the applicable group premium rate.

Note: For COBRA Insureds who are eligible to extend group coverage under COBRA to 29 months because of a Social Security disability determination, premiums for Cal-COBRA coverage shall be 110 percent of the applicable group premiums rate for months 30 through 36.

If the Insured is enrolled in COBRA and is contributing to the cost of coverage, the group shall be responsible for collecting and submitting all premium contributions in the manner and for the period established under this Policy.

Cal-COBRA Insureds must submit premiums directly to the Vision Plan Administrator. The initial premiums must be paid within forty-five (45) days of the date the Insured provided written notification to the Vision Plan Administrator of the election to continue coverage and be sent to the Vision Plan Administrator through the

VIS-C-2019 - 19 -

MESVision website at (www.MESVision.com) or by first-class mail or other reliable means. The premiums payment must equal an amount sufficient to pay any required amounts that are due. Failure to submit the correct amount within the 45-day period will disqualify the Insured from continuation coverage.

F. Effective Date of the Continuation of Coverage

The continuation of coverage will begin on the date the Insured's coverage under this Policy would otherwise terminate due to the occurrence of a Qualifying Event and it will continue for up to the applicable period, provided that coverage is timely elected and so long as premiums are timely paid.

G. Termination of Continuation of Group Coverage

The continuation of group coverage will cease if any one of the following events occurs prior to the expiration of the applicable period of continuation of group coverage:

- 1. discontinuance of this group vision insurance Policy (if the group continues to provide any group benefit for subscribers, the Insured may be able to continue coverage);
- 2. failure to timely and fully pay the amount of required premiums as applicable. Coverage will end as of the end of the period for which premiums were paid;
- 3. the Insured becomes entitled to Medicare:
- 4. the Insured no longer resides in California;
- 5. the Insured commits fraud or deception in the use of the benefits of this Policy.

Continuation of group coverage in accordance with COBRA or Cal-COBRA will not be terminated except as described in this provision. In no event will coverage extend beyond 36 months.

H. Notification Requirements

The group must notify a qualified beneficiary during the 180 days prior to the expiration of continuation coverage of (1) the date continuation coverage will terminate and (2) the availability of any conversion coverage that is available.

VIS-C-2019 - 20 -

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR COVERED SERVICES

If Covered Services are provided by a participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, charges will be paid on the basis of prevailing fees¹, but not to exceed the "Participating Provider" allowances. If Covered Services are provided by a non-participating Ophthalmologist, Optician, or Optometrist, any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is the patient's responsibility.

Deductible Amounts²:

Exam \$0 Materials \$0

Covered Services & Benefits

Allowances

	Participating Provider	Non-Participating Provider
Exam:		
Comprehensive Examination	Covered in Full	\$40
Lenses:		
Single Vision	Covered in Full	\$40
Bifocal	Covered in Full	\$60
Trifocal	Covered in Full	\$80
Standard Progressive⁵	Covered in Full	\$80
Premium Progressive ⁶	\$89.50	\$80
Aphakic/Lenticular Monofocal	Covered in Full	\$125
Aphakic/Lenticular Multifocal	Covered in Full	\$125
High Power of 7.25 Diopters or more additional (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Prism 1 ½ to 4 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Prism 4 ½ to 10 diopters (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Slab-off prism (per lens)	Covered in Full	\$0
Polycarbonate for children up to age 19:		
Single Vision	\$85	\$55
Bifocal	\$85	\$0
Contact Lenses ³ :		
Non-Elective/Medically Necessary (one pair)	Covered in Full	\$210 \$405
Elective/Cosmetic without UV Protection	\$105	\$105
Frame ⁴ :		
Selection up to a retail amount of	\$120	\$45

Prevailing Fees means a fee which falls within a range of charges, as submitted to Medical Eye Services, Inc. by providers within a geographical area.

VIS-C-2019 - 21 -

The Deductible is an amount of charges for Eligible Vision Expenses: (a) that You incur and (b) for which no benefits will be paid. Provider locations using warehouse pricing will waive the eyewear Deductible. These providers are identified in the Provider Directory at www.mesvision.com.

The contact lens allowance is in lieu of other eyewear. The allowance includes the contact lens evaluation, fitting costs, and materials, except when the Insured has a separate fitting benefit. To determine the appropriate benefit allowance, all contact lens claims must include the contact lens manufacturer and brand. Some retail and wholesale providers do not participate in this program. Please check with your provider before placing your order. Any difference between the allowance and the provider's charge is a patient responsibility. Please refer to the Limitations section of this Certificate.

- The difference between the benefit amount and the charges for more expensive frames or unusual lenses, such as oversize, will be a patient responsibility. The retail frame allowance is reduced 30%-35% at provider locations employing wholesale or warehouse pricing. These provider locations are identified in the Participating Provider directory at www.mesvision.com. Some designer frames may be restricted by the manufacturer.
- Standard progressive lenses (also referred to as no-line bifocals) allow you to see distance, mid-range and near clearly; however, there may be some peripheral distortion. Standard progressive lenses also need to be a minimum height in order to transition properly between distance and near vision. Standard progressive lenses are a covered-in-full benefit.
- Premium progressive lenses are digitally surfaced so they provide a wider reading area, less peripheral distortion and less height restrictions, than standard progressive lenses. Premium progressive lenses with higher levels of customization, including high definition lenses, are not a covered-in-full benefit; the patient is responsible for the balance between the maximum plan benefit and the provider's usual, customary, and reasonable charge.

You may also refer to the website at www.MESVision.com for benefit eligibility and claim history information or call 1-800-877-6372 to speak to a representative. Written inquiries may be forwarded to: Medical Eye Services, Inc., P.O. Box 25209, Santa Ana, CA 92799.

VIS-C-2019 - 22 -

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CALIFORNIA LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE SERVICES

We are pleased to help you obtain vision care services in the language you understand at no charge to you.

Interpreter Services

If you or a family member have limited English speaking skills and need verbal interpreter services or assistance arranging vision care services, the vision Policy administrator can assist you:

Call 1-800-877-6372 for assistance with interpreter services; or

Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired.

Hours of Operation; Monday - Friday, 8:00 am - 5:00 pm Pacific Time

Translation of Written Information to Insureds

The language most frequently requested to be translated among our membership is referred to as the "threshold language", which is currently Spanish. Upon your request, the administrator will translate written information that impacts your vision care coverage into the threshold language(s). To request translation of vision benefit documents:

Call 1-800-877-6372, Customer Service; or

Call the TTY/TDD Line at 1-877-735-2929 for the hearing and speech impaired.

Hours of Operation: Monday - Friday, 8:00 am - 5:00 pm Pacific Time

If unable to reach us, please contact the Department of Insurance Consumer Communications Bureau toll-free number at 1-800-927-HELP (4357) or TDD 1-800-482-4833. Telephone lines are open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time, Monday through Friday, except state holidays.

VIS-C-2019 - 23 -

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

NOTICE

This notice is added to and made part of the Policy or Certificate to which it is attached in compliance with Federal law.

THE POLICY AND THE CERTIFICATES ISSUED UNDER IT PROVIDE VISION-ONLY INSURANCE. THE COVERAGE PROVIDED UNDER THE POLICY IS A SUPPLEMENT TO HEALTH INSURANCE AND IS NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE. LACK OF MAJOR MEDICAL COVERAGE OR OTHER MINIMUM ESSENTIAL COVERAGE MAY RESULT IN AN ADDITIONAL PAYMENT WITH YOUR TAXES.

Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to alter or affect any of the provisions of the Policy.

Signed by the Company:

President & CEO

GROUP INSURANCE CERTIFICATE PROVIDING SCHEDULED VISION CARE INSURANCE

Gerber Life Insurance Company

A Stock Company
Home Office: 1311 Mamaroneck Avenue, White Plains, New York 10605

Administrator
Medical Eye Services, Inc.
P.O. Box 25209
Santa Ana, CA 92799-5209
(800) 877-6372/TDD Line (877) 735-2929/www.mesvision.com

EXHIBIT B

APPLICATION FOR GROUP COVERAGE

- Full Service
- Eyewear Only
- Retirees

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

APPLICATION FOR GROUP COVERAGE: VISION

Full-Legal Name of Employer/Group: COUNTY O	F-RIVERSIDE (FULL SERV	ICE) SIC:	
Group Contact: DANA WEBB	E-mail Address	DFWebb@	rc-hr.com
Address (Street): 4080 LEMON STREET/PO BOX	C 1569		951-955-8290
City; RIVERSIDE	State: CA		Code: 92502
Legal Entity: Corporation S-Corporation Partners!	nip Sole Proprietorship	☐ Trust ☐ Asso	ciation 🔀 Other:
Nature of Business: Local Goyernme	ent		
Subsidiaries or Affiliates to be insured: 💢 No 1.	Yes, Full Legal Name(s):	
2.			
Coverage Requested	y in the state of		沙丘的联系对于0.4 4年
Benefit Frequency, Frame Allowance, Contact Lens Allo	owance)		A service service and the service service
1. Plan: PLAN C 12/12/12 \$75 FRAME/\$100 CO	NTACTS 2. Requested E.	ffective Date: TBD	
3. Number of Eligible employees: 13,946	4. Number of e	nployees enrolling:	8753
5. Number of Eligible dependents: 18 9/16 6. N	lumber of dependents enrollin	g: 9424 6a. Depend	lent age limit: 25
7. Waiting Period: Initial Employees: 😡 None	Future Employees: []		
8. Employer Contribution 0 00 % Emplo	yee / % Dependents		
All or part of this insurance will replace similar of No Yes, please submit copies of the p	coverage: colicy(ies) and/or certificate(s)		
Prior Carrier AIG/POLICY #VCP9522302	Coverage 01/01/2004		Fermination Date
0. Initial premium deposit: Minimum First Month	Premium S, Plus S	Billing Fee.	
	TAL REMITTED: \$	NIA	
Agreement			新疆公司
t is agreed that the policy will not become effer office at rates to be determined by the Companies of the Company. If approved, the effect of the date the required number of Employees arolled, whichever is later. The Applicant declinations to the above questions are complete and	fective date of the policy we es who are to contribute to large that to the best of his	will be refunded in the effect of the Cost of the	f the application is no ctive date requested; of
Authorization	湖水公园园港公园	独立的	
Oated at: (City) (State) Riverside CA	This (Month) August 19,	(J)	(Year)
Vitness (Licensed Broker/Agent)	By (Authorized Sign		
rint Broker/Agent Name	Print Name		
Brent Crane roker/Agent License Number	Michael Sto	ock	
remarkette meetre tantinet	Title		
0A27852	Asst. CEO/Hum	125 DAGG	Not make a second

19245 Riverside County (Full Service) Application.docx

AUG 25 2014

BY:____

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue While Plains, New York 10605,

Group Information Name:of Group: COUN Billing Address: Street: 4080 LEMON S		FULL SERVICE)	until de la company de la comp		
Billing Address: Street: 4080 LEMON ST	11 OF KIVEKSIDE (LOPE SEKAICE)		**	
Street: 4080 LEMON ST					
nimi n instan	REET/ PO BOX 156	9 City: RIVE	RSIDE		State: CA Zip: 92502
Billing Contact: DANA	WEBB			Title: Prine	cipal Analyst
Telephone: (951) 955-83	90 Fax: (Q1	51) 955-85	<u> </u>	E-mail: NE.W	re-bricom
Eligibility	DESCRIPTION		NAME OF THE OWNER, OWNE		
Indicate the Number of I	Eligible Employees an	d the Number of E	mployees Initially Insure	d	
Plan: (Benefit Frèque	ncy, Frame Allowanc	e, Contact Lens	Copayment	Number of	Number of Enrollment
Allowance)			Deductible	Eligible	Forms
				Employees	
PLAN C 12/12/12 \$75 I	FRAME/\$100 CONT	ACTS	\$0	8753	N/A
				<u> </u>	
Deliver Administratio		Group	Broker/Agent		S Representative
If this insurance applie	ed for is a replaceme	ent of existing ins	urance, are you the sa	me broker/ngent	who previously wrote the
case?					
☐ Yes ☐ No				SP STANSSER CHAN	WEIGHT AND THE LOW PER HE
Rates (Please att	THE PARTY OF THE P	DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTY			
				A 40 11 1 11	EE . 63.33
EE Only: \$ 8.55	EE+1 (Spous	se or Child) \$12.92		e & Children):	EE + Children: \$
			\$17.48		
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broke/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable	months 24 month terment & Informati all the informati about this enti	nation on contained in	'S17.48 Commission: per this Application for	% (Commission in	ance is correct and I know
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broke/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an	months 24 month Cement & moint all the informatic about this entired regulations and	nation on contained in ty or any indi	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entit	ance is correct and I known that is complied with a supplied w
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name	months 24 month terment & Informati all the informati about this enti	on contained in ty or any indicated the two explained Telephon	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entit	ance is correct and I know
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name.	months 24 month tement cannot all the informatic about this entired regulations and the second secon	on contained in ty or any indicated the two explained Telephon	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entit	ance is correct and I known the complied with a second its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-43
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name.	months 24 month tement can formatic all the informatic about this entire de regulations and Sattles Consulting	on contained in ty or any indicated the type of ty	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in Group Insurance of the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I known the complied with a second its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-43 State Insurance License No. 0763901
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules at Broker/Agent Name Company Name. Aon Broker/Agent Street Add	months 24 month terrent & Informatic about this entired regulations and Consulting ress (PO Box not access)	on contained in ty or any indication Telephore Tax ID'1	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in or Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I known to the complied with a second its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-43 State Insurance License No. 0763901 roker/Agent E-mail Address:
Rate Gyarantee: 12 Broker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules at Broker/Agent Name Company Name. Aon Broker/Agent Street Add 707 Wilshire Is	months 24 month terrent & Informatic about this entired regulations and Consulting ress (PO Box not access)	on contained in ty or any indication Telephore Tax ID'1	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in or Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I known the complied with a second its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-43 State Insurance License No. 0763901
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broke / Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name. Aon Broker/Agent Street Add 707 Wilshire F City: Los Angeles	months 24 month lement and the informatic about this entired regulations and Consulting ress (PO Box not accessive). Suite	on contained in ty or any indicated the ty or any indicated the ty or any indicated the type of ty	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in or Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I known the complete with th
Rate Guarantee: 12 Broke / Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name. Aon Broker/Agent Street Add 707 Wilshire F City: Los Angeles	months 24 month lement and the informatic about this entired regulations and Consulting ress (PO Box not accessive). Suite	on contained in ty or any indication and indication	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in or Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I know the complied with a second its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-43 State Insurance License No. 0763901 roker/Agent E-mail Address: ent.crane@aonhew: Zip:
Rate Guarantee: 12 Bioker/Agent Sta I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules at Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Broker/Agent Street Add 707 Wilshire F	months 24 month lement and the informatic about this entired regulations and Consulting ress (PO Box not accessive). Suite	on contained in ty or any indicated the ty or any indicated the ty or any indicated the type of ty	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	% (Commission in or Group Insurance the insurance ges to the entite 575	ance is correct and I known the complete with th

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

APPLICATION FOR GROUP COVERAGE: VISION

Group Applicant	the first of the second		The state of the s
Full Legal Name of Employer/Group: COUNTY OF RIVERSI	DE .	SIC:	
(EYEWARE ONLY)		
Group Contact: DANA WEBB	E-mail Address: D	EWeb	b@rc-hr.com
Address (Street): 4080 LEMON STREET/PO BOX 1569			one: (951) 955-8290
Citý: ŘIVERSIDE	State: CA		Zip Gode: 92502
Legal Entity: Corporation S-Corporation Partnership Solo	Proprietorship 🔲 Tru	est 🔲 4	Association 💢 Other:
Nature of Business: Local Government			
Subsidiaries or Affiliates to be insured: No Yes, F	ull Legal Name(s):		
2.			
Coverage Requested	Warn Jan A	ik ti	authory" is
(Benefit Frequency, Frame Allowance, Contact Lens Allowance)	Park State Feb. 5		
1. Plan: Plan I 12/12 S75 FRAME/\$100 CONTACTS	2. Requested Effective	Date: T	BD
3. Number of Eligible employees: 13, 946	4. Number of employed	es enroll	ing: 617
5. Number of Eligible dependents: 18,916 6. Number of de	pendents enrolling: 405	6a. Dep	endem age limit: 25
7. Waiting Period: Initial Employees: None Future	Employees: One Mo	nth [Other:
8. Employer Contribution: 5(). (2) % Employee /	% Dependents		
9. All or part of this insurance will replace similar coverage: No Yes, please submit copies of the policy(ies) an	d/or certificate(s)		
Prior Carrier AIG/POLICY #VCP9522302	Coverage 01/01/2004		Tennination Date N/A
10. Initial preinium déposit: Minimum First Month Premium S	, Plus \$ Bil		. 14
Agreement.		7	STATE OF THE STATE OF
It is agreed that the policy will not become effective unless. Office at rates to be determined by the Company. The Prapproved by the Company. If approved, the effective date (b) the date the required number of Employees who are enrolled, whichever is later. The Applicant declares that to answers to the above questions are complete and true.	s the application is appenium Deposit will be of the policy will be to contribute to the	e refund (a) the Cost of	led if the application is not effective date requested; or the Group Insurance have
Authorization	¥	1	
Dated at: (City) (State) Riverside CA	This (Month) August 19, 2014	(Day)	(Ycar)
Witness (Licensed Broker/Agent)	By (Authorized Signature)	5	
Print Broker/Agent Name Brent Grane	Print Name Michael Stock		
Broker/Agent License Number 0A27852	Title	RE	CEIVED
	Asst. CEO/Human	Kesoul	ces Director

19246 Riverside County (Eyeware Only) Application.docx

BY:____

1311 Marnaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

	NTY OF RIVERSIDE	(EYEWEAR ONL	Y)		
Billing Address:	STREET/PO BOX 1'56	69 City: RIVE	therpre		0 01 01
Billing Contact: DAN		City. Kivi	KSIDE	Title: Que	State: CA Zip: 92502
Telephone: (951) 955-		51) 955. 8	1520	E-mail: N	cipal Analyst = webb@re-h.com
Eligibility	H. S. P. M.	Take Till 6 %		100	Meins of Lealth Cou
Indicate the Number of	f Eligible Employees a	and the Number of E	imployees Initially Insure	d:	
Plan: (Benefit Frequ Allowance)	iency, Frame.Ällowan	ice, Contact Lens	Copayment/ Deductible	Number of Eligible Employees	Number of Enrollment Forms
PLAN 1 12/12 \$75 FR	AME/\$100 CONTAC	CTS	S0	617	N/A
Deliver Administrati	ion Package to:	Group	☐ Broker/Agent	□м	ES Representative
If this insurance app	lied for is a replacen	nent of existing in	surance, are you the sai		nt who previously wrote the
case?					
	tach's copy of	he pronocal	and rates.)	Secretary and	
EE Only. \$ 7.22		use or Child): \$11.5	The Vice Control of the State o		
			\$15.87	.,.	EE + Children: \$
Rate Guarantee: 1	2 months 🔲 24 mon	ths X Other 19/31	ONLO	V /C:	
(1) マングランド マングライング		77	our ommission: NET	(Commission	included in rate.)
I hereby certify the	atement & Informat at all the informat the about this ent	mation :	this Application for	r Group Insu	rance is correct and I know
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabundenwriting rules	atement & Informat at all the informat ale about this end and regulations and	ion-contained in ity or any indi d have explained Telepho	n this Application for ividual proposed for d in detail the coverage	r Group Insu	rance is correct and I know nee. I have complied with ty and its employees.
I hereby certify th nothing unfavorab underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name	atement & Informat at all the informat de about this ent and regulations and	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained Telepho (80)	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage in the cov	r Group Insu	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabe underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul	atement & Informat at all the informat ale about this end and regulations and butters	ion contained in ity or any indid have explained Telepho (80)	n this Application for ividual proposed for d in detail the coverage	r Group Insu	rance is correct and I know nee. I have complied with ty and its employees.
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabe underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Ad	atement & Informat at all the informat ale about this ent and regulations and blue ting	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Tax ID is ceptable)	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage in the cov	r Group Insurer the insurar ges to the enti	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address;
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabe underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Ad	atement & Informat at all the informat ale about this end and regulations and butters	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Tax ID is ceptable)	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage in the cov	r Group Insurer the insurar ges to the enti	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; orent.crane@aonhewi
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabe underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Ad 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele	atement & Informaticle about this end and regulations and tring tring ldress (PO Box not accee Blvd., Sui	ion-contained in the property of the property	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage 1) 488-2575 No. 22-2232264	r Group Insurer the insurar ges to the enti	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address;
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorable underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Act 707 Wilshir City:	atement & Informaticle about this end and regulations and tring tring ldress (PO Box not accee Blvd., Sui	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained Telepho (80) Tax ID 1 teptable) te 2600	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage 1) 488-2575 No. 22-2232264	r Group Insurer the insurar ges to the enti	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; orent.crane@aonhewi
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorabe underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Ad 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele	atement & Informaticle about this end and regulations and tring tring ldress (PO Box not accee Blvd., Sui	ion-contained in the property of the property	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage 1) 488-2575 No. 22-2232264	r Group Insurer the insurar ges to the enti	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address: prent.crane@aonhewi
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorable underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Ad 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele General Broker/Agent (MES Regional Sales Manager	at all the informat at all the informat all about this ent and regulations and ting dress (PO Box not acc e Blvd., Sui s If Applicable) Telephone	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Telepho (80). Tax ID I te 2600 State: CA Telepho. Fax No.	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage 1) 488-2575 No. 22-2232264	r Group Insurate the insuran	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; orent.crane@aonhewider.cran
I hereby certify the mothing unfavorable underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Act 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele General Broker/Agent (MES Regional Sales Manager	at all the informat alle about this end and regulations and ting library (PO Box not accee Blvd., Sui	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Telepho (80). Tax ID I te 2600 State: CA Telepho. Fax No.	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage 1) 488-2575 No. 22-2232264 The coverage representation of the coverage representation	r Group Insurer the insurance to the entire the insurance to the entire the e	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; or ent.crane@aonhewider.cra
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorable underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON CONSUL Broker/Agent Street Act 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele General Broker/Agent (MES Regional Sales Manager the initial enrollment, WAGENT SIGNATURE	at all the informat alle about this end and regulations and ting library for the second secon	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Telepho (80). Tax ID 1 State: CA Telepho. Fax No.	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage of the cov	r Group Insurer the insurance to the entire the insurance to the entire the e	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; or ent.crane@aonhewider.cra
I hereby certify the mothing unfavorable underwriting rules. Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Act 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele General Broker/Agent (MES Regional Sales Manager A the initial enrollment, VAGENT SIGNATURE AME: Brent (at all the informat all about this end and regulations and tring library (PO Box not accee Blvd., Suis If Applicable) Telephone and the first month's E: Crane	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Telepho (80). Tax ID 1 septable) te 2600 State: CA Telepho. Fax No.	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage of the cov	r Group Insurance the insurance to the entire the insurance to the entire the entire the entire that the entir	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; orent.crane@aonhewi Zip: 90017 Fax No Office ve.
I hereby certify the nothing unfavorable underwriting rules Broker/Agent Name Company Name AON Consul Broker/Agent Street Act 707 Wilshir City: Los Angele General Broker/Agent (MES Regional Sales Manager AGENT SIGNATURE AME: Brent (at all the informat all about this end and regulations and tring library (PO Box not accee Blvd., Suis If Applicable) Telephone and the first month's E: Crane	ion-contained in ity or any indid have explained (80). Telepho (80). Tax ID 1 septable) te 2600 State: CA Telepho. Fax No.	n this Application for ividual proposed for din detail the coverage of the cov	r Group Insurance the insurance to the entire the insurance to the entire the entire the entire that the entir	rance is correct and I knownce. I have complied with ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Broker/Agent E-mail Address; or ent.crane@aonhewider.cra

1311 Mainaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

APPLICATION FOR GROUP COVERAGE: VISION

Group Applicant Full Legal Name of Employer/Group, COUNTY OF RIV	ERSIDE (RETIREES) SIC:
Group Contact: DANA WEBB	E-mail Address: DF Webb@rc-hr.Com
Address (Street): 4080 LEMON STREET/PO BOX 1569	Telephone: (951) 955-8290
City: RIVERSIDE	State: CA Zip Code: 92502
Legal Entity: S-Corporation S-Corporation Partnership	Sole Proprietorship Trust Association
Nature of Business: Local Governmen	
	Ccs, Full Legal Name(s):
2.	
Coverage Requested	在中央的国际的国际的国际的国际的国际
Benefit Frequency, Frame Allowance, Contact Lens Allowance, 1. Plan: PLAN C 12/12/12, \$120 FRAME/\$105 CONTAC	
Number of Eligible employees: 3.322	4. Number of employees enrolling: 1152
7.	of dependents enrolling: 631–6a. Dependent age limit: 25
	uture Employees: One Month Other:
Employer Contribution: (1) 00 % Employee /	% Dependents
All or part of this insurance will replace sunilar coverage No Yes, please submit copies of the policy(i	ge:
Prior Carrier AIG/POLICY #VCP9522302	Coverage Termination Date N/A
0. Initial premium deposit: Minimum First Month Prem	ium S, Plus \$ Billing Fee.
Agreement Agreement	EMITTED: \$X/A
is agreed that the policy will not become effective i	inless the application is approved by the Company at its He
proved by the Company. If approved, the effective	ne Premium Deposit will be refunded if the application is date of the policy will be: (a) the effective date requested are to contribute to the Cost of the Group Insurance has a second to the Group Insurance ha
nrolled, whichever is later. The Applicant declares to inswers to the above questions are complete and true.	hat to the best of his knowledge and belief, the statements
uthorization	
oated at: (City) (State) Riverside CA	This (Month) (Day) (Year) August 19, 2014
Vitness (Licensed Broker/Agent)	By (Authorized Signature)
rint Broker/Agent Name	Print Name
Brent Crane roker/Agent License Number	Michael Stock Title Asst. CEO/Human Resources Director

AUG 25 2014

BY:____

1311 Mamaroneck Avenue White Plains, New York 10605

	Y OF RIVERSIDE (RETI	REES)			
Billing Address: Street: 4080 LEMON STF	REFT/PO/BOX/1569	City: RIVE	RSIDE		State: CA Zip: 92502
Billing Contact: DANA W		Ony, the E		Title: Print	cipal Analyst
Telephone: (951) 955-227	74 Fax: (951) 0	155.85	388	E-mail: DE	webb@cc.hircom
Eligibility	G ALL PLANTS OF THE PARTY.		心思想是有一种的 种	深江南村。江州	CALL AND THE PARTY OF THE
Indicate the Number of El	ligible Employees and the	Number of Ei	nployees initially insured	d;	,
Plan: (Benéfil Frequenc Allowance)	cy, Frame Allowance, Cor	ntact Lens	Copayment/ Déductible	Number of Eligible Employees	Number of Enrollment Forms
BLAN C 12/12/12/5120	FRAME/\$105 CONTAC	TS	\$0	1152	N/A
Deliver Administration	Package to:	Group	☐ Broker/Agent	□ мв	S Representative
If this insurance applies	d for is a replacement of	f existing ins	urance, are you the sar	ne broker/agent	who previously wrote the
'case?					
☐ Yes; ☐ No		AND COLOR SE	sar research estreets		SOUTH OF MORTHY AND HOUSE THE CO
COLUMN SECULIAR DESCRIPTION DE LA COMPANSION DE LA COMPAN	ich a copy of the p				
EE Only: \$ 10.17	EĒ+ Í (Spouse or C	Child): \$19.48	\$25.84		EE.+ Children: S
	nonths 24 months				
Broker/Agent Stat	ement & Informati	on <i>age</i>	はに数数は必要		是是的特殊的
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an	ement & Information c	ontained in ontained in or any indi re explained	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	r Group Insur	ance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its employees.
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name	ement & Information can about this entity of degulations and have	ontained in ontained in r any indi re explained Telepho	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera	r Group Insur	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name	ement & Information can about this entity of degulations and have	ontained in ontained in r any indi re explained Telepho	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera- ne.) 488-2575	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr	all the information condition about this entity of degulations and have ting	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax [D])	this Application for vidual proposed for the detail the covera- ne.) 488-2575	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its,employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir	ement & Information can about this entity of degulations and have ting	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax [D])	this Application for vidual proposed for the detail the covera- ne.) 488-2575	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City:	all the information conditions about this entity of degulations and have the second that the s	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax ID) e) 2600 State:	this Application for vidual proposed for din detail the covera- ne. 1 488-2575 No. 22-223:	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its,employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901 roker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles	all the information conditions about this entity of degulations and have the second that the s	ontained in any indice explained (801 Tax ID)	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera- ne. 1 488-2575 No. 22-223	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901 stroker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe
Eroker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (if	all the information condition about this entity of degulations and have the second that the se	ontained in any indice explained (801 Tax ID) c) 2600 State: CA	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera- ne. 1 488-2575 No. 22-223	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Iroker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (If	all the information conditions about this entity of degulations and have the second that the s	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax ID 1 e) 2600 State: CA Telepho	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the covera- ne. 1 488-2575 No. 22-223	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901 roker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonho Zip: 90017 Fax No.
Broker/Agent State I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (If MES Regional Sales Manager	all the information conditions about this entity of degulations and have the second that the s	ontained in any indice explained (801 Tax ID) (2600 State: CA Telepho	a this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the coverage. 1. 488-2575 No. 22-223:	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its,employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 roker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe Zip: 90017 Fax No. Office
Broker/Agent Stat I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (if.) MES Regional Sales Manager the initial enrollment, an	all the information of about this entity of degulations and have ting less (PO Box not acceptable Blvd., Suite Applicable) Telephone	ontained in any indice explained (801 Tax ID) 2600 State: CA Telepho Fux No.	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the coverage of the coverag	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901 stroker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe
Broker/Agent State I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (if MES Regional Sales Manager the initial enrollment, an	all the information of about this entity of degulations and have ting the Blvd., Suite Applicable) Telephone	ontained in any indice explained (801 Tax ID) 2600 State: CA Telepho Fux No.	this Application for vidual proposed for in detail the coverage of the coverag	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit	Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License N 0763901 stroker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe
Broker/Agent State I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (If MES Regional Sales Manager the initial enrollment, an AGENT SIGNATURE: ME: Brent Crane	ement & Information control all the information control about this entity of defections and have the second regulations and have the second regulations and have the second regulations and the first month's present the second regulations and the second regulations are second regulations and the second regulations are second regulations.	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax ID I) 2600 State: CA Telepho Fux No.	this Application for vidual proposed for detail the coverage of the detail	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit 2264 B acal representati ATE: 8-19-2	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its,employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Foker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe Zip: 90017 Fax No. Office ve.
Broker/Agent State I hereby certify that nothing unfavorable underwriting rules an Broker/Agent Name Company Name Aon Consul Broker/Agent Street Addr 707 Wilshir City: Los Angeles General Broker/Agent (if MES Regional Sales Manager the initial enrollment, an AGENT SIGNATURE: MES Brent Crane	ement & Information control all the information control about this entity of defections and have the second regulations and have the second regulations and have the second regulations and the first month's present the second regulations and the second regulations are second regulations and the second regulations are second regulations.	ontained in any indice explained Telepho (801 Tax ID I) 2600 State: CA Telepho Fux No.	this Application for vidual proposed for detail the coverage of the detail	ir Group Insur r the insuran ges to the entit 2264 B Cal representati ATE: 8-19-2	rance is correct and I kno ce. I have complied wi ty and its,employees. Fax No. (847) 953-4344 State Insurance License No. 0763901 Foker/Agent E-mail Address: brent.crane@aonhe Zip: 90017 Fax No. Office ve.

EXHIBIT C

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE AND MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC.

HIPAA Business Associate Addendum

Between the County of Riverside and Medical Eye Services, Inc.

This HIPAA Business Associate Addendum (the "Addendum") supplements, and is made part of the Vision Benefits Administration Agreement (the "Underlying Agreement") between the County of Riverside ("County") and Medical Eye Services, Inc. ("Contractor"), and shall be effective as of the date the Underlying Agreement is approved by both Parties (the "Effective Date").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, County and Contractor entered into the Underlying Agreement pursuant to which the Contractor provides services to County, and in conjunction with the provision of such services certain protected health information ("PHI") and/or certain electronic protected health information ("ePHI") may be created by or made available to Contractor for the purposes of carrying out its obligations under the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), Public Law 104-191 enacted August 21, 1996, and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH") of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5 enacted February 17, 2009, and the laws and regulations promulgated subsequent thereto, as may be amended from time to time, are applicable to the protection of any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI pursuant to the Underlying Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, County is a covered entity, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, to the extent County discloses PHI and/or ePHI to Contractor or Contractor creates, receives, maintains, transmits, or has access to PHI and/or ePHI of County, Contractor is a business associate, as defined in the Privacy Rule; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to 42 USC §17931 and §17934, certain provisions of the Security Rule and Privacy Rule apply to a business associate of a covered entity in the same manner that they apply to the covered entity, the additional security and privacy requirements of HITECH are applicable to business associates and must be incorporated into the business associate agreement, and a business associate is liable for civil and criminal penalties for failure to comply with these security and/or privacy provisions; and,

WHEREAS, the parties mutually agree that any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI must be in compliance with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA, HITECH and any other applicable law; and,

WHEREAS, the parties intend to enter into this Addendum to address the requirements and obligations set forth in the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HITECH and HIPAA as they apply to Contractor as a business associate of County, including the establishment of permitted and required uses and disclosures of PHI and/or ePHI created or received by Contractor during the

course of performing functions, services and activities on behalf of County, and appropriate limitations and conditions on such uses and disclosures;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Definitions</u>. Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Addendum shall have the same meaning as those terms in HITECH, HIPAA, Security Rule and/or Privacy Rule, as may be amended from time to time.
 - A. "Breach" when used in connection with PHI means the acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI, and shall have the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.402.
 - (1) Except as provided below in Paragraph (2) of this definition, acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of PHI in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule is presumed to be a breach unless Contractor demonstrates that there is a low probability that the PHI has been compromised based on a risk assessment of at least the following four factors:
 - (a) The nature and extent of the PHI involved, including the types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;
 - (b) The unauthorized person who used the PHI or to whom the disclosure was made;
 - (c) Whether the PHI was actually acquired or viewed; and
 - (d) The extent to which the risk to the PHI has been mitigated.

(2) Breach excludes:

- (a) Any unintentional acquisition, access or use of PHI by a workforce member or person acting under the authority of a covered entity or business associate, if such acquisition, access or use was made in good faith and within the scope of authority and does not result in further use or disclosure in a manner not permitted under subpart E of the Privacy Rule.
- (b) Any inadvertent disclosure by a person who is authorized to access PHI at a covered entity or business associate to another person authorized to access PHI at the same covered entity, business associate, or organized health care arrangement in which County participates, and the information received as a result of such disclosure is not further used or disclosed in a manner not permitted by subpart E of the Privacy Rule.

- (c) A disclosure of PHI where a covered entity or business associate has a good faith belief that an unauthorized person to whom the disclosure was made would not reasonably have been able to retain such information.
- B. "Business associate" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501, including but not limited to a subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, transmits or accesses PHI on behalf of the business associate.
- C. "Data aggregation" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- D. "Designated record set" as defined in 45 CFR §164.501 means a group of records maintained by or for a covered entity that may include: the medical records and billing records about individuals maintained by or for a covered health care provider; the enrollment, payment, claims adjudication, and case or medical management record systems maintained by or for a health plan; or, used, in whole or in part, by or for the covered entity to make decisions about individuals.
- E. "Electronic protected health information" ("ePHI") as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means protected health information transmitted by or maintained in electronic media.
- F. "Electronic health record" means an electronic record of health-related information on an individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff, and shall have the meaning given such term in 42 USC §17921(5).
- G. "Health care operations" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.501.
- H. "Individual" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means the person who is the subject of protected health information.
- I. "Person" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a natural person, trust or estate, partnership, corporation, professional association or corporation, or other entity, public or private.
- J. "Privacy Rule" means the HIPAA regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A and E.
- K. "Protected health information" ("PHI") has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §160.103, which includes ePHI.
- L. "Required by law" has the meaning given such term in 45 CFR §164.103.
- M. "Secretary" means the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS").
- N. "Security incident" as defined in 45 CFR §164.304 means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system.

- O. "Security Rule" means the HIPAA Regulations codified at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, Subparts A and C.
- P. "Subcontractor" as defined in 45 CFR §160.103 means a person to whom a business associate delegates a function, activity, or service, other than in the capacity of a member of the workforce of such business associate.
- Q. "Unsecured protected health information" and "unsecured PHI" as defined in 45 CFR §164.402 means PHI not rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized persons through use of a technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in the guidance issued under 42 USC §17932(h)(2).

2. Scope of Use and Disclosure by Contractor of County's PHI and/or ePHI.

- A. Except as otherwise provided in this Addendum, Contractor may use, disclose, or access PHI and/or ePHI as necessary to perform any and all obligations of Contractor under the Underlying Agreement or to perform functions, activities or services for, or on behalf of, County as specified in this Addendum, if such use or disclosure does not violate HIPAA, HITECH, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule.
- B. Unless otherwise limited herein, in addition to any other uses and/or disclosures permitted or authorized by this Addendum or required by law, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.504(e)(2), Contractor may:
 - (1) Use PHI and/or ePHI if necessary for Contractor's proper management and administration and to carry out its legal responsibilities; and,
 - (2) Disclose PHI and/or ePHI for the purpose of Contractor's proper management and administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities, only if:
 - (a) The disclosure is required by law; or,
 - (b) Contractor obtains reasonable assurances, in writing, from the person to whom Contractor will disclose such PHI and/or ePHI that the person will:
 - (i) Hold such PHI and/or ePHI in confidence and use or further disclose it only for the purpose for which Contractor disclosed it to the person, or as required by law; and,
 - (ii) Notify Contractor of any instances of which it becomes aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached; and,
 - (3) Use PHI to provide data aggregation services relating to the health care operations of County pursuant to the Underlying Agreement or as requested by County; and,
 - (4) De-identify all PHI and/or ePHI of County received by Contractor under this Addendum provided that the de-identification conforms to the requirements of the

Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule and does not preclude timely payment and/or claims processing and receipt.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in any instance where applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations are more stringent in their requirements than the provisions of HIPAA, including, but not limited to, prohibiting disclosure of mental health and/or substance abuse records, the applicable state and/or federal laws and/or regulations shall control the disclosure of records.

3. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures.

- A. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI in a manner not authorized by the Underlying Agreement or this Addendum without patient authorization or de-identification of the PHI and/or ePHI and as authorized in writing from County.
- B. Contractor may neither use, disclose, nor access PHI and/or ePHI it receives from County or from another business associate of County, except as permitted or required by this Addendum, or as required by law.
- C. Contractor agrees not to make any disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI that County would be prohibited from making.
- D. Contractor shall not use or disclose PHI for any purpose prohibited by the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and/or HITECH, including, but not limited to 42 USC §17935 and §17936. Contractor agrees:
 - (1) Not to use or disclose PHI for fundraising, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.514(f) or 45 CFR §164.508;
 - (2) Not to use or disclose PHI for marketing, as defined in 45 CFR §164.501, unless pursuant to the Underlying Agreement and only if permitted by and in compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.508(a)(3);
 - (3) Not to disclose PHI, except as otherwise required by law, to a health plan for purposes of carrying out payment or health care operations, if the individual has requested this restriction pursuant to 42 USC §17935(a) and 45 CFR §164.522, and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely relates; and,
 - (4) Not to receive, directly or indirectly, remuneration in exchange for PHI, or engage in any act that would constitute a sale of PHI, as defined in 45 CFR §164.502(a)(5)(ii), unless permitted by the Underlying Agreement and in compliance with the requirements of a valid authorization under 45 CFR §164.508(a)(4). This prohibition shall not apply to payment by County to Contractor for services provided pursuant to the Underlying Agreement.

4. Obligations of County.

- A. County agrees to make its best efforts to notify Contractor promptly in writing of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI agreed to by County that may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- B. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by any individual to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI, if such changes or revocation may affect Contractor's ability to perform its obligations under the Underlying Agreement, or this Addendum.
- C. County agrees to make its best efforts to promptly notify Contractor in writing of any known limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices to the extent that such limitation may affect Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI.
- D. County agrees not to request Contractor to use or disclose PHI and/or ePHI in any manner that would not be permissible under HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule.
- E. County agrees to obtain any authorizations necessary for the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, so that Contractor can perform its obligations under this Addendum and/or Underlying Agreement.
- 5. <u>Obligations of Contractor</u>. In connection with the use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI, Contractor agrees to:
 - A. Use or disclose PHI only if such use or disclosure complies with each applicable requirement of 45 CFR §164.504(e). Contractor shall also comply with the additional privacy requirements that are applicable to covered entities in HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
 - B. Not use or further disclose PHI and/or ePHI other than as permitted or required by this Addendum or as required by law. Contractor shall promptly notify County if Contractor is required by law to disclose PHI and/or ePHI.
 - C. Use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with the Security Rule with respect to ePHI, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI other than as provided for by this Addendum.
 - D. Mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Contractor of a use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI by Contractor in violation of this Addendum.
 - E. Report to County any use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI not provided for by this Addendum or otherwise in violation of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule, and/or Security Rule of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410.

- F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.502(e)(1)(ii), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit or access PHI on behalf of the Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Contractor with respect to such PHI and/or ePHI, including the restrictions and conditions pursuant to this Addendum.
- G. Make available to County or the Secretary, in the time and manner designated by County or Secretary, Contractor's internal practices, books and records relating to the use, disclosure and privacy protection of PHI received from County, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, for purposes of determining, investigating or auditing Contractor's and/or County's compliance with the Privacy Rule.
- H. Request, use or disclose only the minimum amount of PHI necessary to accomplish the intended purpose of the request, use or disclosure in accordance with 42 USC §17935(b) and 45 CFR §164.502(b)(1).
- I. Comply with requirements of satisfactory assurances under 45 CFR §164.512 relating to notice or qualified protective order in response to a third party's subpoena, discovery request, or other lawful process for the disclosure of PHI, which Contractor shall promptly notify County upon Contractor's receipt of such request from a third party.
- J. Not require an individual to provide patient authorization for use or disclosure of PHI as a condition for treatment, payment, enrollment in any health plan (including the health plan administered by County), or eligibility of benefits, unless otherwise excepted under 45 CFR §164.508(b)(4) and authorized in writing by County.
- K. Use appropriate administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent inappropriate use, disclosure, or access of PHI and/or ePHI.
- L. Obtain and maintain knowledge of applicable laws and regulations related to HIPAA and HITECH, as may be amended from time to time.
- M. Comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to the County to the extent Contractor is to carry out County's obligations under the Privacy Rule.
- N. Take reasonable steps to cure or end any pattern of activity or practice of its subcontractor of which Contractor becomes aware that constitute a material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligations under the business associate contract with Contractor, and if such steps are unsuccessful, Contractor agrees to terminate its contract with the subcontractor if feasible.

6. Access to PHI, Amendment and Disclosure Accounting. Contractor agrees to:

A. Access to PHI, including ePHI. Provide access to PHI, including ePHI if maintained electronically, in a designated record set to County or an individual as directed by County, within five (5) days of request from County, to satisfy the requirements of 45 CFR §164.524.

- B. Amendment of PHI. Make PHI available for amendment and incorporate amendments to PHI in a designated record set County directs or agrees to at the request of an individual, within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, in accordance with 45 CFR §164.526.
- C. Accounting of disclosures of PHI and electronic health record. Assist County to fulfill its obligations to provide accounting of disclosures of PHI under 45 CFR §164.528 and, where applicable, electronic health records under 42 USC §17935(c) if Contractor uses or maintains electronic health records. Contractor shall:
 - (1) Document such disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health records, and information related to such disclosures, as would be required for County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528.
 - (2) Within fifteen (15) days of receiving a written request from County, provide to County or any individual as directed by County information collected in accordance with this section to permit County to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI and/or electronic health record.
 - (3) Make available for County information required by this Section 6.C for six (6) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of PHI, and for three (3) years preceding the individual's request for accounting of disclosures of electronic health record.
- 7. **Security of ePHI.** In the event County discloses ePHI to Contractor or Contractor needs to create, receive, maintain, transmit or have access to County ePHI, in accordance with 42 USC §17931 and 45 CFR §164.314(a)(2)(i), and §164.306, Contractor shall:
 - A. Comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule, and implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of ePHI that Contractor creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of County in accordance with 45 CFR §164.308, §164.310, and §164.312;
 - B. Comply with each of the requirements of 45 CFR §164.316 relating to the implementation of policies, procedures and documentation requirements with respect to ePHI;
 - C. Protect against any reasonably anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of ePHI;
 - D. Protect against any reasonably anticipated uses or disclosures of ePHI that are not permitted or required under the Privacy Rule;
 - E. Ensure compliance with the Security Rule by Contractor's workforce;

- F. In accordance with 45 CFR §164.308(b)(2), require that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, transmit, or access ePHI on behalf of Contractor agree through contract to the same restrictions and requirements contained in this Addendum and comply with the applicable requirements of the Security Rule;
- G. Report to County any security incident of which Contractor becomes aware, including breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 CFR §164.410; and,
- H. Comply with any additional security requirements that are applicable to covered entities in Title 42 (Public Health and Welfare) of the United States Code, as may be amended from time to time, including but not limited to HITECH.
- 8. **Breach of Unsecured PHI.** In the case of breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, including but not limited to 45 CFR §164.410.
 - A. **Discovery and notification.** Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured PHI, Contractor shall notify County in writing of such breach without unreasonable delay and in no case later than 60 calendar days after discovery of a breach, except as provided in 45 CFR §164.412.
 - (1) **Breaches treated as discovered.** A breach is treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on which such breach is known to Contractor or, by exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to Contractor, which includes any person, other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of Contractor (determined in accordance with the federal common law of agency).
 - (2) **Content of notification.** The written notification to County relating to breach of unsecured PHI shall include, to the extent possible, the following information if known (or can be reasonably obtained) by Contractor:
 - (a) The identification of each individual whose unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, acquired, used or disclosed during the breach;
 - (b) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the breach and the date of the discovery of the breach, if known;
 - (c) A description of the types of unsecured PHI involved in the breach, such as whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code, or other types of information were involved;
 - (d) Any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting from the breach;
 - (e) A brief description of what Contractor is doing to investigate the breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further breaches; and,

- (f) Contact procedures for individuals to ask questions or learn additional information, which shall include a toll-free telephone number, an e-mail address, web site, or postal address.
- B. Cooperation. With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI reported by Contractor, Contractor shall cooperate with County and shall provide County with any information requested by County to enable County to fulfill in a timely manner its own reporting and notification obligations, including but not limited to providing notice to individuals, prominent media outlets and the Secretary in accordance with 42 USC §17932 and 45 CFR §164.404, §164.406 and §164.408.
- C. **Breach log.** To the extent breach of unsecured PHI involves less than 500 individuals, Contractor shall maintain a log or other documentation of such breaches and provide such log or other documentation on an annual basis to County not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar year for submission to the Secretary.
- D. **Delay of notification authorized by law enforcement.** If Contractor delays notification of breach of unsecured PHI pursuant to a law enforcement official's statement that required notification, notice or posting would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage to national security, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate its compliance with the requirements of 45 CFR §164.412.
- E. **Payment of costs.** With respect to any breach of unsecured PHI caused solely by the Contractor's failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this Addendum and/or the provisions of HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule, Contractor agrees to pay any and all costs associated with providing all legally required notifications to individuals, media outlets, and the Secretary. This provision shall not be construed to limit or diminish Contractor's obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County under Section 9 of this Addendum.
- F. **Documentation.** Pursuant to 45 CFR §164.414(b), in the event Contractor's use or disclosure of PHI and/or ePHI violates the Privacy Rule, Contractor shall maintain documentation sufficient to demonstrate that all notifications were made by Contractor as required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart D, or that such use or disclosure did not constitute a breach, including Contractor's completed risk assessment and investigation documentation.
- G. Additional State Reporting Requirements. The parties agree that this Section 8.G applies only if and/or when County, in its capacity as a licensed clinic, health facility, home health agency, or hospice, is required to report unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of medical information under the more stringent requirements of California Health & Safety Code §1280.15. For purposes of this Section 8.G, "unauthorized" has the meaning given such term in California Health & Safety Code §1280.15(j)(2).
 - (1) Contractor agrees to assist County to fulfill its reporting obligations to affected patients and to the California Department of Public Health ("CDPH") in a timely manner under the California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.

(2) Contractor agrees to report to County any unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of patient's medical information without unreasonable delay and no later than two (2) business days after Contractor detects such incident. Contractor further agrees such report shall be made in writing, and shall include substantially the same types of information listed above in Section 8.A.2 (Content of Notification) as applicable to the unlawful or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure as defined above in this section, understanding and acknowledging that the term "breach" as used in Section 8.A.2 does not apply to California Health & Safety Code §1280.15.

9. Hold Harmless/Indemnification.

- A. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and representatives from any liability whatsoever, based or asserted upon any services of Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives arising out of or in any way relating to this Addendum, including but not limited to property damage, bodily injury, death, or any other element of any kind or nature whatsoever arising from the performance of Contractor, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives from this Addendum. Contractor shall defend, at its sole expense, all costs and fees, including but not limited to attorney fees, cost of investigation, defense and settlements or awards, of County, all Agencies, Districts, Special Districts and Departments of County, their respective directors, officers, Board of Supervisors, elected and appointed officials, employees, agents or representatives in any claim or action based upon such alleged acts or omissions.
- B. With respect to any action or claim subject to indemnification herein by Contractor, Contractor shall, at their sole cost, have the right to use counsel of their choice, subject to the approval of County, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, and shall have the right to adjust, settle, or compromise any such action or claim without the prior consent of County; provided, however, that any such adjustment, settlement or compromise in no manner whatsoever limits or circumscribes Contractor's indemnification to County as set forth herein. Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless County shall be subject to County having given Contractor written notice within a reasonable period of time of the claim or of the commencement of the related action, as the case may be, and information and reasonable assistance, at Contractor's expense, for the defense or settlement thereof. Contractor's obligation hereunder shall be satisfied when Contractor has provided to County the appropriate form of dismissal relieving County from any liability for the action or claim involved.
- C. The specified insurance limits required in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum shall in no way limit or circumscribe Contractor's obligations to indemnify and hold harmless County herein from third party claims arising from issues of this Addendum.
- D. In the event there is conflict between this clause and California Civil Code §2782, this clause shall be interpreted to comply with Civil Code §2782. Such interpretation shall not relieve the Contractor from indemnifying County to the fullest extent allowed by law.

- E. In the event there is a conflict between this indemnification clause and an indemnification clause contained in the Underlying Agreement of this Addendum, this indemnification shall only apply to the subject issues included within this Addendum.
- 10. <u>Term.</u> This Addendum shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall terminate when all PHI and/or ePHI provided by County to Contractor, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County, is destroyed or returned to County, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy PHI and/ePHI, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with section 11.B of this Addendum.

11. Termination.

- A. **Termination for Breach of Contract.** A breach of any provision of this Addendum by either party shall constitute a material breach of the Underlying Agreement and will provide grounds for terminating this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement with or without an opportunity to cure the breach, notwithstanding any provision in the Underlying Agreement to the contrary. Either party, upon written notice to the other party describing the breach, may take any of the following actions:
 - (1) Terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum, effective immediately, if the other party breaches a material provision of this Addendum.
 - (2) Provide the other party with an opportunity to cure the alleged material breach and in the event the other party fails to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party in a timely manner, the non-breaching party has the right to immediately terminate the Underlying Agreement and this Addendum.
 - (3) If termination of the Underlying Agreement is not feasible, the breaching party, upon the request of the non-breaching party, shall implement, at its own expense, a plan to cure the breach and report regularly on its compliance with such plan to the non-breaching party.

B. Effect of Termination.

- (1) Upon termination of this Addendum, for any reason, Contractor shall return or, if agreed to in writing by County, destroy all PHI and/or ePHI received from County, or created or received by the Contractor on behalf of County, and, in the event of destruction, Contractor shall certify such destruction, in writing, to County. This provision shall apply to all PHI and/or ePHI which are in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor. Contractor shall retain no copies of PHI and/or ePHI, except as provided below in paragraph (2) of this section.
- (2) In the event that Contractor determines that returning or destroying the PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall provide written notification to County of the conditions that make such return or destruction not feasible. Upon determination by Contractor that return or destruction of PHI and/or ePHI is not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of this Addendum to such PHI and/or ePHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI and/or ePHI to those purposes which make

the return or destruction not feasible, for so long as Contractor maintains such PHI and/or ePHI.

12. General Provisions.

- A. **Retention Period.** Whenever Contractor is required to document or maintain documentation pursuant to the terms of this Addendum, Contractor shall retain such documentation for 6 years from the date of its creation or as otherwise prescribed by law, whichever is later.
- B. Amendment. The parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Addendum from time to time as is necessary for County to comply with HITECH, the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, and HIPAA generally.
- C. **Survival.** The obligations of Contractor under Sections 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11.B and 12.A of this Addendum shall survive the termination or expiration of this Addendum.
- D. Regulatory and Statutory References. A reference in this Addendum to a section in HITECH, HIPAA, the Privacy Rule and/or Security Rule means the section(s) as in effect or as amended.
- E. Conflicts. The provisions of this Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the Underlying Agreement that conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this Addendum.

F. Interpretation of Addendum.

- (1) This Addendum shall be construed to be part of the Underlying Agreement as one document. The purpose is to supplement the Underlying Agreement to include the requirements of the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH.
- (2) Any ambiguity between this Addendum and the Underlying Agreement shall be resolved to permit County to comply with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, HIPAA and HITECH generally.
- G. **Notices to County.** All notifications required to be given by Contractor to County pursuant to the terms of this Addendum shall be made in writing and delivered to the County both by fax and to both of the addresses listed below by either registered or certified mail return receipt requested or guaranteed overnight mail with tracing capability, or at such other address as County may hereafter designate. All notices to County provided by Contractor pursuant to this Section shall be deemed given or made when received by County.

Name: Brenda L. Diederichs

Title: Assistant Chief Executive Officer/Human Resources Director

Address: 4080 Lemon St. 7th floor

Riverside, CA 92502

Fax: (951)955-8538